
Board of Directors 
  Michael W. Mobley, President 
  Bruce E. Dandy, Vice President 
  Sheldon G. Berger, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Lynn E. Maulhardt 
  Edwin T. McFadden III 
  Daniel C. Naumann 

General Manager 
  Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 

Legal Counsel 
  David D. Boyer 

AGENDA 
FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 

Tuesday, December 8, 2020, at 9:00 A.M. 
Board Room, First Floor, UWCD HEADQUARTERS 

1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

Meeting attendees should be aware that the meetings of the Committee are, as required by law, open to the public and the 
District has very limited powers to regulate who attends Committee meetings. Therefore, attendees must exercise their own 
judgement with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19, as the District cannot ensure that all attendees 
at public meetings will be free from COVID-19. 

In addition to its public Finance and Audit Committee Meeting, people may choose to participate virtually 
using the Webex video conferencing application.  To participate in the UWCD Finance and Audit 

Committee Meeting via Webex, please click here: 

https://unitedwaterconservationdistrict.my.webex.com/unitedwaterconservationdistrict.my/j.php?MTID=mc7c284
27fae08f177ad3ad4c8d823d98 

Meeting number:  126 712 3217  Password:  Money (66639 from phones) 

To join by phone:  1-408-418-9388 (toll rates apply) Access code:  126 712 3217 

OPEN SESSION 

Committee Members Roll Call 

1. Public Comment
The public may address the Finance and Audit Committee on any matter on the agenda or within
the jurisdiction of the Committee.  All comments are subject to a five minute time limit.

2. Approval of Minutes
Motion
The Committee will review the Minutes from the November 9, 2020, Finance and Audit
Committee meeting and approve as submitted or direct staff to revise as necessary to accurately
reflect the discussion and actions taken at the meetings.

3. Audited FY 2019-20 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
Information Item
The Committee will receive the CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and as presented
by the District’s Auditors Vasquez & Co.

4. December 9, 2020, Board Meeting Agenda Items
The Committee will formulate a recommendation to the entire Board based on the discussions with
staff.  The Committee will discuss the following items:



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA 
December 8, 2020 
Page 2 

Agenda Item 4.1 Budget Transfer (Fund 420) in the amount of $200,000 from Legal Fees 
(Fund/Account 420-600-52510) to Professional Fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52220) – No 
Net Fiscal Impact 
The Committee will consider recommending to the full Board an authorization for a budget 
transfer within Fund 420 from legal fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52510) to professional fees 
(Fund/Account 420-600-52220). The budget transfer will provide funds for achieving 
regulatory authorizations for sediment management activities to occur at the Freeman 
Diversion facility. The proposed budget transfer will not result in a net fiscal impact. 

Agenda Item 4.4 Resolution 2020-19 Approving an Amended and Restated Ordinance 
No. 15 to Amend the Established Rules and Regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation 
Area and Extend the Authority Granted to the District’s Park Ranger Personnel 
The Committee will consider recommending to the full Board the adoption of Resolution 2020-
19, approving an amended and restated Ordinance No. 15, amending established rules and 
regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation Area and extending the authority granted to the 
District’s Park Ranger personnel. 

5. Monthly Investment and Pipeline Delivery Reports (October 2020)
Information Item
The Committee will receive, review and discuss the Districts’ investment portfolio and cash
position, as well as the pipelines’ water activities as of October 31, 2020.  The Committee will
provide direction to staff as necessary to ensure the fiscal stability of the District.

6. Board Requested Cost Tracking Items
Information Item
The Committee will receive and review the costs to date that the District has incurred:
a) as part of the licensing efforts and the probable maximum flood studies for the Santa Felicia

Dam;
b) in relation to environmental mandates;
c) in relation to litigation with the City of Ventura, Wishtoyo Foundation complaint and District

legal costs over the past several fiscal years; and
d) in relation to professional fees over the past several fiscal years.

7. Monthly Administrative Services Update
Information Item
The Committee will receive and review the monthly report from the administrative services team.

8. Future Agenda Items
The Committee will suggest topics or issues they would like to add to future agendas.

ADJOURNMENT 

 Directors: Staff: 
Sheldon G. Berger, Chair Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. Anthony Emmert 
Bruce Dandy Joseph Jereb Josh Perez 
Daniel C. Naumann (substitute) Ambry Tibay Clayton Strahan 



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA 
December 8, 2020 
Page 3 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of, 
the District’s services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or if you require agenda 
material in an alternative format, please contact the District Office at (805) 525-4431.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
District to make appropriate arrangements.  

Approved:_________________________________       Approved:_____________________________________ 
         Mauricio E. Guardado, General Manager                Anthony E. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Approved:_________________________________ 
   Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 

Posted: (date) December 3, 2020 (time) 2:30 p.m. (attest) Jackie Lozano 
At: United Water Conservation District Headquarters, 1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

Posted: (date) December 3, 2020 (time) 2:45 p.m. (attest) Jackie Lozano 
At: www.unitedwater.org 



Board of Directors 
  Michael W. Mobley, President 
  Bruce E. Dandy, Vice President 
  Sheldon G. Berger, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Patrick J. Kelley  
  Lynn E. Maulhardt 
  Edwin T. McFadden III 
  Daniel C. Naumann 
   
General Manager 
  Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 
 
Legal Counsel 
  David D. Boyer 
 
 

 
 

 
1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard, CA 93030     Tel: (805) 525-4431    Fax: (805) 525-2661      www.unitedwater.org 

 
 

  
 

 
MINUTES 

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, November 9, 2020 – 9:00 A.M. 

UWCD Headquarters, Board Room 
1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

 
In addition to its public Finance and Audit Committee Meeting, public members could choose to 

participate virtually using the Webex video conferencing application. 
 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Sheldon G. Berger, Chair 
Bruce Dandy 
Patrick Kelley 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Anthony Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 
Ambry Tibay, Senior Accountant 
Josh Perez, Human Resources Manager  
Zachary Plummer, Information Technology Administrator 
Jackie Lozano, Administrative Assistant II/Clerk for the Committee 
 
PUBLIC PRESENT: 
None 
 
OPEN SESSION 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Berger at 8:58 A.M. 
 
Committee Members Roll Call 
The Clerk called roll call.  All three Directors were present (Berger, Dandy, Kelley). 
 
1. Public Comment 

Chair Berger asked if there were any public comments; none were offered. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
The Committee moved to closed session at 8:59 A.M. 
 
2. Real Property Matters 

Discussion of Real Property Negotiations 
[Government Code Section 54956.8] 
Property: 1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard CA 
Agency Negotiator: Joseph Jereb 
Negotiating Party: United Water Conservation District 
Under Negotiation: Instructions to negotiators will concern price and terms of lease. 

 



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting MINUTES 
October 13, 2020 
 Page 2 

 
 
SECOND OPEN SESSION 
The second open session was called to order at 9:09 A.M. 
 
3. Oral Report Regarding Executive (Closed) Session 

Assistant General Manager Mr. Anthony Emmert reported no action was taken by the Committee 
that was reportable under the Brown Act. 
 

4. Approval of October 13, 2020, Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes 
Motion to approve the Committee Minutes from October 13, 2020, Director Kelley; Second, Director 
Dandy. Roll call vote, three ayes (Berger, Kelley, Dandy); none opposed. Motion carried, 3/0. 
 

5. November 10, 2020, Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 
Agenda Item 4.3: Request from AT&T to Amend Lease Agreement for Cell Tower and 
Backup Generator at Lake Piru 
Chief Financial Officer Joseph Jereb summarized the recommendation for the Committee.  There 
was discussion of AT&T’s monthly lease payment, which would increase from $900 to $1,300 as 
a result of the additional square footage added to the lease.  Also, the backup generator, which is 
located away from the edge of the lake, is diesel powered and accommodations have been made 
for fuel storage onsite.  The agreement includes indemnity provisions for the District in the event 
of future environmental hazards created by the tower or the generator.  The agreement was 
reviewed by the legal team prior to presentation to the Committee. 
 
There was a question if the AT&T cell tower offers a wireless connection for public or employee 
use.  No special arrangements have been made for cell tower use for employee or public use.  In 
the event of an emergency, the cell tower would maintain communication between the lake and 
offsite facilities.  The County of Ventura, as well as the District, has a microwave pad on the tower 
for emergency communication. 
 
The Committee recommends approval of the amended lease agreement to the full Board.  No 
further questions or comments from the Committee.  

  
6. Monthly Investment and Pipeline Delivery Reports (September 2020) 

The Committee reviewed the monthly investment and pipeline delivery reports as presented in the 
Finance and Audit Committee packet. 

 
Informational item.  No action was taken by the Committee. 
 

7. Fiscal Year 2020-21 First Quarter Financial Report (July 1, 2020 – September 30, 2020) 
Mr. Jereb summarized the first quarter financial report for the Committee (presentation attached).  
There was a question concerning the Freeman Fund, if associated with the lack of increase in the 
groundwater rates.  Funding was affected due to groundwater rates being kept steady as well as 
unexpected expenses incurred by the District.   
 
Informational item.  No action was taken by the Committee.  
 



Finance and Audit Committee Meeting MINUTES 
October 13, 2020 
 Page 3 

 
 
8. Board Requested Cost Tracking Items 

The Committee reviewed the costs to date that the District had incurred: 
a) as part of the licensing efforts and the probable maximum flood studies for the Santa Felicia 

Dam;  
b) in relation to environmental mandates;  
c) in relation to litigation with the City of Ventura, Wishtoyo Foundation complaint and 

District legal costs over the past several fiscal years; and  
d) in relation to professional fees over the past several fiscal years.  

 
Informational item.  No action was taken by the Committee. 

 
9. Monthly Administrative Services Update 

Financial updates for the month of October 2020 were provided to the Committee by Mr. Jereb.  
Human Resources Manager Mr. Josh Perez presented updates on Administration, Human Resources, 
IT, and Risk Management (presentation attached). 
 
There was a discussion as to why the City of Oxnard increased pipeline deliveries in October.  The 
District had no indication as to why there was an increase, however it was surmised that a potential 
increase in September was due to a blending station taken out of service.  Fox Canyon GMA switched 
to a new allocation year beginning October 1 and implemented a rollback to 2014 allocation levels.  
This results in users having more GMA allocation this year as compared to last.  Looking ahead, 
Finance will be working with O&M to understand the projected OH demands going forward. 
 
Chair Berger thanked Mr. Jereb on a job well done regarding the District bond refunding efforts. 
 
Informational item.  No action was taken by the Committee.  
 

9. Future Agenda Items 
Chair Berger asked if there were any agenda items for next meeting.  Mr. Jereb mentioned that he 
would present results of the audit and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  Director Kelley 
requested Finance to review the narrative for the CIP reports and replace outdated information for the 
next update.  No other agenda items were offered by District staff or the Committee. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 9:51 A.M. 
Chair Berger adjourned the meeting at 9:51 A.M. 

 
I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Finance and Audit 
Committee Meeting of November 9, 2020. 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
 Committee Chair Sheldon G. Berger 



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Q1 FY2020‐21 Financial Review

2020‐11‐09

1

Q1 FY20-21 FINANCIAL REVIEW
NOVEMBER 10, 2020

Q1 HIGHLIGHTS

PIRU RELEASE DRIVES HIGHER REVENUE AND LOWER OPEX

REVENUE

• OPERATING REVENUE 35% AHEAD OF PLAN ON STRONG PIPELINE DELIVERIES

EXPENDITURE

• PERSONNEL AND OPERATING EXPENSE ON TRACK TO PLAN

• ALLOCATED OVERHEAD RUNNING BELOW PLAN ON VACANCIES, TIMING

• CAPITAL OUTLAY AND CIP UNDERSPENT YEAR TO DATE

FUND BALANCE

• FREEMAN FUND BELOW MINIMUM BALANCE

1

2



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Q1 FY2020‐21 Financial Review

2020‐11‐09

2

Q1 OVERVIEW

SOLID REVENUE AND PRIMARY EXPENSE ITEMS AT BUDGET

REVENUE

• OPERATING REVENUE  AHEAD OF PLAN 
ON DELIVERY VOLUMES

• GRANTS AND GAAP ADJUSTMENT 
IMPACT NON-OPERATING REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

• PROF FEES AND PERSONNEL IN FUND 
510 REDUCE ALLOCATED OVERHEAD

• OTHER EXPENSE DOWN ON 
DEPRECIATION AND CAPITAL OUTLAY

in $000’s

ALL FUNDS EXCEPT 420 ABOVE MINIMUM RESERVE 
REQUIREMENTS AT YEAR END

1Q 20-21 
Actual

1Q 20-21 
Budget

1Q19-20 
Actual

Actual vs 
Plan

Actual vs 
PY

Taxes 20 12 9 61% 126%

Water Delivery/Fixed Cost 3,377 2,466 2,944 37% 15%

Groundwater 2 -                        20 0% -91%

Other Operating Revenue 139 122 1,978 13% -93%

Non-Operating Revenue 125 232 291 -46% -57%

Debt Proceeds -                       -                        -                      0% 0%

Total Revenue 3,662 2,833 5,241 29% -30%

Personnel Expense 2,099 2,081 1,897 1% 11%

Operating Expense 2,358 2,409 1,347 -2% 75%

Allocated Overhead 818 1,159 726 -29% 13%

Debt Service 1,088 1,027 1,354 6% -20%

Other 307 1,065 419 -71% -27%

Total Expenditure 6,671 7,740 5,744 -14% 16%

Q1 20-21 REVENUE

Q1 DOMINATED BY PIPELINE DELIVERIES AHEAD OF PLAN 

TOTAL REVENUE $830K OVER PLAN

• PIPELINE REVENUE $900K AHEAD 

OF PLAN ON OH VOLUMES + PV

SURFACE WATER DELIVERIES

• OTHER REVENUE INCLUDES 

GRANTS NOT INVOICED AND 

GAAP ADJUSTMENT TO 

INVESTMENT INCOME

in $000’s

3

4



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Q1 FY2020‐21 Financial Review

2020‐11‐09

3

PIPELINE REVENUE
EXCLUDING FIXED CHARGES

in $000’s

• VOLUME-DEPENDENT PIPELINE REVENUE 

UP 45% FROM PLAN

• OH DEMAND HIGHER ON 

MAINTENANCE AT OXNARD BLENDING 

FACILITY

ACTA PLAN PY vs Plan vs PY % var Plan % var PY

OH  986 703 877 283 109 40% 12%

PTP 457 383 357 74 100 19% 28%

PV 64 0 31 64 33

In‐lieu  1,284 835 1,045 449 239 54% 23%

Total Variable 2,791 1,921 2,310 870 481 45% 21%

PIPELINE VOLUME

DELIVERY VOLUME 6,995AF—70% ABOVE PLAN, 29% OVER PY

• OH UP 46% FROM PLAN WHILE PTP UP 17%; VS 
PRIOR YEAR—17% AND 8% RESPECTIVELY

• TOTAL VOLUME INCLUDES 1,300 AF TO PLEASANT 
VALLEY VS 465 YTD SEPT’19

• HIGHEST Q1 DELIVERIES SINCE 2012

• SEPT HIGHEST MONTHLY VOLUME IN A DECADE

in acre-feet

5

6



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Q1 FY2020‐21 Financial Review

2020‐11‐09

4

$000's

Q419‐20 

Actual

Q4 19‐20 

Plan

PY 

Actual

Var to 

Plan

%Var to 

Plan

Var to 

PY

%Var to 

PY
Regular Salary 1,484 1,574 1,390 ‐90 ‐6% 94 7%

Over‐time Sal 50 26 25 24 94% 25 97%

Part‐time Sal 44 58 44 ‐14 ‐25% ‐1 ‐1%

Salaries 1,578 1,658 1,460 ‐80 ‐5% 118 8%

Retirement‐ Classic 877 915 764 ‐38 ‐4% 113 15%

Retirement ‐ PEPRA 51 50 43 2 3% 8 20%

Soc Sec/401a/457b 94 95 86 ‐2 ‐2% 8 9%

OPEB Expense 7 7 7 0 5% 1 8%

Retirement PEB Expense 0 0 0 0  ‐  0  ‐ 

Medical Ins Exp ‐ Coverage 149 220 153 ‐70 ‐32% ‐3 ‐2%

Medicare Expense 23 24 21 ‐1 ‐6% 2 9%

LTD 3 4 2 ‐2 ‐37% 0 19%

Life Insurance 4 7 4 ‐3 ‐44% 0 ‐1%

SUI Expense 1 4 1 ‐4 ‐88% ‐1 ‐53%

Worker's Comp 60 39 33 21 55% 27 82%

Employee Benefits 1,269 1,365 1,113 ‐96 ‐7% 156 14%

Total Personnel Expense 2,846 3,023 2,573 ‐176 ‐6% 273 11%

PERSONNEL EXPENSES
$176K (6%) AHEAD OF PLAN, 11% OVER PY

• SALARIES UNDERRUN PARTIALLY 

OFFSET BY OVERTIME

• DRIVEN BY SILT MANAGEMENT 

AT FREEMAN

OPERATING EXPENSES
PROFESSIONAL FEES AND MAINTENANCE DRIVE PLAN UNDERRUN

• PROFESSIONAL FEES 

UNDERSPEND DUE TO 

TIMING OF CONSULTING 

PROJECTS

• LEGAL BUDGET ASSUMED 

NO INVOICING IN Q1 

(CORRECTED IN REVISED 

BUDGET)

$000's
1Q 20-21 

Actual
1Q 20-21 
Budget

1Q19-20 
Actual

Var to 

Plan

%Var to 

Plan

Var to 

PY

%Var to 

PY
Prof. Fees ‐ Environmental 45 229 112 ‐184 ‐80% ‐67 ‐60%

Prof. Fees ‐ Other 63 365 102 ‐301 ‐83% ‐39 ‐38%

Prof. Fees ‐ Engineering 13 61 6 ‐47 ‐78% 8 143%

Profess Fees ‐ Finance 24 48 46 ‐25 ‐51% ‐22 ‐48%

Prof Fees ‐ GW, IT, HR 32 66 24 ‐34 ‐51% 8 33%

Professional Fees 178 769 289 ‐591 ‐77% ‐111 ‐38%

Legal Fees 862 0 74 862 ‐ 788 1070%

Utilities 437 277 251 159 57% 185 74%

Maintenance 107 387 150 ‐280 ‐72% ‐43 ‐29%

Field Supplies 62 167 117 ‐105 ‐63% ‐55 ‐47%

Insurance 341 355 245 ‐14 ‐4% 96 39%

Office Expenses 107 86 81 21 24% 25 31%

Miscellaneous 107 167 50 ‐60 ‐36% 57 115%

Travel, Meetings, Training 3 63 28 ‐60 ‐95% ‐24 ‐88%

Gasoline, Diesel, Fuel 21 46 30 ‐25 ‐55% ‐9 ‐31%

Fox Canyon GMA 1 5 0 ‐4 ‐80% 1 935%

Safety, Supplies, Clothing 8 21 7 ‐13 ‐62% 1 10%

Telephone 11 16 15 ‐6 ‐35% ‐4 ‐28%

 General Operating Expenses 1,204 1,591 974 ‐388 ‐24% 230 24%

State Water Import Costs 333 350 223 ‐17 ‐5% 110 50%

Total Operating Expenses 2,576 2,710 1,559 ‐134 ‐5% 1,017 65%

7

8



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Q1 FY2020‐21 Financial Review

2020‐11‐09

5

SUPPLEMENTAL WATER PURCHASE FUND
STATUS UPDATE

REVENUE EXPENSE BALANCE

BEGINNING BALANCE (FCGMA-JUNE) $1,200K

INFLOWS

FCGMA GRANT (JULY) $1,800

SURCHARGE REVENUE (PIPELINE) $319

OUTFLOWS

SANTA CLARITA EXCHANGE $181

VENTURA TRANSFER $1,548

NET AVAILABLE $1,590
PROJECTED SURCHARGE $205

6/30 BALANCE $1,799

9



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

1

FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISIONS

OCTOBER 2020 RECAP

FINANCE DIVISION RECAP – OCTOBER 2020

• ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

• 399 PAYABLES PROCESSED WITH A TOTAL 

AMOUNT OF $1.5M

• PAYROLL 

• GROSS: $519K

• NET: $347K

• PAYROLL – CONTINUED 

• PAID 10 PAYROLL-RELATED VENDORS A 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF $347K

• 296 HOURS OF OVERTIME WORKED

• 3% OF REGULAR HOURS

• 180 PAID OUT

• 114 ACCRUED AS COMP TIME

1

2



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

2

FINANCE DIVISION RECAP, CONTINUED 
OCTOBER 2020

• OCTOBER 2020 PIPELINE:

$ Billed Actual 
AF

Plan AF Variance

OH $857K 1,435 835 600

PT $387K 841 770 71

PV $121K 752 0 752

• YTD Oct deliveries 75% ahead of Plan and 38% over PY 
• 67% of FY Plan delivered to date 
• Excluding PV deliveries, volumes 38%, 16% ahead of Plan 

& PY

FINANCE DIVISION RECAP, CONTINUED 
OCTOBER 2020

• CASH COLLECTIONS: TOTAL $1.1M

• PIPELINE: $1,032K

• GROUNDWATER: $11K

• RENTS: $22K

• TAXES: $8K

• ELECTRICITY: $27K

• GSA/MODELING REVENUE: $4K

3

4



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

3

FINANCE DIVISION RECAP, CONTINUED 
OCTOBER 2020

 COMPLETED FY 19-20 AUDIT FIELDWORK.

 FINANCE STAFF COMPLETED FY 19-20 PURCHASE ORDER AND CIP BUDGET ROLLOVERS.

 MET WITH DEPARTMENT MANAGERS TO REVIEW THEIR CURRENT YTD SPEND AND CREATE AN UPDATED
PROJECTION OF TOTAL FY 20-21 SPEND

 ATTENDED A KICKOFF MEETING FOR THE INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN REGARDING
THE FIRST GRANT INVOICE

 CONTROLLER LEAVE OF ABSENCE EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 19, 2020 WITH ANTICIPATED RETURN DATE IN
MARCH 2021

 RECRUITED TEMPORARY ACCOUNTANT

 COMPLETED PRICING/SALE OF 2020 COP ISSUE WITH ANTICIPATED CLOSE DATE OF NOVEMBER 10

2020 COP UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020

• PRICING/SALE ON OCTOBER 27

• AGGRESSIVE PRICING—UNDERWRITER WAS 

CONFIDENT OF DEMAND

• INITIAL RESISTANCE, SOME ISSUES 

UNDERSUBSCRIBED—RELATIVELY SMALL ISSUE IN 

CROWDED MARKET

• NEGOTIATIONS WITH VANGUARD REACHED 

SALE OF LARGE TERM BONDS

• VANGUARD REPUTATION FOR CREDIT 

SENSITIVITY

• UNDERWRITER PURCHASED REMAINING ISSUE 

AT RELEASE PRICE

Release Scale Repricing Scale Change

True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.57% 2.61% 0.04%

Par Amount 26,545,000         26,665,000         120,000           

Total Interest 16,622,028         16,698,799         76,770              

Total Debt Service 43,167,028         43,363,799         196,770           

Gross Savings 4,381,831           4,345,506           (36,325)            

Net PV Savings 3,081,608           3,030,320           (51,288)            

Percentage savings of refunded bonds 23.93% 23.53% (0)                       

Results of Repricing

5

6



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

4

2020 COP UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020

2020 COP UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020

• ORDERS AS OF 8:00AM 

7

8



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

5

2020 COP UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020

2020 COP UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020

NET RESULT:

9

10



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

6

HUMAN RESOURCES RECAP
OCTOBER 2020

 FINALIZED OPEN ENROLLMENT FOR HEALTH CARE PLANS FOR ALL CHANGES REQUESTED.

 FSA AND AFLAC STILL OPEN UNTIL END OF THE YEAR.

 COMPLETED ONBOARDING PAPERWORK FOR FOLLOWING POSITIONS:

 RECHARGE O&M WORKER I (2 NEW HIRES AND 1 PROMOTION) STRENGTHENING AN EXCEPTIONAL O&M DEPARTMENT

 PART TIME FIELD ASSISTANTS (4 STAFF) STRENGTHENING OUR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES TEAM

 BEGAN COORDINATION OF NEW RECRUITMENT FOR INSTRUMENT & ELECTRICAL TECHNICIAN POSITION AFTER PREVIOUSLY

SELECTED CANDIDATE ABRUPTLY WITHDREW FROM CONSIDERATION.

 PROCESSED EMPLOYEE EVALUATIONS AND STEP INCREASES THAT WERE SCHEDULED FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER.

 SUBMITTED QUARTERLY EMPLOYEE LIST TO SEIU PER AB 119.

 COORDINATED DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REQUIRED TESTING TO COMPLY WITH DOT REQUIREMENTS

 PROCESSED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL CHANGES INTO INCODE (ADDRESS CHANGES, TAX CHANGES, CHANGES IN DEDUCTIONS,

BASE PAY MODIFICATIONS, AND APPROVED CASH OUT REQUESTS SUBMITTED)

 WORKED WITH SDRMA TO ADD OR MODIFY DISTRICT VEHICLES AS APPROPRIATE ON OUR INSURANCE POLICY.

 WORKED IN COORDINATION WITH VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS TO POST JOB LISTINGS, SCHEDULED INTERVIEWS TO FILL

VACANCIES / PROMOTIONS

RISK MANAGEMENT RECAP
OCTOBER 2020

 ATTENDED OSHA CONFINED SPACE TRAINING COURSE (10/27) WHICH WILL CONTINUE TRAINING

EFFORTS TO MINIMIZE INSURANCE COSTS TO DISTRICT IN 2021-2022 WHEN RENEWAL OCCURS.

 COORDINATED REPLENISHMENT OF FIRST AID VEHICLE KITS AS WELL AS CABINETS AT ALL DISTRICT

LOCATIONS.

 PROVIDED TRAINING ON BLOOD BORNE PATHOGENS SAFETY, BRIEFED STAFF ON COVID-19

DEVELOPMENTS, AND PROVIDED GENERAL AWARENESS TRAINING ON SAFE DRIVING (AS PART OF

DISTRACTED DRIVING AWARENESS MONTH).

 ASSIGNED SAFETY TRAININGS FOR NEW STAFF ON BOARDED IN THE PAST MONTH TO COINCIDE

WITH THEIR ROLE AND DEPARTMENT ASSIGNMENT.

 EVALUATED AND ENGAGED WITH VENDORS AND KEY INTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS ON DEVELOPMENT

OF A NEW SAFETY DATA SHEET (SDS) MANAGEMENT SYSTEM THAT WILL ENHANCE DISTRICT SAFETY,

PROVIDE EFFICIENCIES FOR STAFF, AND ENSURE OSHA COMPLIANCE WITH SDS STANDARDS.

11

12



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

7

RISK MANAGEMENT RECAP (CONTINUED)
OCTOBER 2020

 COLLABORATED WITH AWA VC EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SUBCOMMITTEE ON TESTING EMERGENCY

NOTIFICATION SYSTEM.

 IN COORDINATION WITH O&M CHIEF WATER TREATMENT OPERATOR, COORDINATED REGIONAL TRAINING

WITH LOCAL FD HAZMAT UNITS.

 ATTENDED OSHA CONFINED SPACE TRAINING COURSE (10/27) WHICH WILL CONTINUE TRAINING EFFORTS

TO MINIMIZE INSURANCE COSTS TO DISTRICT IN 2021-2022 WHEN RENEWAL OCCURS.

 REVIEWED & ASSIGNED MONTHLY DAILY TRAINING BULLETINS FOR PARK RANGER STAFF.

 REVIEWED CPR/FIRST AID/AED TRAINING OPTIONS FOR CURRENT PANDEMIC.

 PUBLISHED COMMUNICATION/AWARENESS TO STAFF ON FLU VACCINE ENCOURAGEMENT AND CYBER

SECURITY TIPS AS PART OF NATIONAL CYBER SECURITY AWARENESS MONTH.

 REVIEWED EXISTING EARTHQUAKE PREPAREDNESS KIT AND COMPILED ITEMS NEEDED FOR KITS AT HQ, EL

RIO, AND SATICOY.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECAP
OCTOBER 2020

 PROVIDED WEBEX/ZOOM IT COORDINATION FOR VARIOUS MONTHLY BOARD AND COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

 CONTINUED TO OPTIMIZE UWCD BOARD ROOM AND MEETING ROOM SPACES WITH ADDITIONAL
TECHNOLOGY REQUEST.

 BOARD CHAMBERS UPDATED WITH A CAMERA AND PC CASTING COMPATIBLE WITH ZOOM/WEBEX/TEAMS
 COMPLETED THE PRELIMINARY MOVE-ORDER FOR MIGRATING LAKE PIRU RANGER PHONE NUMBERS INTO

THE HQ VOIP SYSTEM.
 COMPLETED AN IN-DEPTH ANALYSIS OF NETWORK ACTIVITY DUE TO A VENDOR ADVISORY OF SUSPICIOUS

ACTIVITY REPORTS OF THEIR OWN NETWORKS. COORDINATED WITH FINANCE AND HR TO ENSURE ALL
ACTIVITY WAS GENERATED BY A UWCD STAFF REQUESTED SUPPORT CALL.

 FINALIZED A REPLACEMENT WINDOWS 2016 CONTROLLER SERVER THAT WILL LEAD TO A REPLACEMENT OF
THE PREVIOUS CONTROLLER UTILIZED BY THE DISTRICT WHICH HAS REACHED ITS END LIFE STATE.

 REVIEWED FERC CYBER DOCUMENTATION WITH THE STAFF SUPPORTING THE LICENSING REQUIREMENTS.
o CYBER INCIDENT RESPONSE PLAN DEVELOPMENT
o IT BACKUP AND RECOVERY PLAN DEVELOPMENT
o IT PATCH MANAGEMENT PLAN DEVELOPMENT

13

14



UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Meeting 
Admin Department Monthly Recap

2020‐11‐09

8

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY RECAP
OCTOBER 2020 (CONTINUED)

 VISITED SATICOY AND EL RIO FOR VARIOUS NETWORK RELATED CHANGES TO PHYSICAL CONNECTIONS.
 NEW STAFF STARTING AT THE DISTRICT, PHYSICAL DISTANCING HAVE US CREATING SOME NEW

WORKSPACES
 CHANGES TO EL RIO NETWORK SWITCHES AND PROCEEDED WITH CREATING NEW BACKUP COPIES OF

CERTAIN SWITCH CONFIGURATIONS BEFORE MAKING THE AFOREMENTIONED ADJUSTMENTS.
 FORMATTED END OF LIFE LAPTOP FROM STORAGE WITH NEW OS/OFFICE SUITE/ANTI-VIRUS. TRANSPORTED

AND SETUP A/V EQUIPMENT IN SATICOY SHOP FOR DISTRICTS MONTH LONG TOUR OF THE FREEMAN
DIVERSION WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS.

 ORDERED COMPUTER EQUIPMENT FOR OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AND ENGINEERING.
 ORDERED VARIOUS IT EQUIPMENT FOR CONFERENCING ROOM REQUIREMENTS.
 PURCHASED HIGH END CONFERENCE CAMERAS, ACCESSORIES, AND CABLES/SURGE PROTECTORS.
 ORDERED USB HEADSETS, MICE FOR USE IN VARIOUS ENVIRONMENTS, ACCESSORIES WILL BE ASSIGNED TO

STAFF THAT WILL REQUIRE DEVICE USAGE DURING DISTRICTS MS TEAMS, ZOOM, OR WEBEX MEETINGS.
 ORDERED AND REPLACED SEVERAL HARD DRIVES FOR SEVERAL DISTRICT LAPTOPS
 ORDERED/REFURBISHED NEW AND EXISITING EQUIPMENT PROVISIONED FOR RECENT STAFFING CHANGES.
 HELPDESK TRACKING: 14 NEW REQUEST TICKETS WERE OPENED IN OCTOBER 2020

LAKE PIRU RECREATION UPDATE
OCTOBER 2020 

OCTOBER VISITATION COMPARISON - (2020 VS. 2019)

• TOTAL DAY USE TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 458% (6289 VS. 

1126)

• PERSONS ENTERING THE PARK INCREASED BY 133% 

(5934 PERSONS VS. 2540)

• VEHICLE TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 233% (2591 VS. 801)

• VESSEL TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 40% (635 VS. 453)

• NIGHTS CAMPED INCREASED BY 5% (618 VS. 589)

• OCTOBER REVENUE DATA: NOT YET AVAILABLE.

SEPTEMBER VISITATION COMPARISON - (2020 VS. 2019)

• TOTAL DAY USE TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 73% (7664 VS. 
4437)

• PERSONS ENTERING THE PARK INCREASED BY 29% 
(7781 VS. 6025)

• VEHICLE TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 60% (3109 VS. 1945)

• VESSEL TRAFFIC INCREASED BY 62% (760 VS. 468)

• NIGHTS CAMPED INCREASED BY 47% (686 VS. 468)

• SEPTEMBER REVENUE COMPARISON, 2020 VS. 2019

• REVENUE INCREASED 19.5% ($103,759 VS. $86,760)

15

16



Staff Report 

To: UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members 

Through: Mauricio E. Guardado Jr., General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

From: Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 

Date: November 19, 2020 (December 8, 2020 Meeting) 

Agenda Item:     3. (Board Agenda Item 3.D.) Audited FY 2019-20 Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 
 Information Item

Staff Recommendation:  
The Committee will receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2020.   

Discussion:  
At the end of the District’s fiscal year, July 1 through June 30, its financial records are reviewed 
and audited by an independent auditor to determine if the District’s financial statements are fairly 
presented, in all material respects, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  

It is the auditor’s opinion that the financial statements for fiscal year July 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2020, are presented fairly, in all material respects, and are in conformity with accounting 
principles.  Representatives from Vasquez & Company, LLP, are scheduled to meet with the 
Finance Committee on December 8, 2020, and with the Board of Directors on December 9, 2020, 
to present the CAFR to the Committee and Board, and to discuss their findings and 
recommendations.   



~ United Water 
~ CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

December 6, 2020 

To the Honorable Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District: 

Board of Directors 
Michael W. Mobley, President 
Bruce E. Dandy, Vice-President 
Sheldon G. Berger Secretaryffreasurer 
Patrick J. Kelley 
Lynn E. Mau\hardt 
Edwin T. McFadden Ill 
Daniel C. Naumann 

General Manager 
Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 

Legal Counsel 
David D. Boyer 

We are pleased to present the United Water Conservation District's (District) Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2020. This report was prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles as implemented by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) and other accounting and rulemaking bodies. 

District management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that has been 
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed its anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable , rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 

Vasquez and Company LLP, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified opinion on the 
District's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. The independent auditor's report is located 
at the front of the financial section of this report (pages 1-3). 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor's report and 
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A 
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

In 1925, the founding organization of today's United Water Conservation District, the Santa Clara River 
Protection Association (Association) , was formed to protect the runoff of the Santa Clara River from being 
exported outside the watershed. This effort was successful , and in 1927, the Association was reorganized 
into the Santa Clara Water Conservation District by vote of the county residents. 

In 1950, the voters approved the formation of the District under the State Water Conservation Act of 1931 , 
as the United Water Conservation District, to recognize the projected population growth within the District 
and the need for a reliable water source. The Santa Clara Water Conservation District was then dissolved 
and the assets transferred to the District. This allowed the District to issue bonds in order to raise funding 
for construction of the Santa Felicia Dam (SFD) , creating Lake Piru and other conservation facilities. The 
District is divided into seven divisions and is governed by an elected seven-member Board of Directors, 
serving four-year staggered terms. 

The District covers approximately 214,000 acres in central Ventura County, California. The District 
administers a "basin management" program for the sub-basins that make up the Santa Clara River Valley 
Basin , utilizing the Santa Clara River and its tributaries for replenishment of groundwater. 

The District's facilities include the Santa Felicia Dam, Lake Piru and Lake Piru Recreation Area, Saticoy, El 
Rio and Piru groundwater recharge facilities, the Freeman Diversion, the Saticoy Well Field, the Pleasant 
Valley, Oxnard-Hueneme and Pumping Trough delivery systems (pipelines) that include wells , treatment 
facilities, reservoirs and booster pumping stations. 



United Water Conservation District Board of Directors 
December 6, 2020 

The District's mission is to manage, protect, conserve and enhance the water resources of the District and 
produce a reliable and sustainable supply of groundwater for the reasonable and beneficial use of all users. 
This mission statement is the foundation of the District's Strategic Plan Framework which provides the 
overall policy direction for District staff to manage and prioritize its programs and activities. 

The Board adopts the District's annual operating and capital improvement budget by no later than June 30th 

for the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 through June 30). The budget is prepared by staff on a fund , 
department, account and project basis in order to proportionally allocate costs to the District's primary cost 
centers (funds) and submitted to the Board in a fund-account presentation with a detailed discussion of the 
proposed budget, which is reviewed and deliberated on from approximately May 1 until the public hearing 
in June when the spending plan is adopted. 

Local Economy 

The District is located in the center of Ventura County, a county with a strong economic base with a large 
and diverse labor pool. The area includes major industries: agriculture, biotechnology, telecommunications 
and advanced technologies, manufacturing, tourism, and military testing and development. The Port of 
Hueneme (which is located within the boundaries of the District) is the State's smallest port, but it is the 
only deep-water port between Los Angeles and San Francisco and plays a significant role in the local 
economy. 

Some of the best soil in the nation for agriculture production resides within Ventura County. According to 
the latest Ventura County Agricultural Commission Crop and Livestock Report, the gross crop value for 
calendar year 2019 was $2.0 billion , approximately $110 million less than 2018, representing a 5% 
decrease. Within the District boundaries, agriculture remains especially important along the coastal Oxnard 
Plain and the interior Santa Clara Valley communities of Santa Paula, Fillmore and Piru . 

Economic indicators for Ventura County show continued signs of an underperforming economy. 2019 was 
the fourth continuous year with low or negative GDP growth. County wide population decreased for the 
second consecutive year to 846,000, down from 848,000 in 2018, according to the US Census Bureau. The 
unemployment rate for December 2019 was 3.6%, which improved by 0.2 percentage points over the prior 
year figure . 

In FY 2019-20 property assessment for the County increased 5.4% as compared to FY 2018-19. The 
County Assessor's Office announced that in FY 2020-21 , countywide property tax assessments will 
increase 2.1%, which will have a positive impact on the District's General Fund. 

Short and Long-term Financial Planning Outlook 

In FY 2019-20, the District issued no new debt, however, some new debt was issued in November, 2020 
which refinanced existing debt at favorable terms and raised $19 million to fund various capital improvement 
projects. The capital improvement projects completed in FY 2019-20 were, the renovation of the District 
headquarters in Oxnard and a microwave communications tower in Santa Paula. During the fiscal year, 
design work continued on the largest CIP projects at the Santa Felicia Dam and Freeman Diversion. 

In FY 2019-20, District staff and consultants continued to work with state and federal regulatory agencies 
(NOAA Marine Fisheries Service, US Fish and Wildlife Service, and California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife) to further develop the District's Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) for the 
Freeman Diversion facility. On June 30, 2020, the District completed the fourth administrative draft of the 
MSHCP, meeting an ambitious court ordered deadline. The court order stipulates scheduled milestones 
for future steps related to design, modeling, and final selection of a preferred fish passage facility , which 
is a primary element of the MSHCP. 

ii 



United Water Conservation District Board of Directors 
December 6, 2020 

During FY 2019-20, the District continued work to remediate the spillway capacity and overtopping risk 
during a Probable Maximum Flood (PMF) event at the SFD. The evaluation study was required by the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and California Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) to 
address deficiencies identified in the PMF studies. Consultants were hired to perform the evaluation of the 
alternatives. A series of proposed flood remediation projects that would reduce the risk to people and 
property below Santa Felicia Dam were presented to the FERC and DSOD. With the regulators acceptance 
of an inflow design flood of 220,000 cubic feet per second (cfs) as the level of risk reduction for the design, 
the District awarded a contract for the design of the spillway improvements based on the 220,000 cfs inflow 
in May 2016. The District has convened an independent Board of Consultants (BOC) to provide oversight 
and quality assurance of the project design and construction. In parallel with the design, a consulting team 
is working to prepare the necessary environmental documents for the projects to comply with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) . 

The District also progressed in addressing the seismic adequacy of the outlet works at the SFD. A 2012 
evaluation determined that the structure is vulnerable to deformation in a seismic event. The District is now 
pursuing design and permitting for construction of new outlet works at the dam which will meet current 
seismic standards. At FERC direction, the District convened an independent Board of Consultants (BOC) 
to provide peer review and quality assurance of the project design and construction . The BOC reviewed 
the 10% design and in December 2019, recommended the District proceed with the next phase of design. 
The design packet was then submitted to FERC and DWR in March 2020. To date, the District has spent 
nearly $2.8 million on the outlet works project. 

In March 2019, the District retained consultants to advance the design of the dam improvement alternatives 
recommended by the BOC in 2018. During FY2019-20, the 10% design phase was completed for the outlet 
works project and the spillway containment project. The design packet for the latter was submitted to FERC 
in March 2020. The District is also finalizing the NEPA documentation and FERC's non-capacity license 
amendment application with support of environmental consultants for a total contract amount of 
$381 ,000. This process is expected to be finalized by November 2020. 

To the extent practicable, the District continued efforts to comply with the environmental requirements 
contained in its license issued by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) for the Santa Felicia 
Project (Project) throughout FY 2019-20. Compliance activities included implementation of approved 
resource protection plans (Water Release Plan; the Soil , Erosion and Sediment Management Plan; the 
Herpetological Monitoring Plan and Arroyo Toad Protection Plan ; the Vegetation and Noxious Weed 
Management Plan ; the Land Resource Management; and the Dissolved Oxygen Management Plan) , and 
consultation with regulatory agencies to satisfy remain ing outstanding requirements. In response to the 
COVI D-19 pandemic, some activities that were considered non-essential and could not be conducted 
implementing safe, socially distanced procedures, were temporarily suspended. 

While recreation is not part of the core operation of the District, providing public access to, and recreational 
facilities at, Lake Piru is a requirement of the permit that was issued as part of the construction of the Santa 
Felicia Dam in 1955. The District currently operates these facilities though an agreement with an onsite 
recreation concessions service and provides District support staff to oversee those operations and maintain 
facilities. The concessions service, Parks Management Company (PMC) , who entered into an agreement 
with the District on January 1, 2014, has focused on establishing consistent services and enhancing the 
facilities . On February 15, 201 7, the District approved a contract revision with PMC. Under the new 
agreement terms, PMC collects all revenues and bills the District for all expenses, including up to a 15% 
profit margin, not covered by the revenues collected. In the event revenues exceed expenses, the District 
is entitled to all revenues above the monthly expense, less the 15% profit margin . The additional projected 
annual cost to the District, under the new agreement, ranges from $350,000 to $450,000. 

iii 



United Water Conservation District Board of Directors 
December 6, 2020 

In December 2013, the District discovered the invasive species quagga mussels in the District's Lake 
Piru. In FY 2019-2020, quagga mussels continued to be a topic of concern for the District. The District is 
developing a Lake Piru Quagga Mussel Monitoring and Control Plan . In September 2018, United submitted 
an eighth revision of the plan to California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). CDFW responded that 
the plan remains non-compliant due to water releases from the dam. In FY 2019-20, the District continued 
and expanded its comprehensive monitoring program , consistent with the draft plan for Lake Piru and the 
larger watershed. Additionally, the District contracted scientific dive teams to conduct physical removal 
efforts from infrastructure in the lake. During the year, the state continued its review of the District's 
application for use of a molluscicide to control quagga mussels in the reservoir. The District will continue 
dedicating resources to aid in managing the quagga mussel infestation, including implementing various 
control and potential eradication measures, and to maintain compliance with state and federal law 
pertaining to invasive species. 

In FY 2019-20 the District continued to mount a defense in the lawsuits filed by the City of San 
Buenaventura ("Ventura") over groundwater extraction rates approved by the Board for FY 2011-12 through 
FY 2015-16. A subsequent action was filed by Ventura challenging the extraction rates approved for FY 
2019-20. The District filed an appeal of the Santa Barbara Superior Court's September 6, 2013 decision 
ordering the District to pay the City a partial refund of groundwater extraction fees from FY 2011-12 and FY 
2012-13. The Court of Appeal issued its decision and found in favor of the District. The City appealed the 
case to the State Supreme Court, which heard the case in September 2017. The Supreme Court issued a 
published decision on December 4, 2017. In the decision, the Supreme Court affirmed the conclusion of 
the Court of Appeal that the groundwater extraction charges are not property related , but remanded the 
remainder of the matter to the Court of Appeal with instructions to consider whether the record sufficiently 
establishes that the District's rates for the 2011-2012 and the 2012-2013 water years bore a reasonable 
relationship to the burdens on or the benefits of its conservation activities. Thereafter, the Court of Appeal 
remanded the matter back to the Superior Court with instructions to remand the matter back to the District 
to allow the District the opportunity to supplement the administrative record. In the meantime, the Superior 
Court has stayed the challenges to the District's extraction rates for FY 2013-14, FY 2014-15. A trial has 
been scheduled for the 2019 challenge in December 2020. 

On June 2, 2016, the Wishtoyo Foundation , its Ventura Coastkeeper Program , and the Center for 
Biological Diversity ("Plaintiffs") filed a complaint for declaratory and injunctive relief with the US District 
Court, Central District of California. The complaint alleged that the District's operation and maintenance of 
the Freeman Diversion resulted in unauthorized take of federally protected fish and avian species in 
violation of the federal Endangered Species Act (ESA). The District Court conducted trial in December 
2017 and January 2018. On October 4, 2018 the District Court entered a Judgment and Permanent 
Injunction in favor of Plaintiffs. An Amended Judgment and Permanent Injunction ("Amended Judgment") 
was entered on December 1, 2018, which vacated and superseded the October 4, 2018 Judgment and 
Permanent Injunction. Thereafter, the District Court issued an Order Awarding Attorney's Fees and Costs 
to Plaintiffs ("Order"). The District then appealed the Amended Judgment and of the Order and stayed 
enforcement of the Order until after conclusion of the Appeal. In June 2020, the Court of Appeal affirmed 
the district court judgement of October 2018 and the awarded attorneys' fees of approximately $3.4 
million to the plaintiff. The District remains in compliance with the requirements of the Court's injunction. 

The District continues to face some significant, but unknown, costs both in the short and long term. 
Compliance with environmental and regulatory mandates are the largest expected impacts while 
rehabilitation and/or replacement of aging infrastructure will be necessary to prevent operational impacts. 
Moving forward as the required actions become clear, the District will need to determine how to finance the 
identified capital projects and their associated costs. 

While rainfall in the last two years has been at or above normal levels the need remains to capture and 
store water when available. It is abundantly clear that management of a sustainable water supply is critical 

iv 



United Water Conservation District Board of Directors '\-1, December 6, 2020 

to the long-term economic viability of the region . Finding solutions to meet the region 's water needs must 
be achieved through coordinated efforts amongst the region 's leading water agencies. United Water 
Conservation District remains committed to optimizing its resources to bring solutions that benefit its 
constituents. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

The District has written detailed financial policies for: 

• Reserves 
• Investments 
• Budget Amendments 
• Budget Submittal/Preparation 
• Procurement 
• Expense Reimbursement (Includes 

Disclosure of Government Code Section 
53065.5) 

• Capital Assets 
• Vehicle and Equipment Replacement and 

Maintenance 
• Engineering Projects and Contract 

Administration 
• Records Management, Retention and 

Destruction 

Major Issues/Challenges 

• Fraud Prevention and Detection 
• Environmental Activity Cost Allocation 
• Disposition of Surplus Assets 
• Accounts Receivables and Write-offs 
• Debt Management 
• Auditor Rotation & Selection 
• Employee Recognition 
• Groundwater Well Registration and 

Inactive Wells 
• Identity Theft Protection 
• Verification of Groundwater Production 

Statement 
• Continuing disclosure to investors in debt 

issues 

As discussed in the section entitled "Short and Long-Term Financial Planning", the District faces some 
substantial financial challenges and uncertainties as a result of: 

• Section 10 Endangered Species Act compliance for the operation of the Freeman Diversion. 
• Section 7 Endangered Species Act and FERC mandate compliance for the operation of the Santa 

Felicia Dam . 
• FERC and DSOD expected requirements for modifications of the SFD spillway and possibly the 

dam's parapet wall after analysis of a series of proposed alternative flood remediation projects 
(PMF/PMP). 

• Aging and structural deficiencies in existing infrastructure that must be rehabilitated to continue on-
going operations related to the District's water conservation requirements . 

• A lawsuit filed and judgment against the District by the Wishtoyo Foundation. 
• A lawsuit filed against the District by the City of San Buenaventura. 
• The quagga mussel infestation and operational challenges of the recreation activities at Lake Piru . 

Conclusion 

Despite the many challenges, the District remains optimistic and committed to fulfilling its mission of 
managing, protecting, conserving and enhancing the region 's water supply to produce a reliable and 
sustainable supply of groundwater for the reasonable and beneficial use of all users. The District will pull 
from its professional staff and resources to strategically and collaboratively address each challenge while 
seizing every opportunity to positively impact the region 's water resources. Some foreseeable opportunities 
and solutions are within the areas of recycled water use, desalted groundwater technology, state-water 
deliveries, as well as increased storage and recharge capacity. 

V 



United Water Conservation District Board of Directors 
December 6, 2020 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its comprehensive annual 
financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the District must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report must 
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Staff believes that the current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and is submitting it to the 
GFOA to determine its eligibility for their certificate. 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to thank the entire staff (in particular the Finance Department) for their contributions and 
assistance in the preparation of this year's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The operational and 
logistical challenges of the COVI D circumstances have highlighted the professionalism and dedication of 
staff to the District mission. We would also like to recognize the efforts of the District's auditors, Vasquez 
and Company LLP. Finally, to the Board of Directors, sincere appreciation for its leadership and support 
in maintaining sound financial systems and processes that reflect the integrity, reliability and accuracy to 
which District staff are committed . 

submitted , 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 
General Manager 

vi 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

United Water Conservation District 
Audited Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With Report of Independent Auditors



 

United Water Conservation District 
Audited Financial Statements 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2020 
With Report of Independent Auditors



United Water Conservation District  
Table of Contents  

 
 

 

 PAGE
INTRODUCTORY SECTION: 

Letter of Transmittal i
GFOA Certificate of Achievement vii
List of Principal Officials viii
Organizational Chart ix

 
FINANCIAL SECTION: 
Report of Independent Auditors 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 3
Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 9
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 10
Statement of Cash Flows 11
Notes to Financial Statements 12

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited) 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 53
Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 54
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios  55
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions 56
 

STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited) 
Table of Contents 57
Net Position by Component 58
Changes in Net Position  59
Revenue by Source 60
Water Production 61
Groundwater Pumping by Zone 62
Groundwater Charge Rates 63
Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge 64
Pleasant Valley and Pumping Trough Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge 65
10 Largest Customers by Revenues 66
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 67
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 68
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 69
Summary of Historic Operating Results and Pledge-Revenue  
 and Non-Pledge Debt Service Coverage 70
Demographic and Economic Statistics of Ventura County 71
Operating Information 75

 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Introductory Section 















 
 
 
 

-vii- 
 



 
 
 
 

-viii- 
 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS 

FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Michael W. Mobley, President 

Representing Division 2 
 

Bruce E. Dandy, Vice-President 
Representing Division 5 

 
Sheldon G. Berger, Secretary/Treasurer 

Representing Division 7 
 

Patrick J. Kelley, Board Member 
Representing Division 3 

 
Lynn E. Maulhardt, Board Member 

Representing Division 4 
 

Edwin T. McFadden III, Board Member 
Representing Division 1 

 
Daniel C. Naumann, Board Member 

Representing Division 6 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 
 

Mauricio E. Guardado Jr., General Manager 
David D. Boyer, Legal Counsel



Organizational Chart 

-ix- 

 



 

1 

 
 

Report of Independent Auditors  
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
United Water Conservation District  
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the United Water Conservation District 
(the District) which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2020, and the related 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 



 

2 

 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the United Water Conservation District as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in 
its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 8, the Schedule of Changes in the Net 
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and OPEB Plan Contributions on pages 53 to 54, and the Schedule 
of the Pension Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios and Pension 
Plan Contributions on pages 55 and 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the 
statistical section as identified in the accompanying table of contents are presented for additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them.  
 
 

 
Glendale, California 
December 2, 2020 



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

3 

 
As management of United Water Conservation District (the District), we offer readers of the District’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here 
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can 
be found on pages i - vi of this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $103 million (net 
position). Of this amount, $19.2 million represents unrestricted net position, which may be 
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to constituents and creditors. 
 

 The District’s total long-term liabilities increased by $2.2 million during the current fiscal year 
due to increase in Accrued Legal Liability with Wishtoyo and Compensated Absences (see 
note 17). 
 

 The District’s total net position increased $6.6 million from the prior fiscal year’s net position 
due to delays in project expenses. 
 

 The District’s operating revenues increased by $4.4 million or 18% from $24.1 million in fiscal 
year 2019 to $28.6 million in fiscal year 2020.  
 

 The District’s operating expenses increased by $5 million or 20% from $24.7 million in fiscal 
year 2019 to $29.8 million in fiscal year 2020.  

 
 
GENERAL OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This annual report includes the basic financial statements. The Statement of Net Position, Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows provide 
information about the activities and performance of the District. 
 
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's investments in resources (assets) and the 
obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating 
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.  All 
of the current year's revenue and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the success of the District's 
operations over the past year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully recovered 
all of its costs through its rates and other charges. This statement can also be used to evaluate fiscal 
stability and creditworthiness.  
 
The final required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows, which provides information 
about the District's cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. The Statement of 
Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operations, 
investing, noncapital financing, and capital and related financing activities. 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided 
in the basic financial statements.  



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

4 

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 
 
One of the most important questions asked about the District's finances is, "Is the District better off or 
worse off as a result of this year's activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the District in a way that 
helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when the cash is received 
or paid. 
 
These two statements report the District's net position and changes in them. One can think of the 
District's net position - the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources - as a way to measure the District's financial health or financial 
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position are one indicator of whether 
its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, one will need to consider other non-financial 
factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth, and new or changed government 
legislation, such as changes in Federal and State water quality standards. 
 
Summary of Net Position 
 

 
 
As noted earlier, over time, changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's 
financial condition. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $103.0 million and $96.4 million as of June 
30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
 

2020 2019 Amount %

Current assets $ 36,604,695   $ 33,522,434   $ 3,082,261   9.2%
Capital assets 95,535,648   89,738,822   5,796,826   6.5%
Restricted cash and investments 815,647        854,146        (38,499)       -4.5%
Net OPEB asset 66,103          -                    66,103        100.0%

Total assets 133,022,093 124,115,402 8,906,691   7.2%

Deferred outflows of resources 3,218,869     3,333,740     (114,871)     -3.4%

Current liabilities 4,531,599     4,463,473     68,126        1.5%
Long-term liabilities 27,459,109   25,212,893   2,246,216   8.9%

Total liabilities 31,990,708   29,676,366   2,314,342   7.8%

Deferred inflows of resources 1,212,683     1,356,356     (143,673)     -10.6%

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 81,204,599   75,044,332   6,160,267   8.2%
Restricted 2,573,713     2,008,166     565,547      28.2%
Unrestricted 19,259,259   19,363,922   (104,663)     -0.5%

Total net position $ 103,037,571 $ 96,416,420   $ 6,621,151   6.9%

June 30,



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

5 

 
Total assets increased $8.9 million or 7.2% in the current year primarily due to acquisition of new 
headquearters in Oxnard.  
 
Total liabilities increased by $2.3 million or 7.8% due to increase in Accrued Legal Liability with 
Wishtoyo and Compensated Absences. 
 
At the end of fiscal years 2020 and 2019, the District shows a positive balance in unrestricted net 
position of $19.2 million and $19.4 million, respectively. 
 
Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
 
The following schedule provides a summary of the District's changes in net position for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019: 
 

 
 

The increase or decrease in net position can provide an indication as to whether the financial position 
of the District improved or deteriorated during the year. The change in net position was $6.6 million 
and $3.4 million in fiscal years 2020 and 2019, respectively. 
 
The reasons for significant changes in the revenues and expenses of the District noted in the previous 
schedules are as follows: 
 
Revenues 
Charges for services continue to be the District's main source of revenue which primarily consist of 
groundwater extraction fees and pipeline deliveries. Charges for services increased by $4.4 million or 
18% during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 due to increase in pipeline deliveries and Board 
approved rates. 

2020 2019 Amount %
Revenues
Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 28,640,249   $ 24,183,190   $ 4,457,059 18.4%
Nonoperating revenues:

Property taxes 2,869,564     2,808,174     61,390      2.2%
Grants and contributions 174,684        323,221        (148,537)   -46.0%
Investment earnings 700,083        718,953        (18,870)     -2.6%
Other income 2,993,251     286,943        2,706,308 943.2%
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,034,650     (161,104)       1,195,754 -742.2%

Total revenues 36,412,481   28,159,377   8,253,104 29.3%

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 10,710,800   9,655,701     1,055,099 10.9%
Services and supplies 15,863,934   11,812,104   4,051,830 34.3%
Depreciation 2,478,288     2,487,963     (9,675)       -0.4%
Interest expense 729,460        780,770        (51,310)     -6.6%
Other expenses 8,848            8,903            (55)            -0.6%

Total expenses 29,791,330   24,745,441   5,045,889 20.4%
Change in net position 6,621,151     3,413,936     3,207,215 93.9%
Beginning net position 96,416,420   93,002,484   3,413,936 3.7%

Ending net position $ 103,037,571 $ 96,416,420   $ 6,621,151 6.9%

Increase (Decrease)June 30, 



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

6 

 
The other remaining revenue is derived from property taxes and investment earnings. Other income 
in the current year includes refund of legal judgment from City of Ventura lawsuit, gain on sale of old 
headquarters in Santa Paula and Fox Canyon GMA revenue. 
 
Expenses 
Significant increase in services and supplies was due to completion of new headquarters in Oxnard 
and legal fees for Wishtoyo case. Increase in salaries and benefits is primarily due to vacant positions  
in Administrative and Finance divisions which were filled during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 
as well as increase in merit and cost-of-living compensation.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets as of June 30 is summarized as follows: 
 

 
 
As of June 30, 2020, the District had approximately $95.5 million invested in capital assets including 
land, construction in progress, dams, structures and improvements, equipment and intangibles, net of 
accumulated depreciation. This amount represents a net increase of $5.8 million from the prior year. 
Accumulated depreciation increased by $1.4 million. 
 
The increase in Structures and Improvements of $6.2 million is due to the purchase of the new District 
headquarters on Lombard St. in Oxnard. The increase in construction in progress of $1.3 million was 
primarily related to the Santa Felicia Dam improvements, Freeman Diversion rehabilitation, Santa 
Paula Tower project, the Pumping Trough Pipeline turnout metering projects. 
 
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on page 22 of this report. 

2020 2019
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land $ 19,519,766       $ 19,684,266       
Construction in progress 14,549,278       13,208,121       

Capital assets being depreciated
Dams 36,857,947       36,857,947       
Structures and improvements 71,903,822       65,726,358       
Equipment 6,764,972         6,930,025         
Intangibles 8,431,927         8,431,927         

Capital assets, gross 158,027,712     150,838,644     
Less: Accumulated depreciation (62,492,064)   (61,099,822)     

Capital assets, net $ 95,535,648       $ 89,738,822       



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

7 

 
Long-Term Debt 

 
The District’s long-term liabilities at the end of the year were $15.2 million. This represents a decrease 
of $1.1 million, or 6.7%. Significant changes related to the paydown of bonds payable. 
 
An overview of long-term liabilities is presented below. 
 

 
 
Additional information on the District’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note 6 on pages 23-26 of 
this report. The 2001B Revenue Bonds and 2005B Revenue Bonds are rated AAA by Standards & 
Poor’s Ratings Group and there have been no changes in the credit ratings. The 2009 Certificates of 
Participation are rated AA by Standards & Poor’s Ratings Group and there have been no changes in 
the credit ratings. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
The following economic factors currently affect the District and were considered in developing the 
2020-21 fiscal year budget. 
 

 Modifications to the District’s current fees and charges schedule. 
 

 A small increase in groundwater extraction activity. 
 

 Modest increases in the taxable assessed value as a percentage of estimated actual value 
and resulting increases in property assessments will continue to affect the District’s real 
property tax base. 
 

 Interest rates will remain low and stable in fiscal year 2020-21. 
 

 Cost of Living increases 2% for all District staff. 
 

2020 2019

State Water Project $ 1,503,614 $ 1,580,762
Bonds payable:

2001B Revenue bonds 285,000            415,000            
2005B Revenue bonds 5,220,000         5,585,000         
2009 Certificates of Participation 8,155,000         8,675,000         
Plus (less) deferred amounts:
Bond premiums 66,101              69,580              
Bond discounts (46,311)             (50,090)             
Total bonds payable, net 13,679,790       14,694,490       

Total long-term liabilities $        15,183,404 $        16,275,252 



 United Water Conservation District  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)  

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

8 

 
CONDITIONS THAT MAY IMPACT FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
Any conditions that may impact the District's future financial position can be found in Notes 16 and 17 
on pages 39-50 of this report. 
 
REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those 
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided 
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to United Water 
Conservation District, Chief Financial Officer, 106 N. 8th Street, Santa Paula, CA 93060. 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basic Financial Statements 

 

 

 



United Water Conservation District 
Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2020 

 

See notes to the financial statements. 
9 

 
 

Current assets
Cash $ 2,038,071
Investments 26,238,771
Receivables

Accounts receivable, net 7,960,564          
Property taxes 70,070               
Interest 106,464             

Prepayments 190,755             
Total current assets 36,604,695        

Noncurrent assets
Restricted investments 815,647             
Net OPEB asset 66,103               
Capital assets not being depreciated 34,069,044        
Capital assets being depreciated, net of accumulated depreciation 61,466,604        

Total noncurrent assets 96,417,398        
Total assets 133,022,093      

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 3,046,958          
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 171,911             

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,218,869          

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 2,227,194          
Deposits 55,299               
Accrued interest payable 165,164             
Accrued wages and benefits 426,687             
Unearned revenue 74,157               
Accrued legal liability 730,743             
Long-term debt - current portion 852,355             

Total current liabilities 4,531,599          
Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability 10,526,612        
Compensated absences 1,139,961          
Accrued legal liability 1,461,487          
Long-term debt - due in more than one year 14,331,049        

Total noncurrent liabilities 27,459,109        
Total liabilities 31,990,708        

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 1,212,016          
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 667                    

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,212,683          

Net investment in capital assets 81,204,599        
Restricted for:

Debt covenant 815,647             
State Water Import 1,758,066          

Unrestricted 19,259,259        
Total net position $ 103,037,571      

NET POSITION

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

ASSETS



United Water Conservation District 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

See notes to the financial statements. 
10

 

 
 

Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 28,640,249       

Total operating revenues 28,640,249       

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits 10,710,800       
Services and supplies 15,863,934       
Depreciation 2,478,288         
Other expenses 8,848                

Total operating expenses 29,061,870       

Operating loss (421,621)           

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Property taxes 2,869,564         
Operating grants and contributions 174,684            
Investment earnings 700,083            
Other income 2,993,251         
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,034,650         
Interest expense (729,460)           

Total non-operating revenues 7,042,772         

Change in net position 6,621,151         

Net position
Net position, at beginning of year 96,416,420       
Net position, at end of year $ 103,037,571     



United Water Conservation District 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

See notes to the financial statements. 
11 

 

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from charges for services $ 27,345,118       
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (13,693,271)      
Cash payments to employees for services (9,569,101)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,082,746         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets (8,275,114)        
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,034,650         
Repayment of long-term debt (1,091,848)        
Repayment of interest (748,678)           

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (9,080,990)        

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Cash received from property taxes 2,882,491         
Contributions received 174,684            
Cash received from other nonoperating activities 2,993,251         

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 6,050,426         

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (706,160)           
Investment earnings 783,465            

Net cash provided by investing activities 77,305              

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1,129,487         
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year 908,584
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year $ 2,038,071         

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
provided by Operating Activities
Operating loss $ (421,621)           
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation 2,478,288         
Interest paid -                        
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable (1,295,131)        
Prepayments (9,293)               
Net OPEB asset (66,103)             
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension 114,718            
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 153                   

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (34,066)             
Deposits (16,578)             
Accrued wages and benefits 88,021              
Due to other governments (7,574)               
Unearned revenue 54,792              
Accrued legal liability 2,192,230         
Compensated absences 262,283            
Net pension liability 962,263            
Net OPEB liability (75,963)             
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (142,635)           
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (1,038)               

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,082,746         



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

12 

 
NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND PROFILE 

 
Introduction 
The United Water Conservation District (the District) was formed in 1950 under the 
Water Conservation Act of 1931. An elected seven-member Board of Directors 
governs the District. The District's major operations, as a water conservation district, 
include groundwater recharge and monitoring and abatement of seawater intrusion 
that manifests along the coast while also protecting environmental needs.  
 
Financial Reporting Entity  
These financial statements present the District and its component unit, the United 
Water Conservation District Public Facilities Financing Authority. As defined by 
GASB, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as 
component units, for which the District is considered to be financially accountable. 
The District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the 
organization’s governing board and (1) is able to impose its will on the organization 
or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefit to or 
impose specific financial burden on the District. 
 
The United Water Conservation District Public Facilities Financing Authority (PFFA) 
was established in 1993 to construct, acquire, maintain and improve the public 
facilities and improvements within the District boundaries. The District's Board of 
Directors acts as the governing body of the PFFA. Although legally separate, the 
PFFA is included as a blended component unit of the District, as it is in substance a 
part of the District’s operation.  
 
 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
The District's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments 
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The more significant 
accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the District are discussed 
below. 
 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for 
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business 
enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs of managing the 
groundwater basins and pipeline deliveries on a continuing basis are financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges or fees, capital grants and similar funding. 
Revenues and expenses are recognized on the full accrual basis of accounting.  
Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the 
economic measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this basis 
of accounting and measurement focus, revenues are recognized when they are 
earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.   
 

 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

13 

 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (continued) 
Revenues from groundwater extraction and pipeline deliveries are recognized in the 
accounting period in which related costs or charges associated with the fees 
assessed are incurred. Expenses are recognized in the period incurred. 
 
Operating revenues, such as fees charged for groundwater extraction and pipeline 
deliveries, result from exchange transactions associated with the District’s principal 
activity. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up 
essentially equal value. Nonoperating revenues, such as grant funding and 
investment income, result from non-exchange transactions, in which, the District 
gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving value in exchange. 
Operating expenses, such as the cost of services, are the result of the District’s 
exchange transactions along with associated expenses for running the District’s day-
to-day operations. Nonoperating expenses, such as interest paid on debt service are 
the result of expenses that do not relate to the District’s day-to-day operations. 
 
Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits, cash with fiscal agent, and short-term investments with original maturities 
of three months or less. 
 
Investments 
Investments are generally reported at fair value. Investments in LAIF are reported at 
amortized cost, which approximates fair value. 
 
Restricted investments 
Cash and investments with fiscal agents are restricted due to limitations on their use 
by bond covenants or donor limitations.  The funds may be used for specific capital 
outlays or for the payment of certain bonds and have been invested only as permitted 
by specific State statutes or applicable District ordinance, resolution, or bond 
indenture. 
 
Receivables 
Receivables are due for groundwater charges, water delivery charges, property 
taxes, grant revenues, and interest. The District's management closely monitors 
outstanding balances and, based on collection experience, has determined an 
allowance for doubtful accounts of $53,507 at June 30, 2020. 
 
Property taxes are collected and remitted to the District by the County of Ventura. 
Taxes are levied annually on November 1 and are due one-half by December 10 and 
one-half by April 10. Major tax payments are received December through May and 
are recognized as revenue in the year received. Delinquent tax payments, received 
throughout the year, are recognized as revenue in the year received, except for those 
received within 60 days of year-end which are recognized as revenue as of June 30. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

14 

 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Prepaid assets  
Certain payments to vendors represent costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items in the District’s financial statements and expensed 
as the items are used. 
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include dams, structures and improvements and equipment, 
are reported at historical costs in the statement of net position.  
 
Equipment and intangible assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of 
$5,000 or more and structures and improvements purchased or acquired with an 
original cost of $25,000 or more are capitalized. Donated capital assets, donated 
works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service concession 
arrangement are reported at acquisition value. Additions, improvements and other 
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. 
Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. 
 
Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. Depreciable capital assets 
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 
 

Dams                                                                                                     100 years 
Structures and improvements                                                    15 to 50 years 
Equipment                                                                                    3 to 25 years  

 
Compensated Absences 
The District accrues vacation, annual leave and compensatory time in the period the 
fund liability is incurred. Sick leave liability is based on the amount accumulated at 
year-end by those employees who are eligible to receive termination payments. 
 
Long-term obligations 
Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities of the 
District. Bond premiums and discounts are reported and amortized over the life of the 
bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of bond premium or discount.  
 
Pension 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Plan and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. 
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value. 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

15 

 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension (OPEB)  
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the City’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions 
from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments are 
reported when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future 
periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net 
Position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition 
of net position that applies to a future periods and so will not be recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
 
Unearned revenue 
Unearned revenue pertains to resources that have been received but not yet earned.  
 
Net Position 
The District’s financial statements are presented in accordance with the provisions of 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as 
amended by Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position. Statement 63 requires 
the classification of net position into three components – net investment in capital 
assets, restricted, and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows:  
 
 Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital 

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances 
of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also should be 
included in this component of net assets. If there are significant unspent related 
debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at the end of the reporting period, 
the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent 
amount should not be included in the calculation of invested in capital assets. 
Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflow of resources should be included 
in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent 
amounts. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

16 

 
NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Net Position (continued) 
 Restricted - This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced 

by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, 
a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that 
also results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the 
restricted assets reported. Restricted net position are restricted due to due to law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, debt covenants and 
unspent bond proceeds.  

 
 Unrestricted - This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that 
are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the 
restricted component of net position. 

 
The District's policy is to first apply disbursements to restricted resources when an 
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net 
position are available. 
 
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 
Amounts reported as operating revenues include groundwater and water delivery 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by the District. Nonoperating revenues include grants 
and contributions received for the operational or capital requirements of the District. 
All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally 
dedicated resources are also reported as nonoperating revenues. 
 
Property Taxes 
Property taxes are assessed by the County of Ventura each year. The valuation of 
property is determined as of March 1st of each year, and equal installments of taxes 
levied upon secured property become delinquent on the following 10th of December 
and April. Taxes on unsecured property are due when billed and become delinquent 
after August 31st. If taxes are not paid on or before the date and time they become 
delinquent, a penalty of 10% is added. Unsecured property accrues an additional 
penalty of 1% per month beginning the first day of the third month following the 
delinquency date. 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

17 

 
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
At June 30, 2020, cash and investments consisted of the following: 
 

 
 
As of June 30, 2020, cash and investments restricted for 2009 COP Debt Reserve 
amounted to $815,647.  
 
The District manages its investments in accordance with the District’s Investment 
Policy, which was last reaffirmed by the Board of Directors by Resolution 2019-12 on 
June 12, 2019.  
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's 
Investment Policy  
 
Allowable investment instruments are defined in the California Government Code 
Section 53600, et. seq., as amended. If the Code is further revised to allow additional 
investments or is changed regarding the limits on certain categories of investments, 
the District is authorized to conform to these changes, excluding those changes that 
may be prohibited by this policy. Where the Government Code specifies a percentage 
limitation for a particular category of investments, that percentage is applicable only 
at the date of purchase.  

2020
Unrestricted Cash and Investments

Petty cash $ 400                    
Demand deposits 2,037,671          
California Local Agency Investment Fund 26,238,771        

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments 28,276,842        

Restricted Cash and Investments
California Local Agency Investment Fund 815,647             

Total cash and investments $ 29,092,489        



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

18 

 
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS CONTINUED) 

 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District’s 
investment policy and the California Government Code (or the District's investment 
policy, if more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions that address 
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 

 
 
*Maximums based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, 
whichever is more restrictive.  
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, 
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of 
the ways the District can manage its exposure to interest rates risk is by purchasing 
a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows 
from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for 
operations.  
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments 
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments 
by maturity:  
 

Authorized Investment Type*
Maximum 
Maturity

Maximum 
Percentage of 

Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in 
One Issuer

Government Investment Pools:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None $65 million
Ventura County Investment Pool N/A 33% 33%

US Government Securities:
Treasury Bills 3 years None None
Treasury Notes 3 years None None
Bonds or other direct obligations 3 years None None

Federal Agency Securities 3 years None None
Certificates of Deposit 3 years 33% 33%
Money Market Funds N/A 33% 33%



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

19 

 
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
Interest Rate Risk (continued) 

 
As part of the District’s investment policy, the District will minimize interest rate risk 
by: (a) Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash 
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on 
the open market prior to maturity; (b) Investing operating funds primarily in short-term 
securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools; and (c) Limiting 
the average maturity of the portfolio to up to but not to exceed three years.  
 
Investment with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations  
 
At June 30, 2020, the District did not hold any investments that were highly sensitive 
to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the 
information provided above). 
 
Credit Risk 
Credit risk is generally the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a 
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  
 
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code or the District’s investment policy or debt agreements, and the 
actual rating as of June 30, 2020 for each investment type:  

 
* The State and County investment pools do not offer an investment rating. 

12 months 13 to 24 25 to 36
Investment Type or less months months Total

Local Agency 

Investment Fund $ 26,237,440 $ -       $ -       $ 26,237,440 
County of Ventura

Investment Pool 1,331          -       -       1,331          
Held by bond trustees:

Money Market Funds 815,647      -       -       815,647      
Total $ 27,054,418 $ -       $ -       $ 27,054,418

Remaining Maturity

Minimum Standard &
Legal Poor's Rating

Investment Type Total Rating as of Year 

Local Agency 
Investment Fund* $ 26,237,440   N/A N/A

County of Ventura
Investment Pool* 1,331            N/A N/A

Held by bond trustees:

Money Market Funds 815,647        AAA AAA
Total $ 27,054,418



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

20 

 
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
Credit Risk (continued) 
As part of the District’s investment policy, the District will minimize credit risk by: (a) 
Limiting investments to the type of securities previously listed under “Investments 
Authorized by the California Government Code and the District's Investment Policy”; 
(b) Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and 
advisors with which the District will do business with; and (c) Diversifying the 
investment portfolio so that the impact of potential losses from any type of security or 
from any one individual issuer will be minimized. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
The District's investment policy provides that no more than 33% of the District's 
portfolio may be invested with a single firm or institution with the exception of the 
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund or obligations of the U.S. 
Government. There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more 
of total District investments, required to be disclosed. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits 
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an 
outside party. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a 
failure by the counterparty (e.g., brokerdealer), the District will not be able to recover 
the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an 
outside party.  
 
The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do not contain 
legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 
deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: 
 
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits 
made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided 
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by 
the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral 
pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging 
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.  
 
At June 30, 2020, of the bank balances, up to $250,000 held at each institution were 
federally insured and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the 
Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held in the District's name. 

 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

21 

 
NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
Investment in State Investment Pool 
The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is part of the Pooled Money Investment 
Account that is regulated by California Government Code under the oversight of the 
State of California Treasurer. LAIF is a governmental investment pool managed and 
directed by the California State Treasurer and is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. An oversight committee, comprised of California State officials 
and various participants, provides oversight to the management of the fund. The daily 
operations and responsibilities of LAIF fall under the auspices of the State Treasurer's 
office. The District is a voluntary participant in the investment pool.  
 
The District relied on information provided by the State Treasurer in estimating the 
District's fair value position of its holdings in LAIF which is based upon the District’s 
pro-rata share of the fair value for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized 
cost of that portfolio). Tha balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. The 
District may invest up to $65,000,000 in the LAIF fund. Investments in LAIF are highly 
liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours without loss of interest. 
All investments with LAIF are secured by the full faith and credit of the State of 
California. Separate LAIF financial statements are available from the California State 
Treasurer’s Office on the internet at http://www.treasurer.ca.gov. LAIF is not subject to 
a credit-quality rating. 
 
Investment in Ventura County Treasurer’s Investment Pool 
The District is a voluntary participant in the Ventura County Treasurer’s Investment 
Pool (County Pool) which holds investments that are subject to being adjusted to “fair 
value”. The District is required to disclose its methods and assumptions used to 
estimate the fair value of its holdings in the County Pool. The District relied upon 
information provided by the County Treasurer in estimating the District’s fair value 
position of its holdings in the County Pool. The District had a contractual withdrawal 
value of $1,331 as of June 30, 2020.  
 
The County Pool is a governmental investment pool managed and directed by the 
elected Ventura County Treasurer. The County Pool is not registered with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. An oversight committee comprised of local 
government officials and various participants provide oversight to the management of 
the County Pool. The daily operations and responsibilities of the County Pool fall under 
the auspices of the County Treasurer’s office.  
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

22 

 
NOTE 4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on 
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  
 
 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets 

that government can access at the measurement date. 
 

 Level 2 inputs are other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 
 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 
 
The District’s investment in LAIF and County of Ventura Investment Pool are measured 
at amortized cost which approximates fair value. Money market funds are measured 
using Level 1 inputs.  

 
 
NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2020 were as follows:  
 

 
 

Depreciation expense of $2,478,289 was reported in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Balance Retirements/ Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Transfers June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 19,684,266   $ -                  $ (164,500)     $ 19,519,766   
Construction in progress 13,208,121   8,201,406   (6,860,249)  14,549,278   

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 32,892,387   8,201,406   (7,024,749)  34,069,044   

Capital assets, being depreciated
Dams 36,857,947   -                  -                  36,857,947   
Structures and improvements 65,726,358   6,950,301   (772,837)     71,903,822   
Equipment 6,930,025     442,607      (607,660)     6,764,972     
Intangibles 8,431,927     -                  -                  8,431,927     

Total capital assets, being depreciated 117,946,257 7,392,908   (1,380,497)  123,958,668 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Dams (12,441,568)  -                  -                  (12,441,568)  
Structures and improvements (36,277,290)  (1,922,091)  484,016      (37,715,365)  
Equipment (5,210,981)    (315,059)     602,031      (4,924,009)    
Intangibles (7,169,983)    (241,139)     -                  (7,411,122)    

Total accumulated depreciation (61,099,822)  (2,478,289)  1,086,047   (62,492,064)  
Net capital assets being depreciated 56,846,435   4,914,619   (294,450)     61,466,604   
Total capital assets, net $ 89,738,822   $ 13,116,025 $ (7,319,199)  $ 95,535,648   



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

23 

 
NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 

 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 and 
2019: 
 

 
 
State Water Project (Direct Borrowing) 
This long-term liability represents the District's share of capital construction costs of 
the State Water Project (See Note 10). The total principal amount outstanding as of 
June 30, 2020, is estimated by the State to be $1,503,614 and has a fixed interest rate 
of 4.61%, payable in various installments, due December 2035.  
 
The annual debt service requirements for the obligation under State Water Project 
outstanding at June 30, 2020, were as follows:  
 

 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Obligation under State Water 
Project - Direct Borrowing $ 1,580,762   $ -            $ (77,148)      $ 1,503,614     $ 72,355        
Bonds payable:

2001B Revenue bonds 415,000      -            (130,000)    285,000        140,000      
2005B Revenue bonds 5,585,000 -          (365,000)  5,220,000     385,000    
2009 Certificates of Participation 8,675,000   -            (520,000)    8,155,000     255,000      
Plus (less) deferred amounts:

Bond premiums 69,580        -            (3,479)        66,101          -              
Bond discounts (50,090)       -            3,779         (46,311)         -              

Total bonds payable, net 14,694,490 -            (1,014,700) 13,679,790   780,000      
Total long-term liabilities $ 16,275,252 $ -            $ (1,091,848) $ 15,183,404   $ 852,355      

Years Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 69,769        $ 37,734        $ 107,503      
2022 72,107        43,692        115,799      
2023 80,235        48,748        128,983      
2024 85,838        48,250        134,088      
2025 89,320        45,619        134,939      

2026-2030 509,954      172,069      682,023      
2031-2035 539,526      52,934        592,460      

2036 56,865        -                  56,865        

Total $ 1,503,614   $ 449,046      $ 1,952,660   



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

24 

 
NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 

2001B Revenue Bonds 
In August 2001, the District entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement with the 
California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the Authority), a joint 
exercise of powers agency, in order to provide for the financing for certain public capital 
improvements and water system maintenance. The Authority, under a pooled 
financing program, issued $12,495,000 Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2001B. The District is a participant in the Series 2001B program. The District's 
portion of the Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds amounted to $2,550,000. The 
bonds require semi-annual payments, with interest ranging from 3.25% to 5.13%, 
through October 2021. The payments are secured by a pledge of the District's net 
revenues. As of June 30, 2020, the total principal outstanding amounted to $285,000 
with remaining interest ranging from 4.60% to 5.125%. 
 
A summary of the annual debt service requirements for 2001B Revenue Bonds is 
presented below: 

 

 
 
2005B Revenue Bonds 
In July 2005, the District entered into an Installment Purchase Agreement with the 
California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the Authority), a joint 
exercise of powers agency to provide for the financing for certain public capital 
improvements. The Authority, under a pooled financing program, issued $11,840,000 
Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2005B. The District is a participant in 
the Series 2005B program. The District's portion of the Water and Wastewater 
Revenue Bonds amounted to $9,620,000. The bonds require semi-annual payments, 
with interest ranging from 2.50% to 4.50%, for 20 years through October 2025 and for 
30 years through October 2035. The payments are secured by a pledge of the District's 
net revenues. As of June 30, 2020, the total principal outstanding amounted to 
$5,520,000 with remaining interest from 3.50% to 4.50%. 

Years Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 140,000      $ 11,019        $ 151,019      
2022 145,000      3,716          148,716      

Total $ 285,000      $ 14,735        $ 299,735      



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

25 

 
NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
A summary of the annual debt service requirements for 2005B Revenue Bonds is 
presented below:  
 

 
 
2009 Certificates of Participation Bonds 
Certificates of Participation (COP), in the amount of $15,465,000 were issued in 
December 2009 to provide funds for the (1) acquisition of approximately 231 acres of 
land of $13,542,400 and for (2) improvements related to the Lake Piru Recreation 
facilities for $750,000. The certificates are payable solely from certain installment 
payments to be made by the District pursuant to the 2009 Installment Purchase 
Contract, dated December 1, 2009, by and between the District and the United Water 
Conservation District Public Facilities Financing Corporation. The 2009 Installment 
Payments are a special obligation of the District payable from and secured by a pledge 
of the net revenues of the District's water system. The bonds require semi-annual 
payments, with interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% for 30 years through June 2040. 
As of June 30, 2020, the total principal outstanding amounted to $8,155,000 with 
remaining interest from 4.00% to 5.00%. 
 
A summary of the annual debt service requirements for 2009 COP Bonds is presented 
below:  
 

 

Years Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 385,000      $ 219,978      $ 604,978      
2022 400,000      203,486      603,486      
2023 420,000      185,856      605,856      
2024 435,000      167,474      602,474      
2025 455,000      148,339      603,339      

2026-2030 1,395,000   520,953      1,915,953   
2031-2035 1,410,000   235,638      1,645,638   

2036 320,000      7,200          327,200      

Total $ 5,220,000   $ 1,688,924   $ 6,908,924   

June 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 255,000      $ 390,556      $ 645,556      
2022 265,000      379,991      644,991      
2023 280,000      368,925      648,925      
2024 290,000      357,163      647,163      
2025 300,000      344,625      644,625      

2026-2030 1,735,000   1,482,625   3,217,625   
2031-2035 2,210,000   992,000      3,202,000   
2036-2040 2,820,000   366,250      3,186,250   

Total $ 8,155,000   $ 4,682,135   $ 12,837,135 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

26 

 
NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

 
The outstanding 2001B, 2005B, and 2009 bonds contain a provision that if an event of 
default occurs and continues, the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts become 
due if (1) the District is unable to make a payment; (2) the District fails to perform any 
of the agreements or covenants required in the Indenture to be performed by it, and 
such default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after the District has 
been given notice in writing of such default; (3) if the District files a petition or answer 
seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other 
applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if a court of 
competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of the 
District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or 
any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if 
under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of 
competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the District or of the whole or 
any substantial part of its property or if a payment of the principal of any Parity Debt is 
accelerated in accordance with its terms. 
 
The total amount of bond interest reported for the year ended June 30, 2020 amounted 
to $643,270. 
 
 

NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) 
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS.) The 
Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and 
fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits 
for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate 
plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB 
Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the 
miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The District sponsors one miscellaneous plan in 
the miscellaneous risk pools. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by 
State statute and District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that 
include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions 
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS’ website, at 
www.calpers.ca.gov.  
 
Benefits Provided 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments and death benefits to Plan members, who must be public employees, and 
their beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year 
of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire 
at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty 
disability benefits after 5 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the 
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death 
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the 
Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

27 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
Law (PERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), 
and the regulations, procedures and policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of 
Administration. The Plan’s authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set 
by the PERL and PEPRA, and may be amended by the California state legislature and 
in some cases require approval by the CalPERS Board. 
 
The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2020 are summarized as 
follows: 
 

 
 
Contributions 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the 
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis 
by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the 
rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS' annual 
actuarial valuation process. For public agency cost-sharing plans covered by the 
Miscellaneous risk pool, the Plan's actuarially determined rate is based on the 
estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan's allocated share of the risk pool's costs 
of benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. 
 
The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined 
rate and the contribution rate of employees. The District contributions rates may 
change if plan contracts are amended.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District's contributions were $1,211,196. The 
District's contributions recognized as part of the pension expense for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 was $1,069,265. 

Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or After

Hire date January 01, 2013 January 01, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 and up 52 and up
Monthly benefits, as a% of eligible compensation 2.0%- 2.5% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.0% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 10.609% 6.842%

Miscellaneous Plan



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

28 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2020, the District reported the following net pension liability: 
 

 
 
The District's net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the 
collective net pension liability of the Plan. The net pension liability of the Plan as of 
June 30, 2020 is measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability for the 
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2018, rolled forward to June 30, 2019, using standard update 
procedures. 
 
The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on a projection 
of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The 
District's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as of June 30, 2020 
and 2019 were as follows: 
 

 
 

 

Amount Proportion
Total pension liability $ 45,498,198        0.25299%
Fiduciary net position (34,971,586)      0.25016%
     Net pension liability $ 10,526,612        0.26287%

June 30, 2020

Classic and
PEPRA

Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.26287%
Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.25378%
Change - Increase 0.00909%



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

29 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of 
$2,145,542. At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 
 
The District reported $1,211,196 as deferred outflows of resources related to 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized as pension expense as follows:  
 

 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date $ 1,211,196         $ -                        

Changes in assumptions 501,958            177,940            

Difference between expected and
actual experience 731,118            56,647              

Net difference between projected
and actual investment earnings -                        184,038            

Changes in proportions 265,210            359,581            
Differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate
share of contributions 337,476            433,810            

Totals $ 3,046,958         $ 1,212,016         

June 30, 2020

Years Ending
June 30, Amount

2021 $ 646,711            
2022 (123,742)           
2023 63,589              
2024 37,188              

Total $ 623,746            



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

30 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuations were determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions: 
 

 
 

 
(1) The underlying mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific 
data. The table includes 15 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries 
Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the 
December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 
1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan was 7.15% 
which is equal to the long-term expected rate of return. The long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method 
in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both 
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension 
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and 
the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was 
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of 
benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term 
returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
 
The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The 
rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to 
determine the discount rate and asset allocation.

Valuation date June 30, 2018
Measurement date June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method
Actuarial Assumptions
     Discount rate 7.15%
     Inflation 2.50%
     Payroll growth 3.00%
     Salary increases Varies by entry age and service
     Mortality rate table (1) Derived using CalPERS membership

data for all Funds
     Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.0% until

purchasing power protection
allowance floor on purchasing

power applies, 2.5% thereafter



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

31 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

 

 
 
(1) Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-  
 term Investments; Inflation Assets are    included in both Global Equity Securities 
 and Global Debt Securities 
(2) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period 
(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period 
 
To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a 
discount rate for each plan, CalPERS conducted cash flow projections to determine if 
assets would run out under the assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of 
the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.15% discount rate is 
adequate, and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The 
cross-over testing results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from 
the CalPERS website. 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in 
the Discount Rate 
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the collective net pension 
liability for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the 
District's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage point lower or one-percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 
 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Long-term Long-term 
Expected Expected

Real Rate of Real Rate of
Target Return Return

Asset Class (1) Allocation Years 1 - 10 (2) Years 11 + (3)

Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.00%

1.00% Current 1.00%

District proportionate share of Decrease Discount rate Increase
the net pension liability (6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)

2020 $ 16,646,259 $ 10,526,612 $ 5,475,276   



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

32 

 
NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 
 

Payable to the Pension Plan 
As of June 30, 2020, the District reported a payable of $51,713 for the outstanding 
amounts of contributions due to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 
2020. 
 

 
NOTE 8 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 
Plan Description 
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). The 
Plan provides post-employment medical insurance to eligible retirees and their 
spouses through the California Public Employees Retirement System. State statutes 
within the Public Employees' Retirement Law establish menus of benefit provisions as 
well as other requirements and may be amended by CalPERS. The District selected 
an optional benefit provision specifically for health benefits in compliance with the 
Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). The District does not 
issue a financial report for the plan. A separate financial report is not prepared for the 
Plan. 
 
Employees Covered 
As of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following current and former 
employees were covered by the benefit terms under the Plan: 
 

 
 
Contributions  
The contribution requirements of the Plan are established by the District’s Board of 
Directors. On October 14, 1998, the District’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution 
to fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. The method recognized a liability for the 
difference between pay-as-you go and any actuarially determined contributions. On 
September 10, 2014, the District’s Board of Directors adopted a resolution to elect to 
prefund other post-employment benefits through the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) and deposit contributions in the California Public 
Employees Retirement Benefit Trust Fund (CERBT). For the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2020, the District’s cash contributions were $171,911 in payments to the trust. The 
District’s contributions to the OPEB plan are not based on a measure of pay. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2019.  
 

Active employees          54 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits          16 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries entitled but not yet receiving 
benefits

       -   

Total          70 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

33 

 
NOTE 8 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

 
Actuarial assumptions 
The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 
 

 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
As of June 30, 2019 valuation date, the long-term expected rates of return for each 
major investment class in the Plan’s portfolio are as follows: 
 

 
 
Discount Rate 
A discount rate of 7% was used in the valuation. It was assumed that contributions 
would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
The valuation used historic 32 year real rates of return for each asset class along 
with the assumed long-term inflation assumption to set the discount rate. The 
expected investment return was offset by 25 basis points to account for investment 
expenses. 

Discount Rate 7.00%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 2.75%
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%
Mortality Rate 2014 CalPERS Active Mortality for 

Miscellaneous Employees
Pre-Retirement Turnover Healthcare Trend Rate 4.0 percent per year. It is assumed 

that the average increase over time 
cannot outstrip general inflation by 
a wide margin.

Actuarial Assumptions:

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Assumed 
Gross 
Return

US Large Cap 43% 7.675%
US Small Cap 23% 7.675%
Long-Term Corporate Bonds 12% 5.175%
Long-Term Government Bonds 6% 4.380%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS) 5% 7.675%
US Real Estate 8% 7.675%
Commodities 3% 7.675%
Total 100%



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

34 

 
NOTE 8 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

 
Changes in the OPEB Liability (Asset) 
The changes in the net OPEB liability (asset) for the Plan are as follows: 
 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the District if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 
30, 2019: 
 

 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Health Care 
Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability (asset) of the District if it were 
calculated using health care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower 
or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period 
ended June 30, 2019: 
 

 

Total OPEB 
Liability (a)

Plan 
Fiduciary 

Net 
Position (b)

Net OPEB 
Liability/ 

(Asset) (c)= 
(a) - (b)

Balance at June 30, 2019
(Measurement Date June 30, 2018) $ 685,728     $ 609,765     $ 75,963       

Changes for the year:
Service Cost 27,950       -             27,950       
Interest on the total OPEB liability 48,228       -             48,228       
Changes of assumptions -             -             -             
Plan experience differences (6,933)        -             (6,933)        
Contributions - employer -             172,066     (172,066)    
Net investment income -             47,754       (47,754)      
Benefit payments (27,066)      (27,066)      -             
Administrative expenses -             (132)           132            
Other -             (8,377)        8,377         

Net Changes 42,179       184,245     (142,066)    

Balance at June 30, 2020
(Measurement Date June 30, 2019) $ 727,907     $ 794,010     $ (66,103)      

Discount Rate Valuation Discount Rate
1% Lower Discount Rate  1% Higher

6.00% 7.00% 8.00%

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 26,736$          (66,103)$        (144,190)$        

Trend 1% Lower Valuation Trend Trend 1% Higher

Net OPEB Liability (Asset) (145,880)$      (66,103)$        27,135$           



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

35 

 
NOTE 8 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $29,303 
with details as follows: 
 

 
 
At June 30, 2020, the District reported the following deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB: 
 

 
 
The $171,911 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of net OPEB 
liability during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will 
be recognized as OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 

Total
Service Cost $ 27,950             
Interest on Total OPEB Liability (TOL) 48,228             
Recognized Experience (Gains)/Losses (588)                
Expected Investment Income (47,754)           
Recognized Investment (Gains)/Losses 1,335               
Administrative Expense 132                  
Total OPEB Expense $ 29,303             

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 171,911 $ -              
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
    on OPEB plan investments -            667             
Total $ 171,911 $ 667

Years Ending 
June 30, 

Deferred 
Outflows/(Inflows) of 

Resources
2021 $ 747
2022 747
2023 747                          
2024 (588)

Thereafter: (2,320)                     
$ (667)                        



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

36 

 
NOTE 9 RISK MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 
The District participates in the property, liability and workers' compensation program 
and risk management services organized by the Special District Risk Management 
Authority (the Authority).The Authority is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) created to 
provide an insurance program and risk management services to public agencies in the 
State of California. The JPA is not a component unit of the District for financial 
purposes, as explained below.  
 
The Authority provides liability, property and workers' compensation insurance and risk 
management services for the District, which is one of over 650 participating agencies, 
for losses in excess of the members' specified self-insurance retention levels. 
Individual claims (and aggregate public liability and property claims) in excess of 
specified levels are covered by excess insurance policies purchased from commercial 
carriers. The Authority is governed by a board composed of members from 
participating agencies. The board controls the operations of the Authority, including 
selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any 
influence by the members from beyond their representation on the board. Each 
member shares financial surpluses and deficiencies proportionately to its participation 
in the Authority.  
 
The District paid premiums of $426,264 to the Authority for property, general liability 
and workers' compensation insurance during the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
JPA's summary financial information as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 
were as follow:  
 

 
 
The self-insurance retention level covered under the Authority program for property 
and liability is $250,000 and $750,000 for worker’s compensation, per claim and would 
be paid from the assets of the Authority. Assistance with disposition of claims within 
the self-insured retentions is provided through the Authority. The District had no open 
claims under the Authority and no liabilities were recorded as of June 30, 2020. 

2020
Total assets $ 130,676,871      
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 595,599             
Total liabilities 70,083,643        
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 246,193             
Net assets 60,942,634        
Total operating revenues 76,284,929        
Net investment income 5,744,463          
Change in net position 4,578,071          



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

37 

 
NOTE 10 STATE WATER PROJECT 

 
In 1963, the Ventura County Flood Control District contracted with the State of 
California (State) for 20,000 acre-feet per year of water from the State Water Project 
(SWP). The SWP conveys water from Northern California to Southern California 
through a system of reservoirs, canals, pump stations and power generation facilities. 
In 1971, the administration of the Water Supply Contract with the State was assigned 
to Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas). The District has contracted with Casitas 
for an annual Table A allocation of 5,000 acre-feet of SWP water. As consideration for 
water delivery entitlement, the District is obligated through the year 2036 to pay, 
without regard to the quantity of water received, its share of SWP capital construction 
costs, ongoing operating, maintenance, power and replacement costs, and certain 
other costs (collectively referred to as "ongoing operations and maintenance costs") to 
ensure the future availability of water. The District and the Department of Water 
Resources have signed an agreement in principal to extend the term of the SWP water 
supply contracts by 40 years from December 31, 2035 to December 31, 2075.  
 
The District has recorded a liability for its share of capital construction costs (see Note 
6). The District's share of ongoing operations and maintenance costs is determined 
annually by the State. Estimates provided by the State of future costs are as follows: 
 

 
 

The above estimates are based upon a number of assumptions, are contingent upon 
future events, and are subject to significant variations over time. The District accounts 
for such ongoing operations and maintenance costs as expenditures in the periods in 
which they are billed to the District. 

 
 
NOTE 11 MAJOR CUSTOMERS 

 
The District has four customers whose water charges represent a significant portion of 
water revenue. Revenue from these four customers represented 35%, 10%, 7%, and 
3% respectively, of water revenue during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

Years Ending State's estimated capital
June 30, construction costs

2021 $ 792,425                         
2022 787,093                         
2023 792,045                         
2024 795,887                         

2025-2029 3,966,206                      
2030-2034 3,902,325                      
2035-2036 1,182,899                      

Total $ 12,218,880                    



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

38 

 
NOTE 12 RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The District is exposed to potential losses from claims arising from its business 
operations. Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance. There have been 
no significant reductions in insured coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded 
insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years. 
 
 

NOTE 13 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Four of the seven-member Board of Directors have business concerns within the 
District boundaries and were assessed groundwater extraction charges from water 
pumped from wells within the District. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District 
recognized revenue from Board members of $101,289. The estimated amount of 
revenue earned but not yet collected as of June 30, 2020 was $40,199. 
 
 

NOTE 14 JOINT VENTURE 
 
On September 17, 2002, the District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers 
agreement with the City of Oxnard to create the Oxnard Plain/Riverpark Reclamation 
and Groundwater Recharge Authority (Authority), a public entity set up to secure grant 
funding and other public and private funding to reclaim mining pits to implement the 
Recharge Program and Reclamation Plan, and to undertake other groundwater 
recharge, groundwater quality, and water supply programs. Each of the parties may 
be required to make contributions of funds or use its personnel, equipment or property. 
At June 30, 2019 (the most recent available), the Authority had total assets, liabilities 
and net position of $1,103,327, $-0-, and $1,103,327, respectively. The financial 
information on the Authority may be obtained by contacting its Treasurer, 300 West 
Third Street, Oxnard, CA 93003. 
 
 

NOTE 15 SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT 
 
Under its Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) license for the Santa Felicia 
Dam, the District is required to provide recreation facilities and services to the public 
at Lake Piru Recreation Area (Lake Piru). In January 2014, the District entered into an 
agreement with Parks Management Company (PMC) to provide recreation 
concessionaire services at Lake Piru. The District retains the right to direct the types 
of services provided, approve fees and restrict public access to the recreation area.  
 
This agreement has been subsequently modified, with the latest revision effective 
January 2017 through December 2020. Under the current agreement terms, PMC 
collects all revenues and bills the District for all expenses, including up to a 15% profit 
margin, not covered by the revenues collected. In the event revenues exceed 
expenses as described previously, the District is entitled to all revenues above the 
monthly expenses, less the 15% profit margin. The additional projected annual cost to 
the District, ranges from $475,000 and $610,000.



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

39 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES 

 
Santa Felicia Dam and HydroElectric Plant 
 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) relicense for the operation of the 
District's Santa Felicia Dam and Hydroelectric Plant is financed by a combination of 
District groundwater extraction rates and property taxes. The District's original FERC 
license expired in 2004 while the District began the relicensing process in FY 2001-
2002. Through June 30, 2020, the District has spent $8,214,913 to renew and comply 
with the conditions included in the new license. 
 
On September 12, 2008, FERC issued a new 40-year license to the District. The new 
license establishes specific requirements that the District must meet. Several of these 
requirements come from the biological opinion (BiOp), which National Marine Fisheries 
Service (NMFS) issued to FERC for the effects of the license on Southern California 
steelhead, listed as endangered under the Endangered Species Act (ESA). NMFS 
found that the issuance of the FERC license would jeopardize the continued existence 
of steelhead and result in adverse modification to designated critical habitat for 
steelhead. NMFS identified a reasonable and prudent alternatives plan (RPA) made 
up of three elements that FERC must require the District to implement to reduce the 
effects to steelhead and critical habitat to below the threshold of jeopardy and adverse 
modification. 
 
The RPA includes requirements that the District undertakes actions, such as water 
releases, that are operational changes and would reduce the water-yield of the project. 
The RPA requires the District to prepare and implement a number of plans to address 
the three elements: the effects of the Santa Felicia Project on water flows, geomorphic 
conditions, and fish passage. The RPA and FERC license require that plans or reports 
be developed in consultation with NMFS and be approved by NMFS and FERC before 
they can be implemented.  
 
The District has not formally accepted the new license. Instead, it requested a 
rehearing on several license elements including items for steelhead effects. On 
December 17, 2009, FERC denied the District's request for a rehearing. The District 
filed an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit on February 12, 2010, 
and the appeal brief was filed with the court on August 24, 2010. Because significant 
progress was being made on the most critical of the necessary plans, NMFS, FERC 
and the District requested that the court proceedings be held in abeyance. The court 
ordered the abeyance on September 29, 2010, and the abeyance remains in effect. 
The District is in compliance with a 60-day period reporting requirement and continues 
to report each 60-day period.



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

40 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Santa Felicia Dam and HydroElectric Plant (continued) 
 
To date, the District has completed and received approval from FERC and NMFS on 
five of the nine plans/reports required in the BiOp. The District has completed 
implementation of one of the approved plans, the study plan of geomorphic effects.  
 
Of the other four approved plans, one is for an evaluation of the relationship between 
flows and water elevation of lower Piru Creek and involves no implementation; another 
is a water release plan that the District must implement for the term of the license; 
another lays out the procedures for implementing the water releases; and the fourth is 
a study plan for assessing the feasibility of providing fish passage at Santa Felicia 
Dam.  
 
Three plans pending completion are in various stages of development. The District has 
prepared drafts of three other required plans (adaptive management, effectiveness 
monitoring for water releases, and habitat improvement). The District is working with 
NMFS on revising these plans.  
 
In addition, the District has completed and submitted a fish passage feasibility report. 
The report conveys the District’s intent regarding a preferred long-term solution on fish 
passage at the Santa Felicia Project that is contingent on resolution of certain 
outstanding issues.  
 
For the most part, once the plans/reports are completed, the District will need to 
undertake specific actions (e.g., water releases, habitat improvement measures, fish 
passage actions, data collection) for some length of time that may be the term of the 
license. This will continue to involve staff time and outside consulting services to 
manage and carry out said actions and will likely have a negative effect on water 
resources over the term of the license (40 years). At this time, the future cost of 
complying with the requirements associated with license compliance, including the 
BiOp, is not known. 
 
The successful collaboration of the District and NMFS on the development of 
acceptable plans has demonstrated to FERC that progress is being made and as a 
result, FERC has not imposed any penalties on the District for non-compliance with 
the license requirements. If FERC concludes at some point that the District is not 
making enough progress in meeting its requirements in a timely manner, FERC could 
assess up to the maximum amount of the $21,563 per day penalty, retroactive to the 
required deadline set for any required action(s). The financial impact to the District, if 
FERC takes such a position, could be significant. It should be understood though, that 
it appears that FERC’s intent is not to assess and collect penalties from the District but 
instead to use the potential for penalties to keep the District focused on coming into 
compliance with the license requirements. 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

41 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Santa Felicia Dam Safety and Infrastructure Needs 
 
Under the District's dam safety program, a structural analysis was performed to 
determine the seismic adequacy of the Santa Felicia Dam outlet works. The final 
results of the analyses indicate that the outlet works is insufficient to withstand the 
maximum credible earthquake (MCE) as defined by the study. 
 
In the case of an MCE, seismic deformation of the upstream embankment is expected 
to be large enough to damage the outlet conduit of the dam. Accordingly, retrofitting 
the existing intake tower, pressure conduit, penstock and tunnel will not be considered 
in the development of alternatives. The outlet works include the intake tower, a 
standing pipe under the lake with its opening above the lake bottom sediment. Water 
flows into the intake tower and through the pressure conduit and the penstock, a steel 
pipe supported inside of a tunnel built under the dam. The purpose of the outlet works 
is to convey water from upstream of the dam and release it downstream of the dam. 
The reservoir bottom sediment is also approaching the rim or sill of the in-take tower, 
which would plug it up and make controlled releases from the reservoir impossible. 
The failure of the intake tower would prevent controlled water releases from the 
reservoir, affecting the District's mission of recharging the aquifers and the safety of 
the dam itself. 
 
In addition, it has also been determined that the penstock will most likely not withstand 
a significant seismic event. A failure of the penstock could cause an uncontrolled 
release from the reservoir, leading to serious damage to the dam. Because of the 
seismic insufficiency of the intake tower (and silting issues) and penstock, the District 
is working on the design of a project to replace the entire outlet works and power plant. 
Once all technical options have been thoroughly considered and a final decision is 
made by the Board of Directors, a detailed cost analysis will be prepared. It is 
anticipated that the outlet works project could have a significant financial impact on the 
District. 
 
The FERC has required the District to convene an independent Board of Consultants 
(BOC) to provide oversight and quality assurance of the project design and 
construction. The BOC is an independent panel comprised of four experts experienced 
in tunneling, geotechnical engineering, hydraulics and structures. In parallel with the 
design a consulting team will be preparing the necessary environmental documents 
for the projects to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and 
the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA). The Draft Environmental Impact 
Report has been prepared in compliance with the CEQA and is available for public 
review and comment. The District is in the process of finalizing the Environmental 
Assessment (EA) report on behalf of FERC in accordance with NEPA as part of the 
license amendment application for the project. Currently, the estimated cost to design 
and construct the rehabilitation of the structure is in the order of $50 million. Through 
June 30, 2020, the District has spent $2,670,176 on these Santa Felicia Dam safety 
and infrastructure measures. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

42 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Santa Felicia Dam Probable Maximum Precipitation/Flood Studies 
 
Standard engineering practices require that dams be designed to safely pass the 
largest stormwater inflow that they might encounter. This theoretical inflow is called 
the Probable Maximum Flood (PMF). The PMF is calculated from a large rainfall 
distribution. The standard rainfall employed is typically derived from the National 
Weather Service (NWS) computer model(s). In 2006, new PMF’s were calculated for 
both the District’s Santa Felicia Dam and California Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) Pyramid Dam on upper Piru Creek with the revised NWS rainfall model. Both 
facilities were found to have issues with safely passing the new flows in order to protect 
the structural integrity of the dams. The discharges at either dam are intended to be 
conveyed over engineered spillways. Accordingly, should a discharge which exceeds 
existing spillway capacity need to be passed, some enlargement or modification to the 
dam’s spillway will become necessary. The higher the increased flood discharge, the 
larger and more costly the necessary retrofit. The recent NWS rainfall model 
discharges represented large increases from previous PMF discharges.  
 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and the California Division of 
Safety of Dams (DSOD), in their regulatory capacities, agreed with the District’s 
assertion that the current NWS methodology was flawed. DSOD’s independent 
analysis of the PMF generated results significantly lower than the current NWS 
methodology. The regulatory agencies have accepted an inflow design flood of 
220,000 cubic feet per second (cfs). The District awarded a contract for the design of 
the spillway improvements based on the 220,000 cfs inflow in May 2016. 
 
FERC has required the District to convene an independent Board of Consultants 
(BOC) to provide oversight and quality assurance of the project design and 
construction. The BOC is an independent panel comprised of four experts experienced 
in tunneling, geotechnical engineering, hydraulics and structures. In parallel with the 
design, a consulting team will be preparing the necessary environmental documents 
for the projects to comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and 
the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA). The Draft Environmental Impact 
Report has been prepared in compliance with the CEQA and is available for public 
review and comment. The District is in the process of finalizing the Environmental 
Assessment (EA) report on behalf of FERC in accordance with NEPA as part of the 
license amendment application for the project.  
 
Currently, the estimated cost to design and construct the modifications to the spillway 
is in the order of $40 million. The estimated costs of these modifications attributable to 
PMF are in addition to the estimated design and construction costs for Santa Felicia 
Dam rehabilitation referenced earlier. Through June 30, 2020, the District has spent 
$2,606,920 on the Probable Maximum Precipitation/Flood study efforts. This work 
could also be influenced by the results of the SFD fish passage study currently being 
reviewed by the NMFS. It is anticipated that the design and construction of the 
modifications to the dam and spillway could result in a significant financial impact on 
the District. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

43 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Freeman Diversion 
 
The Freeman Diversion, completed in 1991, diverts water released from Lake Piru and 
other surface water from the Santa Clara River. The diverted water is conveyed via the 
Freeman Canal to groundwater recharge facilities, and to direct use in some areas.  
 
In 1997, the Southern California Steelhead was listed as an endangered Distinct 
Population Segment (DPS) in accordance with the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 
Section 9 of the ESA prohibits the “take” of endangered species unless the take has 
been authorized under regulatory mechanisms established in the Act. The District must 
comply with the ESA for this listed DPS with respect to the District's operation of the 
Freeman Diversion. Over time, to minimize effects of ongoing operations on 
Steelhead, the District has developed and implemented modified operations, including 
modified diversion operations, for the Freeman Diversion. The District does not, 
however, have authorization for any take of Steelhead that may occur due to operation 
of the Freeman Diversion. Since approximately 2008, the District has focused on 
obtaining take authorization via Section 10(a)(1)(B) and 10(a)(2) of the ESA, under 
which the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) may issue a permit authorizing 
take of Steelhead that is incidental to an otherwise lawful activity if certain criteria are 
met. The District will seek an incidental permit based on conservation measures 
identified in a multiple species habitat conservation plan (MSHCP). 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, California Trout, Inc., (CalTrout) an 
environmental group, filed a lawsuit (2009 litigation) alleging unauthorized take of 
Steelhead by the District at the Freeman Diversion and seeking compliance by the 
District with so-called “Reasonable and Prudent Alternatives” (RPA) of a Biological 
Opinion (BiOp) that had been issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) 
to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (which had provided a loan for construction of the 
Freemen diversion several years before). In August 2009, the District and CalTrout 
reached a settlement agreement in order to resolve the lawsuit and to avoid future 
costs and uncertainties of further litigation. The District recognized an extraordinary 
item of $827,682 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 which included settlement 
costs. Pursuant to the settlement agreement, the District agreed to undertake several 
measures, including modifying certain operations, evaluating bypass flows, and 
forming an independent panel of experts to evaluate the efficacy of fish passage at the 
Freeman Diversion.  
 
The District has complied with the requirements of the settlement agreement from the 
2009 litigation. The independent panel issued a final report with its recommendations 
for improving the fish passage at the Freeman Diversion on September 15, 2010. 
Based on that panel's conclusions, and in compliance with the settlement agreement, 
the District has been pursuing the design and implementation of a new fish passage 
facility at the Freeman Diversion as a part of the MSHCP process. The District is also 
evaluating possible long-term changes in diversion operations, which could ultimately 
result in a material decrease in water diversions, as compared to historical practice.  



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

44 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Freeman Diversion (continued) 
 
On June 2, 2016, Wishtoyo Foundation, its Ventura Coastkeeper Program, and the 
Center for Biological Diversity filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the 
Central District of California alleging that the District’s operation and maintenance of 
the Freeman Diversion results in unauthorized take of Steelhead and endangered 
Southwest Willow Flycatcher (Wishtoyo Litigation).  
 
On October 11, 2016, the District delivered a second administrative draft MSHCP to 
NMFS and other agencies.  
 
During 11 days in December 2017 and January 2018, the District Court conducted trial 
in the Wishtoyo Litigation.  
 
On September 7, 2018, the District submitted the Third Administrative Draft MSHCP 
to NMFS and other agencies.  
 
On October 4, 2018 the District Court entered a Judgment and Permanent Injunction 
in favor of Plaintiffs. 
 
On September 23, 2018, the Court in the Wishtoyo Litigation issued an order that 
included its findings of fact and conclusions of law based on the trial. Operative findings 
and conclusions are the basis for the subsequent judgment. On October 4, 2018, the 
Court issued the judgment, finding the District in violation of the ESA section 9 
regarding Steelhead; ordering the District to: continue with Freeman Diversion 
operations according to the diversion and flow-related RPA of the 2008 BiOp, until 
such time as the District obtains an incidental take permit; accelerate the design of at 
least two alternative fish passage systems; choose a final fish passage system by April 
31, 2020; submit updated permit application documents by June 30, 2020; and 
complete construction of the selected fish passage system no later than two years 
after receiving regulatory approvals. Implementation of the 2008 BiOp’s diversion and 
flow-related RPA as required by the Court results in very serious reduction in the ability 
to divert water at the Freeman Diversion.  
 
An Amended Judgment and Permanent Injunction (“Amended Judgment”) was 
entered on December 1, 2018, which vacated and superseded the October 4, 2018 
Judgment and Permanent Injunction. Thereafter, the District Court issued an Order 
Awarding Attorney’s Fees and Costs to Plaintiffs (“Order”) in the amount of $3,220,303.  
 
On June 5, 2020, the US District Court for the Central District of California issued an 
order awarding affirmed its judgment of September 23, 2018 which awarded attorneys’ 
fees to the plaintiff. The total award, plus interest is $3,438,943, to be paid in four 
installments. The first installment of $1,060,568 was paid on May 31, 2019. The 
second installment of $772,988 will be due on May 31, 2021, The third installment of 
$792,622  and the fourth of $812,755 will be due on May 31, 2022 and May 31, 2023 
respectively.  



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

45 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Freeman Diversion (continued) 
 
The design, permitting, construction, operation and maintenance of the new fish 
passage facility could have a significant effect on the financial position and cash flows 
of the District. Given that the fish passage improvement alternative that will ultimately 
be selected is not currently known, the range of costs for construction is approximately 
$45 million to $95 million. The District's goal is to comply with the Court’s direction by 
pursuing the design and evaluation of the two alternative fish passage systems. The 
District submitted the MSHCP and all permitting applications and environmental 
compliance documents on June 30, 2020. If the final permitting process moves quickly, 
construction could commence some time in 2023, and be completed in 2025. Through 
June 30, 2020, the District has spent or encumbered costs of $4,355,470 to evaluate 
the fish passage in order to comply with the ESA. 
 
Quagga Mussels 
 
In December 2013, the District discovered quagga mussels in the District’s Lake Piru 
reservoir. Quagga Mussels are a species of freshwater mussels, originally from 
Eastern Europe, which have been spreading from water body to water body across 
Europe, Canada, and the United States. Quagga mussels are often spread by 
improperly cleaned recreational boats or by conveyance of microscopic larval mussels 
(veligers) from one water source to another. Quagga infestations can become so thick 
that they clog water infrastructure, such as intake structures, pipes, valves, and 
hydroelectric plants. They can also weigh down and cause damage to floating 
recreational facilities, such as marina docks, floating restrooms, barges, and boats.  
 
Quagga mussels are very efficient at consuming plankton from the lakes and rivers in 
which they grow. In sufficient numbers, they can alter the water environment by 
removing plankton, which increases the clarity of the water and can result in harmful 
algal blooms. Lake Piru is usually an ideal environment for quagga mussels, and they 
were multiplying rapidly until the 2016-2017 rainy season when the population 
significantly decreased following sediment flows that smothered adult mussels on the 
bottom of the lake. In 2017-2018, the population has recovered but has shown less 
growth on surfaces previously covered in quagga mussels, potentially because of 
control efforts and/or poor water quality (high turbidity) in the lake. District staff is 
working with California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) on a hydrodynamic 
model to guide lake level management to control the population and a potential 
treatment option aimed at eradication.  
 
As required by California Fish and Game Code, the District is developing a Lake Piru 
Quagga Mussel Monitoring and Control Plan. The District submitted an eight revision 
of the plan to CDFW who have responded that the plan remains non-compliant. In FY 
2019-20, the District continued the process of developing a plan that CDFW can 
approve.  



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

46 

 
NOTE 16 CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Quagga Mussels (continued) 
 
UWCD applied to California Department of Pesticides for a special local need permit 
to allow treatment of Lake Piru with a copper molluscicide with the goal of extreme 
population control aimed at eradication. In FY 2019-20, the District continued and 
expanded its comprehensive monitoring program, consistent with the draft plan for 
Lake Piru and the larger watershed. Additionally, the District contracted scientific dive 
teams to conduct physical removal efforts from infrastructure in the lake. The District 
will continue dedicating resources to aid in managing the quagga mussel infestation, 
including implementing various control and potential eradication measures, and to 
maintain compliance with state and federal law pertaining to invasive species.  
 
The District spent $2,478,063 on quagga control measures through June 30, 2020. 
 
Lake Piru Recreation Area Operations 
 
On January 1 2014, the District entered into a concessions operating agreement with 
Parks Management Company (PMC) to run and operate the Lake Piru Recreation 
Area. The agreement has a seven year term and includes the option for two five year 
extensions. The initial operating agreement terms state that PMC would pay the 
District a total of 10% of its adjusted gross revenue (AGR) on a monthly basis, would 
pay for water use within the recreation area and would invest $150,000 in capital 
improvements within the facility. However, in 2015, the District issued two contract 
amendments. The amendments among other things: a) relieved PMC from making 
payments for water use (within specified levels); (b) making capital improvements 
investments; and (c) revised the lease payment portion of the agreement to state that 
PMC would only render the 10% AGR payment if its total annual income exceeded 
$750,000. These amendments were issued in order to help the concessions operation 
maintain financial viability during the prolonged drought which has greatly affected the 
visitation at the recreation area. 
 
On February 15, 2017, the District approved an additional contract revision. Under the 
new agreement terms, PMC will collect all revenues and then bill the District for all 
expenses, including up to a 15% profit margin, not covered by the revenues collected. 
In the event revenues exceed expenses as described previously, the District is entitled 
to all revenues above the monthly expenses, less the 15% profit margin. The additional 
projected annual cost to the District, under the new agreement, ranges between 
$350,000 and $450,000. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

47 

 
NOTE 17 CLAIMS 

 
City of San Buenaventura 
 
Beginning in 2011, the City of Ventura initiated litigation against the District to 
challenge its Fiscal Year 2011-12 increases in groundwater extraction charges 
approved by the District and imposed upon the City.  The City of Ventura alleged that 
the District’s extraction charge increases violated Proposition 218 (California 
Constitution, Article XIIID, section 6, subdivision (b)(3), as discussed under the caption 
“CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—
Proposition 218”) or, alternatively, Proposition 26 (California Constitution, Article 
XIIIC), as discussed under the caption “CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON 
APPROPRIATIONS AND CHARGES—Proposition 26”), by imposing fees on the City 
and other municipal and industrial users which the City contended impermissibly 
exceeded the groundwater replenishment and capital improvement benefits provided 
by the District to such users, while, pursuant to California Water Code § 75594 
(“Section 75594”), imposing extraction charges on agricultural users that were 
disproportionately low in comparison to the groundwater replenishment and capital 
improvement benefits enjoyed by such users. Section 75594, which the City of Ventura 
seeks to invalidate as unconstitutional, provides in part that “any ground water charge 
in any year shall be established at a fixed and uniform rate for each acre-foot for water 
other than agricultural water which is not less than three times nor more than five times 
the fixed and uniform rate established for agricultural water. 
 
The City of Ventura also alleged that the District’s groundwater extraction charges for 
municipal and industrial customers were (in compliance with Section 75594 but, 
according to the City, in alleged in violation of Articles XIIIC and XIIID of the State 
Constitution), three times the groundwater extraction charges for agricultural users 
although it was not three times as costly to serve municipal and industrial customers.  
The City of Ventura further alleged that the District’s extraction charge structure 
negatively affected the stewardship of the groundwater basins that the District 
oversees by failing to provide disincentives to agricultural users to pump groundwater. 
In 2012, the City of Ventura sued to invalidate the following year’s charges, and the 
two actions were consolidated for trial (Case No. 1414739) (the “2011 & 2012 
Challenges”).  In 2013 the City again sued the District challenging that year’s charges 
(the “2013 Challenge”).  Thereafter, from 2014 through 2018, the parties entered into 
a series of tolling agreements permitting the City to refrain from filing a lawsuit each 
year until a final determination of one of the lawsuits.  In 2019, the City again sued the 
District challenging that year’s charges (the “2019 Challenge”) after the parties were 
unable to agree upon a tolling agreement.  In 2020, the parties again entered into a 
tolling agreement.  All challenges were transferred to the Superior Court for the County 
of Santa Barbara. 
 
The City of Ventura was awarded judgment by a trial court in 2013 on the 2011 & 2012 
Challenges.  The trial court found that: (1) the charges were “property related fees” 
subject to Proposition 218; (2) the District did not prove compliance with the 
proportional cost requirement under Proposition 218; and (3) the District satisfied the 
requirements of Proposition 26.  The court ordered a refund of the 2011 and 2012 
charges paid by the City in excess of what the City would have paid under uniform 
rates, plus pre-judgment interest, and issued writs of mandate and judgment for the 
City. 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

48 

 
NOTE 17 CLAIMS (CONTINUED) 

 
City of San Buenaventura (continued) 
 
Both parties appealed.  In 2015, the California Court of Appeal, Second District, issued 
a published opinion reversing the trial court, vacating the judgment and finding in favor 
of the District, concluding that the District’s groundwater extraction charges were not 
property-related fees, did not exceed the District’s reasonable cost of regulating 
groundwater and were valid regulatory fees.  The Court of Appeal concluded that the 
District’s charges were not subject to Proposition 218 and met the requirements of 
Proposition 26.  
 
The City of Ventura appealed the Court of Appeal decision to the California Supreme 
Court, which issued a decision in 2017 holding that the District’s groundwater 
extraction charges were not property-related fees, and therefore not subject to 
Proposition 218.  The Court, however, also concluded that the charges were governed 
by Proposition 26 and that the Court of Appeal “did not address the City’s argument 
that the charges do not bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payor’s burdens 
on or benefits from the District’s conservation activities, as article XIII C requires.”  (City 
of San Buenaventura v. United Water Conservation Dist. (2017) 3 Cal.5th 1191, 1198.)  
The Court remanded the matter “to the Court of Appeal with instructions to consider 
whether the record sufficiently establishes that the District’s rates for the 2011-2012 
and the 2012-2013 water years bore a reasonable relationship to the burdens on or 
the benefits of its conservation activities, as article XIII C requires.” (Id. at p. 1214.)   
In 2019, the Court of Appeal found that the administrative records in the 2011 & 2012 
Challenges were insufficient to determine whether the requirements of Proposition 26 
were met.  The Court of Appeal remanded the matter to the trial court to vacate its 
writs, and to further remand to the District for another hearing to allow the parties to 
supplement the administrative records for the 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 water years 
with evidence bearing on whether the challenged rates bore a reasonable relationship 
to the burdens on or the benefits of the District’s conservation activities.  
 
Following a hearing on return of remitter in the matter, the trial court vacated the writ 
of mandate previously issued, and remanded the matter to the District for a new public 
hearing on the water year 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 rates for the purpose of 
supplementing the administrative record in the matter consistent with the decisions of 
the California Supreme Court and the Court of Appeal.  It further ordered that the 
District had six months from October 1, 2019 to hold the supplemental administrative 
public hearing, and that the City had 30 days after service of the District’s notice of 
completion of the administrative proceedings to file and serve a supplemental petition 
identifying all issues to be addressed by the trial court on the supplemental 
administrative record.  Thereafter, the District held a public hearing to supplement the 
record and the City filed a supplemental petition challenging the 2011-1012 and 2012-
2013 rates.  
 
The trial court subsequently stayed the 2011 and 2012 Challenges and the 2013 
Challenge, and scheduled a trial of the 2019 Challenge for December 2020, with a 
decision currently expected from the trial court in early 2021.  The District expects that 
the trial court’s decision in the 2019 Challenge will resolve all remaining common legal 
issues in the City of Ventura’s lawsuits against the District, although the District 
believes it is likely that either the District or the City of Ventura will appeal a decision 
that is adverse to their respective positions.



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

49 

 
NOTE 17 CLAIMS (CONTINUED) 

 
City of San Buenaventura (continued) 
 
There can be no assurance that the trial court will not rule in favor of the City of 
Ventura.  A trial court decision in favor of the City of Ventura, if upheld on appeal, could 
require the District to refund up to $5,000,000 to the City of Ventura for groundwater 
extraction charges imposed since 2011, with such refund likely to take the form of a 
credit applied toward groundwater extraction charges imposed upon the City of 
Ventura in the future.  Depending on the trial court’s findings or a possible appellate 
ruling thereon, the decision could also require the District to grant similar refunds to 
similarly situated municipal and industrial groundwater pumpers.  The projected 
operating results that are set forth under the caption “WATER SYSTEM FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION—Projected Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage” do not 
reflect the financial impact of a trial court decision in favor of the City of Ventura, but 
the impact could be material.  In the event of a decision in favor of the City of Ventura, 
the District could be compelled to raise groundwater extraction charges imposed upon 
all customers above the levels that are projected herein in order to ensure that it will 
have sufficient Net Revenues to pay the Series 2020 Installment Payments and other 
financial and operational obligations. 
 
The City and the District have additionally entered into a tolling agreement regarding 
potential, similar litigation concerning the District’s groundwater extraction rates for the 
2015-16, 2016-17 2017-18 and 2018-2019 fiscal years. 
 
Wishtoyo, Ventura Coastkeeper-Center for Biological Diversity 
 
On June 2, 2016, Wishtoyo Foundation, its Ventura Coastkeeper Program, and the 
Center for Biological Diversity filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for the 
Central District of California alleging that the District’s operation and maintenance of 
the Freeman Diversion results in unauthorized take of Steelhead and endangered 
Southwest Willow Flycatcher (Wishtoyo Litigation).  
 
During 11 days in December 2017 and January 2018, the District Court conducted trial 
in the Wishtoyo Litigation. 
 
On September 23, 2018, the Court in the Wishtoyo Litigation issued an order that 
included its findings of fact and conclusions of law based on the trial. Operative findings 
and conclusions are the basis for the subsequent judgment. On October 4, 2018, the 
Court issued the judgment, finding the District in violation of the ESA section 9 
regarding Steelhead; ordering the District to: continue with Freeman Diversion 
operations according to the diversion and flow-related RPA of the 2008 BiOp, until 
such time as the District obtains an incidental take permit; accelerate the design of at 
least two alternative fish passage systems; choose a final fish passage system by April 
31, 2020; submit updated permit application documents by June 30, 2020; and 
complete construction of the selected fish passage system no later than two years 
after receiving regulatory approvals. Implementation of the 2008 BiOp’s diversion and 
flow-related RPA as required by the Court results in very serious reduction in the ability 
to divert water at the Freeman Diversion.  
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

50 

 
NOTE 17 CLAIMS (CONTINUED) 

 
Wishtoyo, Ventura Coastkeeper-Center for Biological Diversity (continued) 
 
An Amended Judgment and Permanent Injunction (“Amended Judgment”) was 
entered on December 1, 2018, which vacated and superseded the October 4, 2018 
Judgment and Permanent Injunction. Thereafter, the District Court issued an Order 
Awarding Attorney’s Fees and Costs to Plaintiffs (“Order”) in the amount of $3,220,303.  
 
In June 2020, the Court of Appeals affirmed the district court judgement of October 
2018 and the awarded attorneys’ fees of approximately $3.4 million to the plaintiff, to 
be paid in installments over the next three fiscal years, as described in Note 16 above. 
 
Other Claims 
 
The District is a defendant in a number of lawsuits incidental to its operations. 
These lawsuits against the District have been evaluated and upon consultation with 
legal counsel, management believes that the ultimate resolution of such lawsuits 
would not have a material adverse impact on the financial statements. 
 
 

NOTE 18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On March 4, 2020, California Governor Gavin Newsom declared a State of Emergency 
in response to the spread of COVID-19 in the state of California. Water utilities are 
identified as critical infrastructure by the United States Department of Homeland 
Security and the DIstrict has activated its emergency response plan. The District has 
instituted guidelines prescribed by the Centers for Disease Control to help prevent the 
spread of COVID-19.  Accordingly, as of report issuance date, there is no direct threat 
to the water supply from the COVID-19 pandemic and the District foresees no 
circumstances under which the District’s groundwater and water delivery services will 
be compromised.  

 
In November 2020, the District issued the 2020 Revenue Certificates of Participation 
(COPs) with par value of $26.7 million and bond premium of $5.0 million.  About $13M 
of the proceeds will refund the 2001 and 2005 Revenue Bonds and the 2009 COP 
currently outstanding and approximately $19 million will be used to finance, in part, the 
capital improvement projects at the Freeman Diversion and the Santa Felicia Dam, as 
well as smaller projects throughout the District.  The 2020 COPS have maturity dates 
from 2021 through 2050 with an average duration of issue of about 11 years.  The True 
Interest Cost (TIC) of the COPs is 2.609%. 

 
Other than the events described above, no events have occurred subsequent to the 
balance sheet date through December 2, 2020, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued, that require adjustment to, or disclosure in, the financial 
statements.  

 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

51 

 
NOTE 19 NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) 

STATEMENTS ISSUED 
 

GASB Current Year Standards 
 
GASB No. 95 
In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
95, “Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance.” The 
Statement postponed the effective dates of certain Statements to provide temporary 
relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
effective dates of the affected Statements listed above have been updated to reflect 
the impact of this Statement.  
 
GASB Pending Accounting Standards 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several 
pronouncements, that have effective dates that may impact future financial 
presentations.  Management has not yet determined any impact the implementation of 
the following statements may have on the financial statements of the District. 

 
GASB No. 84 
In January 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
No. 84 “Fiduciary Activities”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is 
encouraged.  
 
GASB No. 87 
In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
87 “Leases”. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019.  
 
GASB No. 89 
In June 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
89 “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period”. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020.  
 
GASB No. 90 
In August 2018, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
90 “Majority Equity Interests-an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61”. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019.  
 
GASB No. 91 
In May 2019, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
91, “Conduit Debt Obligations.” The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

52 

 
NOTE 19 NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) 

STATEMENTS ISSUED 
 
GASB No. 92 
In January 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement 
No. 92, “Omnibus 2020.” The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  
GASB No. 93 
In March 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
93, “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates.” The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.  
 
GASB No. 94 
In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
94, “Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements.” The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2022.  
 
GASB No. 96 
In May 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements.” The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. 
 
GASB No. 97 
In June 2020, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 
97, “Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan – an amendment of 
GASB Statements No. 14, 84, and a suppression of GASB Statement No. 32.” The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 
15, 2021.  
 



 

 

Required Supplementary Information 
(Unaudited)



United Water Conservation District 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios  

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 
 

53 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Measurement Date 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 $ 6/30/2017
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost $ 27,950      $ 27,202      26,474      
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 48,228      44,583      41,087      
Actual and expected experience difference (6,933)       -            -            
Changes in assumptions -            -            -            
Changes in benefit terms -            -            -            
Benefit payments (27,066)     (18,713)     (17,993)     
Net change in Total OPEB Liability 42,179      53,072      49,568      
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 685,728    632,656    583,088    
Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) 727,907    685,728    632,656    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - employer 172,066    163,713    162,993    
Net investment income 39,377      36,765      26,975      
Benefit payments (27,066)     (18,713)     (17,993)     
Administrative expense (132)          (815)          (230)          
Other -            46             -            
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 184,245    180,996    171,745    
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 609,765    428,769    257,024    
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b) 794,010    609,765    428,769    

Net OPEB (Asset) Liability - ending (a) - (b) $ (66,103)     $ 75,963      $ 203,887    

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 109.08% 88.92% 67.77%

Covered-employee payroll $ 5,621,127 $ 5,559,274 $ 5,283,147 

Net OPEB (asset) liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll -1.18% 1.37% 3.86%

Notes to Schedule: 

Changes in assumptions: none

Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation.

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. 
Future years’ information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 



United Water Conservation District 
Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 

54 

 

 
 

 
 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2020 2019 2018

Statutorily Determined Contributions (SDC) $ 112,782     $ 112,980    $ 109,620    
Contributions in relation to the SDC (171,911)    (172,066)   (164,969)   

Contribution deficiency/(excess) $ (55,349)      $ (59,086)     $ (55,349)     

Covered-employee payroll $ 5,747,082  $ 5,621,127 $ 5,559,274 
Contribution as a percentage of covered payroll 2.99% 3.06% 2.97%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, one year prior 
to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Methodology

Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 2.75% per 
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% per 
Healthcare Trend Rates 4.00%
Retirement Age

Mortality

The probabilities of retirement are based on 
the 2009 CalPERS Experience Study
2014 CalPERS Active Mortality for 
Miscellaneous Employees

*Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. 
Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 

Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of implementation.

Entry Age Normal 

Straight-line amortization. For assumption 
changes and experience gains/losses: 
Expected Average Remaining Service 
Lifetime of all members that are provided 
with benefits. For asset gains and losses: 5 
years.



United Water Conservation District 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 

Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 

55 

 

 
 
(a) Proportion of the collective net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which 

includes both the Miscellaneous and Safety Risk pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool. 
 

Notes to Schedule 
 
1. GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 82 define covered-employee payroll as the total payroll of 

employees that are provided pensions through the pension plan or the payroll on which 
contributions are made. 

 
2. The Plan’s proportionate share of aggregate employer contributions may not match the actual 

contributions made by the employer during the measurement period. The Plan’s proportionate 
share of aggregate employer contributions is based on the Plan’s proportion of fiduciary net 
position shown in line 5 of the table above as well as any additional side fund (of unfunded liability) 
contributions made by the employer during the measurement period.  

 
*  Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. 

GASB 68 was implemented in fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 with a measurement date of June 
30, 2014, therefore only 6 years are shown. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Measurement 
Date

Employer's 
Proportion of the 

Collective Net 
Pension Liability 

(a)

Employer's 
Proportionate 
Share of the 

Collective Net 
Pension 
Liability

Employer's 
Covered 
Payroll

Employer's 
Proportionate 
Share of the 

Collective Net 
Pension Liability 
as a Percentage 
of the Employer's 
Covered Payroll

Pension's 
Plans 

Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 
Percentage of 

the Total 
Pension 
Liability

6/30/2014 0.01223% $ 7,611,273    $ 5,020,303 151.61% 77.48%
6/30/2015 0.10645% 7,306,703    5,106,149 143.10% 79.29%
6/30/2016 0.10723% 9,278,264    5,630,234 164.79% 75.17%
6/30/2017 0.10886% 10,795,523  5,283,147 204.34% 73.88%
6/30/2018 0.09925% 9,564,349    5,559,274 172.04% 77.74%
6/30/2019 0.10273% 10,526,612  5,621,127 187.27% 77.74%



United Water Conservation District 
Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions 

     Last 10 Fiscal Years* 

 

56 

 

 
 
Notes to Schedule 
 
Change in Benefit Terms: None 
 
Changes in Assumptions: In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in 
accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017.  
There were no  changes in the discount rate.  In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 
7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.  In 2016, there were no changes.  In 2015, amounts reported reflect an 
adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent 
(without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense). In 2014, amounts reported were based 
on the 7.5 percent discount rate. 
 
* - Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. 

GASB 68 was implemented in fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 with a measurement date of June 
30, 2014, therefore only 6 years are shown. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year

Actuarially 
Determined 

Contributions

Contributions 
in Relation to 
the Actuarially 
Determined 

Contributions

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Employer's 
Covered 
Payroll

Contributions 
as a 

Percentage of 
Covered 
Payroll

2014-15 908,781       (2,785,886)    (1,877,105) 5,106,149  54.56%
2015-16 524,361       (524,361)       -             5,630,234  9.31%
2016-17 542,174       (542,174)       -             5,283,147  10.26%
2017-18 1,984,562    (1,984,562)    -             5,559,274  35.70%
2018-19 1,035,479    (1,035,479)    -             5,621,127  18.42%
2019-20 1,211,196    (1,211,196)    -             5,747,082  21.07%



 

 

Statistical Section 
(Unaudited) 

 



United Water Conservation District 
Statistical Section (Unaudited) 

Table of Contents 
Year ended June 30, 2020 

 

57 

 
            Page 

Financial Trends          58 
 These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand  
 how the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
Revenue Capacity           61 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess one of the 
District's most significant local revenue source, water fees. 
 

Debt Capacity           67 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the District's current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional 
debt in the future. 

 
Demographic and Economic Information       71 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the District's financial activities take 
place. 

 
Operating Information         75 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the District's financial report relates to the 
services the government provides and the activities it performs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
 
 



United Water Conservation District 
Net Position by Component 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

58 

 

 
 
*  Fiscal year 2012-13 reflects the first year of the implementation of  GASB Statement Nos. 63 and 65 which resulted in a prior period 

adjustment of $424,269. Fiscal years 2005 through 2012 have not been restated. 
 
** Fiscal year 2014-15 reflects the first year of the implementation of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 which resulted in a prior period 

restatement of $8,035,525.  No prior years were restated. 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

(In Thousands) 2011 2012 2013 * 2014 2015** 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Net investment in capital assets 57,871$  58,680$  59,259$  59,042$  58,725$  61,690$  64,430$  66,295$  75,044$  81,205$   
Restricted 1,504      1,777      1,817      2,223      3,577      1,282      1,490      1,988      2,008      2,574       
Unrestricted 8,163      11,159    13,621    20,202    15,230    19,371    21,515    24,719    19,364    19,259     

Total net position 67,538$  71,616$  74,697$  81,467$  77,532$  82,343$  87,435$  93,002$  96,416$  103,038$ 

Fiscal Year



United Water Conservation District 
Changes in Net Position 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

59 

 

 
 
*  Fiscal year 2012-13 reflects the first year of the implementation of  GASB Statement Nos. 63 and 65 which resulted in a prior period 

adjustment of $424,269. Fiscal years 2005 through 2012 have not been restated. 
 
** Fiscal year 2014-15 reflects the first year of the implementation of GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71 which resulted in a prior period 

restatement of 8,035,525.  No prior years were restated. 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

(In Thousands) 2011 2012 2013 * 2014 2015** 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
REVENUES:
Charges for services:

Water conservation 7,005$   8,826$   11,402$ 12,210$ 10,647$ 10,093$ 10,481$ 11,705$ 11,299$ 14,646$ 
Lake Piru recreation facilities 114        123        142        103        43          2            2            3            3            4            
State Water Project importation 1,503     1,096     656        1,448     1,698     96          2,514     2,728     2,821     1,911     

Operating grants and contributions -         100        11          125        5            -         95          61          -         -         
Freeman Diversion facility 2,602     2,757     2,964     3,107     2,615     3,354     3,189     3,592     3,266     4,616     
Water delivery and treatment facilities 4,655     4,840     4,569     5,008     4,530     6,367     6,848     7,478     6,795     7,463     

Total revenues 16,160$ 17,786$ 19,824$ 22,001$ 19,538$ 19,912$ 23,129$ 25,567$ 24,184$ 28,640$ 
EXPENSES:
Water conservation 7,033$   7,518$   7,193$   7,577$   7,960$   7,994$   8,950$   9,830$   10,789$ 11,847$ 
Lake Piru recreation facilities 755        816        840        891        829        979        1,209     1,469     1,367     1,360     
State Water Project importation 765        766        1,434     973        1,230     415        1,942     1,685     2,768     1,386     
Interest on long-term debt 1,009     931        873        844        802        758        735        699        666        643        
Freeman Diversion facility 1,575     1,492     1,492     2,017     2,127     2,000     2,728     3,814     3,287     6,730     
Water delivery and treatment facilities 4,709     4,531     4,790     5,106     5,000     5,509     5,327     6,044     5,869     7,825     
Interest on long-term debt -         -         -         -         152        124        86          -         -         

Total expenses 10,993$ 16,054$ 16,622$ 17,408$ 18,100$ 17,779$ 20,977$ 23,541$ 24,746$ 29,791$ 

Total net (expense) revenue 314$      1,732$   3,202$   4,593$   1,438$   2,133$   2,152$   2,026$   (562)$     (1,151)$  

Fiscal Year



United Water Conservation District 
Revenue by Source 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

60 

 

 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

Fiscal 
Year

Charges for 
Services

Taxes/ 
Assessment

Grant/ 
Contributions

Earnings on 
Investments

Inter-
governmental 

Revenue
Other 

Revenues Total

2010 11,878,550$   2,673,878$     -$                28,741$          28,741$           2,763,145$     17,373,055     
2011 14,237,880     3,443,492       281,156          308,420          27,264$           3,557,328       21,855,540     
2012 17,897,078     3,101,409       144,815          160,103          15,288$           3,364,255       24,682,948     
2013 23,088,206     2,802,976       90,388            103,030          12,642$           3,000,831       29,098,073     
2014 24,625,666     3,572,638       125,000          146,879          21,879$           3,761,432       32,253,494     
2015 17,722,136     3,964,973       5,374              67,891            -$                 1,038,317       22,798,691     
2016 19,623,092     2,486,764       -                  110,372          -$                 370,358          22,590,586     
2017 20,235,988     5,054,131       94,649            157,267          49,691$           474,197          26,065,923     
2018 22,341,142     5,327,288       60,500            393,376          116,407$         629,224          28,867,937     
2019 20,851,748     5,536,140       -                  807,186          156,313$         969,094          28,320,481     
2020 28,640,249     2,869,564       174,684          700,083          172,373           3,855,528       36,412,481     



United Water Conservation District 
Water Production for (in Acre Feet) 

Last 10 Fiscal Years  
(amounts expressed in thousands) 

 

61 

 

 
 

July 1 - 
June 30

Water Pumped 
from Wells 
Agricultural

Water Pumped 
from Wells Non-

Agricultural
Water Deliveries 

Agricultural
Water Deliveries 
Non-agricultural

2011 120,858              41,751                19,439                10,982                
2012 125,033              39,651                22,802                11,424                
2013 145,054              41,920                16,779                11,329                
2014 173,045              43,251                10,065                10,967                
2015 149,294              37,760                6,290                  9,821                  
2016 153,329              35,559                6,772                  9,255                  
2017 135,036              36,037                6,698                  9,079                  
2018 152,394              37,058                7,675                  9,875                  
2019               113,484 38,149                5,985                  9,211                  
2020               117,696 39,148                7,491                  10,794                

Source: United Water Conservation District



United Water Conservation District 
Groundwater Pumping by Zone (Acre Foot) 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

62 

 

 
 

Fiscal Year Zone A Zone B Zone C District Total

2011 81,508                73,779                7,322                  162,609              
*2012 84,781                79,903                -                      164,684              
2013 90,690                96,284                -                      186,974              
2014 100,666              115,630              -                      216,296              
2015 90,187                96,867                -                      187,054              
2016 89,127                99,762                -                      188,888              
2017 84,094                86,979                -                      171,073              
2018 91,770                97,682                -                      189,452              
2019 70,804                80,830                -                      151,633              
2020 73,350                83,516                -                      156,867              

Zone A - 100% District-wide pump charge / 0% Freeman pump charge
Zone B - 100% District-wide pump charge / 100% Freeman pump charge
Zone C - 100% District-wide pump charge / 33% Freeman pump charge

* In FY 2011-12, the District eliminated Zone C.

Source: United Water Conservation District



United Water Conservation District 
Groundwater Charge Rates (per Acre Foot) 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

63 

Fiscal Year Zone
Pumped water used for 
agricultural purposes

Pumped water used for 
purposes other than 

agriculture

2011  A $19.50 $58.50
 B $37.50 $112.50
 C $25.50 $76.50

*2012  A $28.50 $85.50
 B $46.50 $139.50

2013  A $39.75 $119.25
 B $57.75 $173.25

2014  A $39.75 $119.25
 B $57.75 $173.25

2015  A $39.75 $119.25
 B $57.75 $173.25

2016  A $39.75 $119.25
 B $62.65 $187.95

2017  A $43.75 $131.25
 B $67.80 $203.40

2018  A $45.08 $135.24
 B $69.85 $209.55

2019  A $46.43 $139.30
 B $71.94 $215.84

**2020  A $57.04 $171.12
 B $90.97 $272.92

Zone A District-wide pump charges - 100%

Zone B District-wide pump charges - 100%
Freeman Diversion pump charge - 100%

Zone C District-wide pump charges - 100%
Freeman Diversion pump charge - 33%

* In FY 2011-12, the District eliminated Zone C.
** In FY 2019-20, the District added a Water Purchase Surcharge to Zone A and Zone B.

Source: United Water Conservation District



United Water Conservation District 
Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

64 

 

 
 
 
(1) Municipal and Industrial customer shall mean water used for domestic, industrial, commercial, 

urban, incidental irrigation or fire protection purposes. 
 
(2) Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Agricultural customer (Oceanview) shall mean Oxnard Hueneme 

Pipeline water used primarily for agricultural irrigation purposes. 
 
(3) The peak capacity in the OH Pipeline is 53.0 cubic feet per send (cfs). 
 

* Variable Costs = (up to 75% of customer sub-allocation). Variable costs shall mean the 
rate required per acre foot of water delivered and charged to individual customers up to 
75% of their 1985-89 historical sub-allocation.  

 
** Marginal costs = (over 75% of customer sub-allocation). Marginal costs shall mean the 

rate charged to individual customers for every acre foot delivered once their deliveries 
from Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline exceed 75% of their 1985-89 historical sub-allocation. 

 
*** Fixed charge represents per unit of peak capacity, all other rates per acre foot delivered. 

The above annual fixed charge shown is in addition to the variable/marginal rate charged 
as applies per individual customer. Charge is allocated over 12 monthly payments. 

 
This schedule is subject to all other terms and conditions per the "Water Supply Agreement for 
delivered water through the Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline" that may not be represented in this 
schedule. 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

July 1 - June 
30

Water delivered 
(acre feet)

Pipeline variable* 
water charge per acre 

foot Municipal & 
Industrial (1) Customer

Pipeline marginal* 
water charge per 

acre foot Municipal & 
Industrial (1) 

Customer

Pipeline variable* 
water charge per 

acre foot Agricultural 
(2) Customer

Pipeline marginal** 
water charge per 

acre foot Agricultural 
(2) Customer

Fixed Charge *** 
per unit of peak 

(3) capacity

2011 12,091            272.00$                     197.35$                  197.00$                  122.35$                  23,252.00$      

2012 12,606            292.50                       227.50                    199.50                    134.50                    2,418.00          

2013 12,573            325.60                       276.35                    210.10                    160.85                    23,305.00        

2014 12,294            375.22                       264.36                    259.72                    148.86                    13,994.00        

2015 10,966            370.99                       312.26                    255.49                    196.76                    13,924.00        

2016 10,550            501.61                       361.33                    376.31                    236.03                    14,874.00        

2017 10,419            522.50                       379.28                    386.90                    243.68                    14,737.00        

2018 11,401            528.65                       374.30                    388.95                    234.60                    16,689.00        
2019 10,454            534.94                       380.59                    391.04                    236.69                    16,689.00        
2020 11,850            541.95                       442.17                    360.00                    260.22                    26,801.00        



United Water Conservation District 
Pleasant Valley and Pumping Trough Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge 

(Agricultural Customers) 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

65 

 

 
 
 
* Pump charge is in addition to water charge per acre foot when the District pumps from the Saticoy 
Well Field in lieu of surface water. 
 
Note - GMA pump charge rates were: $6.00 effective July 1, 2014, $6.00 - $10.00 effective July 1, 
2015, $12.50 effective July 1, 2016, $17.00 effective August 1, 2019 for Saticoy Well Field and PTP 
Pipeline. 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

July 1 - 
June 30

Water delivered 
(acre feet)

Pipeline water charge 
per acre foot 

Agricultural Customer

Saticoy Well * 
Field Pump 
Charge per 

acre feet

2011 10,482               72.50$                      $           30.00 
2012 12,858               81.50                                     30.00 
2013 7,088                 92.75                       30.00             
2014 339                    92.75                       30.00             
2015 4                        112.75                     30.00             
2016 -                     117.65                     30.00             
2017 -                     122.80                     30.00             
2018 -                     124.85                     30.00             
2019 87                      126.94                     30.00             
2020 1,031                 145.97                     30.00             

July 1 - 
June 30

Water delivered 
(acre feet)

Pipeline water charge 
per acre foot 

Agricultural Customer

Saticoy Well * 
Field Pump 
Charge per 

acre feet

2011 7,848                 166.50$                    $           30.00 
2012 8,762                 175.50                                   30.00 
2013 8,447                 186.75                     30.00             
2014 8,399                 211.75                     30.00             
2015 5,140                 283.75                     30.00             
2016 5,477                 207.65                     30.00             
2017 5,357                 288.55                     30.00             
2018 6,149                 317.35                     30.00             
2019 4,655                 319.44                     30.00             
2020 5,403                 357.97                     30.00             

Pleasant Valley Pipeline Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge

Pumping Trough Pipeline Deliveries per Acre Foot and Rate Charge



United Water Conservation District 
10 Largest Customers by Revenues 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 and Nine Years Ago 

 

66 

 

Customer

Groundwater 
consumed 
(acre-feet)

Groundwater charge 
per acre foot

Water delivered 
by pipeline 
(acre-feet) Pipeline water charge per acre foot

Total water 
purchased 
(acre-feet)

Fixed Annual 
Charge

Well Repl. 
Charge

Supplemental 
Water Revenue 

City of Oxnard 7,026          $272.92 11,466             $541.95/$360.00 & $442.17*/$260.22 18,493           716,927$    88,373$  -$              $  8,609,840 
Port Hueneme Water Agency -              -                           3,348               $541.95/$442.17 3,348             596,322      45,563    -                2,456,150    
City of San Buenaventura 8,716          $171.12/$272.92 -                   8,716             -              -          -                1,828,349    
Pleasant Valley Co. Water 4,733          $90.97 538                  $145.97 5,270             322,200      -          -                831,203       
City of Santa Paula 4,155          $171.12 -                   4,155             -              -          -                711,019       
Reiter Brothers, Inc. 2,900          $57.04/$90.97 526                  $357.97** 3,427             102,600      -          -                536,199       
Farmers Irrigation Co. 8,424          $57.04 -                   8,424             -              -          -                480,502       
Southland Sod Farms 4,758          $90.97/$272.92 0                      $357.97** 4,758             11,400        -          -                444,284       
Duda Farm Fresh Foods 4,126          $57.04/$90.97 -                   4,126             -              -          -                355,626       
City of Fillmore 1,960          $171.12 1,960             -          -                335,334       

         46,798              15,878             62,675  $1,749,449  $133,936  $                -    $16,588,505 

Customer

Groundwater 
consumed 
(acre-feet)

Groundwater charge 
per acre foot

Water delivered 
by pipeline 
(acre-feet) Pipeline water charge per acre foot

Total water 
purchased 
(acre-feet)

Fixed Annual 
Charge

Well Repl. 
Charge

Supplemental 
Water Revenue 

City of Oxnard (incl OV mst mtr) 8,239          $103.35 12,136             $248.10/$184.60 &$179.20/$115.70 20,375           807,647$    -$        -$              $  4,238,209 
Port Hueneme Water Agency -              $0.00 4,216               $248.10/$184.60 4,216             641,844      -          -                1,640,249    
Pleasant Valley Co. Water 5,748          34.45 12,993             $59.45 18,741           -              -          -                1,192,891    
City of San Buenaventura 8,560          $103.35/ 67.35/ 49.35 -                   8,560             -              -          -                543,600       
City of Santa Paula 5,478          $16.45/ $49.35 -                   5,478             -              -          -                244,529       
CA Dept of Fish & Game 10,787        $16.45 -                   10,787           -              -          -                177,447       
Hiji Brothers 2,701          $34.45/ $22.45 539                  $143.45/$173.45/$50 3,240             -              -          -                173,978       
Southland Sod Farms 3,924          $34.45 -                   $143.45/173.45 3,924             -              -          -                135,235       
Farmers Irrigation Co 7,325          $16.45 -                   7,325             -              -          -                120,512       
City of Fillmore 2,263          $49.35 -                   2,263             -              -          -                111,670       

         55,025              29,884             84,909  $1,449,491  $         -    $                -    $  8,578,320 

* GMA Pump Charge increased on July 1, 2019 to $17.00 effective August 1, 2019 for Saticoy Well Field and PTP Pipeline.

** Includes GMA and Saticoy Well Field charges.

Source: United Water Conservation District

Fiscal Year 2009-2010

Fiscal Year 2019-2020



United Water Conservation District 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type  

Last 10 Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in Thousands Except for Population and Per Capita Amount) 

 

67 

 

 
 

Fiscal 
Year

Special 
Assessment 
Contract (1)

Revenue-
backed 
Bonds

Certificates of 
Participation

General 
Obligation 
Debt (2) Loans

Total 
Government

Assessed 
Valuations (3)

Percentage of 
Assessed 

Valuations (4) Population (5) Per Capita

2011 1,429$             12,483$      13,747$           -$                -$              $27,659 $32,865,629 0.08% 831,450         33.27         
2012 1,354               10,916        11,914             -              -            24,184              32,971,529      0.07% 836,553         28.91         
2013 1,242               9,459          11,516             -              -            22,217              34,233,154      0.06% 842,639         26.37         
2014 1,157               8,774          11,097             -              -            21,028              36,550,998      0.06% 847,885         24.80         
2015 1,757               8,062          10,658             -              -            20,477              38,102,042      0.05% 852,013         24.03         
2016 1,232               7,323          10,205             -              -            18,760              39,715,003      0.05% 854,383         21.96         
2017 1,266               6,882          9,737               -              -            17,885              41,679,612      0.04% 857,386         20.86         
2018 1,666               6,426          9,248               -              -            17,340              43,511,374      0.04% 859,073         20.18         
2019 1,581               5,950          8,745               -              -            16,276              45,788,839      0.04% 855,489         19.03         
2020 1,504               5,459          8,221               -              -            15,184              47,843,716      0.03% 853,747         17.78         

(4) Assessed valuation used as other economic base versus personal income.
(5) California Department of Finance Ventura County July 1st of each year.

Notes: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

The above data are alternative indicators that are considered relevant to United Water Conservation District.

Source: United Water Conservation District

(3) Source - County Auditor-Controller Ventura County - also refer to Demographic and Economic

(1) California State Water Project Contract
(2) Loan from Bureau of Reclamation



United Water Conservation District 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding  

Last 10 Fiscal Years 
(Amounts expressed in Thousands Except for Population and Per Capita Amount) 

 

68 

 

 
 

Fiscal 
Year

General 
Obligation Bonds

Total General 
Obligation Bonds

Total Assessed 
Valuations

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 
Valuations (1) Population (2) Per Capita

2011 -$                   -$                   32,865,629$   0.00% 831,450        -           
2012 -                     -                     32,971,529     0.00% 836,553        -           
2013 -                     -                     34,233,154     0.00% 842,639        -           
2014 -                     -                     36,550,998     0.00% 847,885        -           
2015 -                     -                     38,102,042     0.00% 852,013        -           
2016 -                     -                     39,715,003     0.00% 854,383        -           
2017 -                     -                     41,679,612     0.00% 857,386        -           
2018 -                     -                     43,511,374     0.00% 859,073        -           
2019 -                     -                     45,788,839     0.00% 855,489        -           
2020 -                     -                     47,843,716     0.00% 853,747        -           

(2) California Department of Finance Ventura County July 1st of each year.

The above data are alternative indicators that are considered relevant to United Water Conservation District.

Source: United Water Conservation District

(1) Source - County Auditor-Controller Ventura County.



United Water Conservation District 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 

June 30, 2020 
(Amounts expressed in Thousands) 

 

69 

 

 
 

Special 
Assessment 
Contract (1)

Revenue-
backed Bonds

Certificates of 
Participation

Total Debt 
Outstanding

Direct debt 1,504$            4,245$           8,221$           13,970$       
Overlapping debt -                  -                 -                 -               

Total direct and overlapping debt 1,504$            4,245$           8,221$           13,970$       

(1) California State Water Project Contract

Source: United Water Conservation District



United Water Conservation District 
Summary of Historic Operating Results and Pledge-Revenue and Non-Pledge  

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

70 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
REVENUES:

Water delivery charges 8,304,773$ 8,451,933$ 7,278,609$   6,941,588$   6,331,874$ 7,941,936$ 9,073,359$ 9,814,957$   9,945,745$   10,829,492$ 
Groundwater charges 5,648,726   7,575,270   11,160,081   12,577,381   10,958,078 11,505,767 11,382,921 12,711,756   11,062,316   13,936,301   
Less allowance for uncollectibles (876)            (9,527)         (22,720)         1,593            (10,870)       (3,595)         (24,585)       (8,664)           (10,445)         (59,220)         
Taxes 1,949,647   2,016,499   2,154,195     2,130,951     2,276,002   2,404,269   2,553,589   2,633,886     2,808,174     2,869,564     
Interest 90,699        69,737        58,801          59,524          67,892        100,075      148,429      393,376        807,186        626,748        
Other 190,912      530,332      511,226        667,738        589,786      114,487      428,880      629,224        969,094        1,899,312     

Total Revenues 16,183,881 18,634,244 21,140,192   22,378,775   20,212,762 22,062,939 23,562,594 26,174,535   25,582,070   30,102,197   

Operating expenditures (1)
Salaries 3,079,085   3,212,930   3,068,517     3,246,403     3,257,368   3,826,442   4,054,946   4,156,875     4,228,613     4,561,134     
Employee benefits 1,438,154   1,622,051   1,590,188     1,704,470     2,795,672   1,918,153   2,399,619   3,197,157     2,406,720     3,186,058     
Utilities 998,711      926,083      1,055,895     1,375,625     1,512,219   1,389,360   1,346,787   1,462,082     1,351,990 1,169,454
Maintenance 1,167,225   723,718      904,605        733,351        589,015      822,692      735,844      706,930        938,734        799,108        
Professional fees 1,168,058   1,326,488   1,100,249     1,884,040     2,170,319   2,013,411   2,542,817   5,523,165     3,758,550     7,882,633     
Miscellaneous 730,926      880,862      751,828        820,391        1,199,486   1,141,037   1,241,072   1,367,259     2,048,666     1,613,679     
General and administrative 2,164,448   2,275,837   2,405,438     2,560,638     2,482,543   2,745,072   2,711,470   2,989,367     1,815,577     4,355,836     

Total operating expenditures 10,746,607 10,967,969 10,876,720   12,324,918   14,006,622 13,856,167 15,032,555 19,402,835   16,548,850   23,567,902   

Net revenues 5,437,274$ 7,666,275$ 10,263,472$ 10,053,857$ 6,206,140$ 8,206,772$ 8,530,039$ 6,771,700$   9,033,220$   6,534,295$   

Debt Service:
Principal 3,370,000$ 3,430,001$ 1,980,000$   1,100,000$   1,145,000$ 1,190,000$ 910,000$    945,000$      980,000$      1,015,000$   
Interest 1,185,358   1,085,538   977,181        912,844        869,950      824,634      776,724      739,459        783,269        655,108        

Total Parity debt service (2) 4,555,358$ 4,515,539$ 2,957,181$   2,012,844$   2,014,950$ 2,014,634$ 1,686,724$ 1,684,459$   1,763,269$   1,670,108$   

Coverage of system net revenues to
parity debt service 1.19 1.70 3.47 4.99 3.08 4.07 5.06 4.02 5.12 3.91

Debt Service:
Principal 928,000$    -$            -$              -$              -$            -$            -$            -$              -$              -$              
Interest 28,885        -              -                -                -              -              -              -                -                -                

Total debt service on other debt payable
from net revenues 956,885$    -$            -$              -$              -$            -$            -$            -$              -$              -$              

Coverage on all debt payable from
net revenues 0.99 1.70 3.47 4.99 3.08 4.07 5.06 4.02 5.12

(1) Excludes depreciation capital expenditures and debt service.

(2) Includes 2001, 2005, 2006 Revenue Bonds, 2009 Certificates of Participation bond contracts.

     Does not include other obligations of the District not secured by an express pledge of water revenues.

Source: United Water Conservation District

Fiscal Year



United Water Conservation District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics of Ventura County 

Last 10 Calendar Years 
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands) 

 

71 

 

 
 
 
(1)  Source - County Auditor-Controller Ventura County, Property Tax, Direct Assessments, District 

Recap Valuations. 
 
(2)  California Department of Finance Ventura County July 1st of each year E-2 estimates.

Fiscal 
Year

Utility 
Valuations

Secured 
Valuations

Unsecured 
Valuations

Total 
Assessed 
Valuations 

(1)
Population 

(2)

2011 106,617      31,672,936 1,086,077   32,865,629 831,450      
2012 122,321      31,736,906 1,112,301   32,971,529 836,553      
2013 149,318      32,906,520 1,177,315   34,233,154 842,639      
2014 143,950      35,163,390 1,243,659   36,550,998 847,885      
2015 122,776      36,847,771 1,131,495   38,102,042 852,013      
2016 80,267        38,541,466 1,093,269   39,715,003 854,383      
2017 66,866        40,599,584 1,013,162   41,679,612 857,386      
2018 51,249        42,390,507 1,069,618   43,511,374 859,073      
2019 22,261        44,607,687 1,158,710   45,788,839 855,489      
2020 60,798        46,547,390 1,235,528   47,843,716 853,747      



United Water Conservation District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics of Ventura County (Continued)  

Last 10 Calendar Years 
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands or Acre Foot as Indicated) 

 

72 

 

 
 
 
(1)  Source: Ventura County Agricultural Commissioner, most current information available. 
 
(2)  Source: Ventura County Agricultural Commissioner, calculated by the California Department of 

Conservation's Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program and excludes grazing land. 
 
The above data are alternative indicators that are considered relevant to United Water Conservation 

District. 
 

Calendar 
Year

Gross Value of 
Crops (1)

Lending Commodity 
Value Strawberry (1)

Acres of 
Agricultural of 
Farm Land (2)

2010 1,859,151         542,127                     N/A
2011 1,844,260         625,509                     96,340              
2012 1,963,798         691,303                     N/A
2013 2,094,915         608,765                     92,273              
2014 2,137,033         627,964                     93,376              
2015 2,198,555         617,832                     95,802              
2016 2,198,555         617,832                     95,802              
2017 2,099,889         654,312                     95,850              
2018 2,103,232         670,716                     91,350              
2019 1,990,100         508,371                     95,813              



United Water Conservation District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics of Ventura County (Continued)  

Last 10 Calendar Years 
(Amounts Expressed in Thousands Except Population and Per Capita) 

 

73 

 

 
 
 
(1)  California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit, E-5 Population and Housing 

Estimates.  
 
(2)  U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, most current information available. Note: Year 2015 was not 

available, calculated a five year average. 
 
(3)  California Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division. 
 
The above data are alternative indicators that are considered relevant to United Water   

Conservation District.  
 

Calendar 
Year Population (1)

Personal 
Income (2)

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income

Unemployment 
Rate (3)

2010 824,441         37,605,326$     45,565$            10.4%
2011 831,606         39,627,111       47,703              9.7%
2012 836,782         41,294,216       49,483              8.5%
2013 842,964         41,728,050       49,706              7.2%
2014 848,038         43,878,654       51,984              6.0%
2015 852,199         46,269,484       54,581              5.3%
2016 853,673         47,397,620       55,779              5.0%
2017 854,987         44,113,605       52,307              4.0%
2018 855,489         46,629,719       57,206              3.8%
2019 842,886         48,579,555       57,270              3.9%



United Water Conservation District 
Demographic and Economic Statistics of Ventura County (Continued)  

Calendar Year Ended December 31, 2019 and Nine Years Ago 

 

74 

 

 
 
Source:  California Economic Forecast (February 2019 Report for Ventura County) UCSB Economic 

Forecast Project (2010), most current information available. 
 
The above data are alternative indicators that are considered relevant to United Water Conservation 

District. 
 
 

Principal Employers Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total County 
Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 
Total County 
Employment

United States Naval Base 18,776       1 6.04% 19,000       1 6.28%
County of Ventura 8,435         2 2.71% 8,121         2 2.68%
Amgen, Inc. 5,500         3 1.77% 6,500         3 2.15%
WellPoint Inc. 2,860         4 0.92% 3,623         5 1.20%
Simi Valley Unified School District 2,737         5 0.88% 2,591         6 0.86%
Community Memorial Hospital 2,300         6 0.74% -             N/A 0.00%
Conejo Valley Unified School District 2,050         7 0.66% 2,169         10 0.72%
Dignity Health 1,904         8 0.61% -             N/A 0.00%
Ventura Unified School District 1,835         9 0.59% 2,197         9 0.73%
Oxnard Union School District 1,654         10 0.53% -             N/A 0.00%
Countrywide Financial Corp. -             N/A 0.00% 5,588         4 1.85%
Vons -             N/A 0.00% 2,282         7 0.75%
Verizon Communications 163            48 0.00% 2,200         8 0.73%

48,214       15.45% 54,271       17.94%

2019 2010



United Water Conservation District 
Operating Information 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

75 

 

 
 
 
General and administrative employees compensation allocated to water conservation and facilities 

based on an agreed upon in-direct cost allocation methodology. 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

Fiscal Year
Water 

Conservation

Facility 
Operations and 
Improvements

Recreation 
Facilities

General and 
Administrative

Total District 
Employees

2011 10 28 2 13 54
2012 9 25 2 12 48
2013 13 25 2 13 53
2014 11 22 2 14 49
2015 12 25 2 13 52
2016 14 27 3 14 58
2017 16 26 6 14 62
2018 15 25 4 13 57
2019 15 25 5 13 58
2020 15 26 4 19 64



United Water Conservation District 
Operating Information (Continued) 

Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

76 

 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District

Well Depth In Feet
Well Capacity 

Gallons Per Minute

The Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline has twelve active pumping wells:

320                          3,200                       
308                          2,600                       
304                          2,470                       
319                          3,100                       
360                          3,500                       

1,112                       2,500                       
1,410                       2,500                       
1,495                       3,500                       

330                          3,500                       
340                          2,150                       
300                          2,150                       
380                          2,500                       

Well Depth In Feet
Well Capacity 

Gallons Per Minute

1,300                       2,300                       
1,286                       1,600                       
1,310                       1,975                       
1,500                       3,100                       
1,220                       2,400                       

Well Depth In Feet
Well Capacity 

Gallons Per Minute

375                          1,800                       
330                          1,300                       
360                          1,800                       
280                          1,200                       

Well No.

2A

12

5
6

17

8
11

             13-Standby

1
2

14
15
16

The Pumping Trough Pipeline has five deep aquifer irrigation
pumping wells:

18

Well No.

2
3
4

Well No.

The Saticoy Well Field has four upper aquifer irrigation 
pumping wells:

The Pumping Trough Pipeline also has one Booster Pump with

pumping capacity of 6,700 gallons per minute.

1

3
4
5



United Water Conservation District 
Operating Information (Continued) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

77 

District Facilities:  United Water Conservation District operates a series of water conservation facilities 
within the watershed of the Santa Clara River.  The facilities are used to store water run-off, divert 
water, recharge aquifers through the use of spreading ponds and deliver water to municipalities and 
agricultural growers.  The District has over 1,156 active water wells within the District's service area.  
The District estimates these wells are owned by approximately 700 individuals.  A listing of some of 
the major facilities is as follows: 
 

 
 
Source: United Water Conservation District 
 

Santa Felicia Dam

Ferro Basin

Noble Rose Basins

Mugu Lateral

Freeman Diversion Construction completed in 1991.
A concrete structure spanning the Santa Clara River with water diversion of 375 cfs.

120 acre Noble Basin
117 acre Rose Basin

Diverts water released from Lake Piru and natural runoff from the Santa Clara River.
Flows via canal and pipelines to a 44 acre desilting basin.

231 acre Ferro Basin

Average annual diversion:  68,000 acre feet

The main purpose of the dam is to catch water run-off from Piru Creek.

Basin dividers:  4 cells separated by 15 to 20 foot earthen berms
Percolation capacity:  200 AF

Pipeline to Point Mugu Naval Air Station
Leased long term to Port Hueneme Water Agency

From the desilting basin water flows via canals and pipelines to spreading grounds
and other water delivery systems.

Acquired in 2009
Not presently connected to the District's recharge system

An earthen dam constructed in 1954 with a maximum height of 200 feet.

Created by the Santa Felicia Dam.
The main purpose of the Lake is to store water run-off and release, in controlled
amounts, water to replenish several groundwater basins and supply surface water
for irrigation to agricultural areas of the District.
Capacity:  maximum 82,000 acre feet to a minimum pool of 16,000 acre feet.

Constructed in 1931.

Converted from an aggregate mining pit in 1994

Lake Piru

Piru Diversion and 
Spreading Grounds Percolating Capacity: 150 acre-feet per day

Average Annual Spreading: 0 acre feet (not currently in use)



United Water Conservation District 
Operating Information (Continued) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

 

78 

Saticoy Spreading Grounds

El Rio Spreading Grounds

Municipal Delivery Systems:
Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline

Agricultural Delivery Systems:

Saticoy Well Field
4 wells

Source: United Water Conservation District

Pumping Trough Delivery 
System

Pleasant Valley Delivery 
System

12 miles of distribution pipeline
Delivery:  53 cfs of potable water to customers

13 turnouts and servicing agent for 53 turnouts. Includes City of Oxnard, Port
Hueneme Water Agency (that provides service to the City of Port Hueneme, Point
Mugu and Port Hueneme Navel bases and 4 mutual water companies), Vineyard
Avenue Estates MWC, Rio Real & Rio Del Valle Schools

1 booster station

Average delivery capacity of approximately 12,000 acre feet of water per year

Construction completed in 1986 consisting of:

Construction completed in 2005

Completed approximately 1958. The primary purpose is to sell diverted river water
to the Pleasant Valley County Water District (PVCWD) to offset pumping of wells
in the PVCWD area.

Serves 12,000 acres of farmland
The pipeline is 25,600 feet long and 54 inches in diameter. 4 turnouts
Design capacity: 75 cfs
2 reservoirs totalng 230 acre feet of capacity
Average surface water delivery is 8,700 acre feet per year.

2   8 million gallon clearwells

Wetted area:  130 acres
Basin dividers:  6 to 8 foot earth dikes
Percolating capacity:  450 acre-feet per day
Annual average spreading:  22,500 acre feet

Basin dividers:  6 to 8 foot earth dikes
Percolating capacity:  240 acre-feet per day

The purpose is to increase storage in the upper aquifer by pumping at the Saticoy
spreading grounds and delivering excess water to the Oxnard Plain to relieve
pumping in the Lower Aquifer System.

Serves 4,600 acres of farmland

Headworks and canal capacity:  375 cfs

15 miles of distribution pipeline.  62 turnouts

1 chloramination facility
1 booster plant

Number of basins:  15 including desilting basin

Saticoy to El Rio pipeline capacity: 150 cfs
Number of basins:  10
Wetted area:  100 acres

5 wells
1 reservoir

Consists of:
12 wells located at the El Rio spreading grounds and Rose Avenue

Annual average spreading:  31,300 acre feet



 

 
 
 
 

www.vasquezcpa.com 
 
Vasquez & Company LLP has 50 years of experience in performing audit, accounting & consulting services for all types of nonprofit 
organizations, for-profit companies, governmental entities and publicly traded companies.  Vasquez is a member of the RSM US 
Alliance. RSM US Alliance provides its members with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance member firms are 
separate and independent businesses and legal entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate 
and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US LLP is the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent 
audit, tax, and consulting firms. Members of RSM US Alliance have access to RSM International resources through RSM US LLP but 
are not member firms of RSM International. Visit rsmus.com/about us for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM 
International. The RSM™ logo is used under license by RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance products and services are proprietary to RSM 
US LLP.        

 
655 N Central Avenue, Suite 1550  •  Glendale, California 91203-1437  •  Ph. (213) 873-1700  •  Fax (213) 873-1777 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



To: 

Through: 

CC:

From: 

Date: 

Staff Report 

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
Anthony Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Joseph Jereb  

Linda Purpus, Environmental Services Manager 

November 18, 2020 (December 8, 2020 Meeting) 

Agenda Item: 4. (Board Agenda Item 4.1) Budget Transfer (Fund 420) in the amount of
$200,000 from Legal Fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52510) to Professional 
Fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52220) – No net fiscal impact  

Staff Recommendation:   
The Committee will consider recommending to the full Board authorization of a budget transfer 
within Fund 420 from legal fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52510) to professional fees 
(Fund/Account 420-600-52220). The budget transfer will provide funds for achieving regulatory 
authorizations for sediment management activities to occur at the Freeman Diversion facility. The 
proposed budget transfer will not result in a net fiscal impact. 

Discussion: 
As a result of progress memorialized in the Court Order filed on August 21, 2020, regarding the 
stipulation resolving plaintiffs’ motion for contempt and defendants’ motion to modify the 
injunction in the Wishtoyo et.al. v. the District legal case, staff anticipates an underutilization of 
funds budgeted for legal fees during fiscal year 2020-21.  Within the first quarter of the current 
fiscal year, the need to develop a programmatic approach to facilitate future sediment management 
at the Freeman Diversion has been prioritized. This project was not considered during development 
of the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget, and funding is not currently available to support this effort.  

Securing regulatory approvals for a programmatic approach to sediment management will require 
a complex and robust environmental analysis at both state and federal levels. This project will 
require analysis and public notification under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
in addition to development of application packages for permits and authorizations required under 
the Clean Water Act (Sections 401 and 404), California Fish and Game Code (Section 1600), 
including consultation with regulatory agencies under the Endangered Species Act. The proposed 
budget transfer is sufficient to fund the magnitude of effort required to achieve regulatory 
authorizations for future sediment management at the Freeman Diversion facility. Staff 
recommends that the Board authorize the budget transfer to provide funding for this effort. 



Agenda Item 4. (Board Agenda Item 4.1) Budget Transfer (Fund 420) in the amount of 
$200,000 from Legal Fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52510) to 
Professional Fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52220) – No net fiscal impact 

2 

Fiscal Impact:  
The proposed budget transfer will not result in a net fiscal impact. Funds would be transferred 
from legal fees (Fund/Account 420-600-52510; Project 5400-305) to professional fees (Fund/ 
Account 420-600-52220; 1020-300). 



Staff Report 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Clayton W. Strahan, Chief Park Ranger 

September 22, 2020 (October 13, 2020, December 8, 2020 meeting) 

 4. (Board Agenda Item 4.4) Resolution 2020-19 Approving an Amended 

and Reinstated Ordinance No. 15 to Amend the Established Rules and 

Regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation Area and Extend the 

Authority Granted to the District’s Park Ranger Personnel 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Committee will consider recommending to the full Board the adoption of Resolution 

2020-19 approving an amended and restated Ordinance No. 15, amending established rules 

and regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation Area and extending the authority granted to the 

District’s Park Ranger personnel. 

Background: 

On May 23, 2019, the Board adopted a revised and restated Ordinance No. 15 United 

Water Conservation District Amended and Restated Ordinance No. 15 Establishing 

Rules and Regulations for Public Use of the Lake Piru Recreation Area. The motion 

specifically modified the authority of Park Ranger personnel at Lake Piru to grant Limited Peace 

Officer Authority under California Penal Code 830.31(b). However, that authority was limited 

to personnel who were on duty and only within the boundaries of the Lake Piru Recreation Area.   

As the District’s operations have expanded and evolved, there is a growing need and desire 

for Park Ranger personnel to assist in moderate and occasional education/enforcement actions in 

and around other District facilities. As the homeless population in the Santa Clara River expands 

and encroaches upon District property, there is a need to address issues associated with litter 

and trespassing to mitigate potential impacts. Given the level of training and experience 

associated with similar matters and given the low level of risk associated with such forms of 

education and enforcement, staff has determined that the Park Ranger personnel are best suited to 

address these matters. However, because Ordinance 15 specifically limits Park Ranger 

authority to within the Lake Piru Recreation Area, this cannot occur.   

Attached herein is both a revised and a redlined version of Ordinance No. 15 which has 

been specifically amended to extend the authority of Park Ranger personnel to include all 



Agend Item 4.  (Board    Agenda  Item  4.4)   Resolution 2020-19 Approving an Amended and 

Restated Ordinance No. 15 to Amend the Established Rules and 

Regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation Area and Extend the 

Authority Granted to the District’s Park Ranger Personnel 

2 

District boundaries and to address a few minor administrative issues.  Specifically, changes 

have been made as follows: 

• Section 1.18: Administrative language change to reflect the current organizational

reporting structure within the Recreation division;

• Section 2.1: Administrative language change to reflect the current organizational

reporting structure within the Recreation division;

• Section 2.1.1: This section was revised to change the Rangers current authority from the

“Boundaries of Lake Piru” to “District Properties;”

• Section 2.1.2: This section was revised to change the Rangers current authority from the

“Boundaries of Lake Piru” to “District Properties;”

• Section 2.2: This section was revised to change the Rangers current authority from the

“Boundaries of Lake Piru” to “District properties.”

As noted, the revisions are called out in sections 1.18, 2.1, 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.2 in the included 

attachments referred to as Attachments A-Redline and Attachment B-Clean. Also, the staff has 

included a copy of the related Resolution 2020-19 as Attachment C. 

Additional Discussion 

The above request was presented to the Board at its Regularly scheduled Board meeting on 

September 9, 2020.  At that time, the Board requested several items as follows: 

• Revise the Language in Ordinance No. 15 to state District properties rather than District

boundaries

• To prepare a map addressing areas of concern that Rangers would patrol and or assist in

patrolling

• Develop a Protocol for how Rangers would be contacted, and how the additional duties of

patrolling a greater area would be handled

As requested, staff has made the requested language changes and prepared a map, which is now 

attached herein as Attachment D.  Additionally, for a point of clarification staff has summarized 

the protocol for such incidents below.  It should be noted that these protocols are directly spelled 

out in the Park Range Policy manual approved by the Board in May of 2019.   

• Rangers will receive a request for aid or response

• Rangers will assess the request and, if resources (staffing coverage) are available, they will

respond

o If the necessary resources are unavailable (not adequate to cover the Recreation

Area), Rangers will differ the response their peers at the Ventura County Sheriff’s

Office

• Rangers will assess the violation and determine what action if any is needed

• Rangers will coordinate with local law enforcement and various department personnel to

perform work, implement preventative measures for trespassing and littering and if

necessary, issue District citations to potential violators



Agenda Item 4.  (Board Agenda  Item  4.4) Resolution 2020-19 Approving an Amended 
and Restated Ordinance No. 15 to Amend the Established Rules and 
Regulations for the Lake Piru Recreation Area and Extend the Authority 
Granted to the District’s Park Ranger Personnel 

3 

• Rangers would begin patrolling District properties found to be of risk or concern as needed

or periodic basis and only when in the area performing other tasks (i.e. they would make

an effort to patrol areas in an around El Rio or Saticoy when in the area performing other

work tasks and when additional personnel were onsite at the Lake to provide adequate

coverage)

Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this change. Personnel costs will remain the same and 

expanded duties would be conducted within the parameters of the existing staffing structure and 

existing schedule of onboard personnel. Some expenses would shift from one fund/project to 

another based on account coding. While the cost to work in other areas may have a very minimal 

increase, the cost of staffing in recreation would see a relative minimal decrease. Thus, there is no 

net fiscal impact.   

Attachments:  A - No. 15 - Redlined 

 B - Ordinance No. 15 - Clean 

 C - Resolution 2020-19 

 D - Property Map (Lake Piru) 

E - Property Map (Saticoy & El Rio)  

F - Property Map (UWCD District Map) 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 1 

 

 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

AMENDED AND RESTATED ORDINANCE NO. 15, ESTABLISHING RULES 

AND REGULATIONS FOR  

PUBLIC USE OF THE LAKE PIRU RECREATION AREA 
  

 

The Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District hereby adopts Amended and 

Restated Ordinance No. 15 establishing the Rules and Regulations for Public Use of the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area, and therefore ordains as follows: 

 

The following rules and regulations shall govern the public use of the Lake Piru Recreation 

Area: 

 

1. DEFINITIONS - As used in this document: 

1.1 "AQUAPLANE" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted 

in California Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §651(ab) which states “Water 

skis, an aquaplane, or a similar device” includes all forms of water skiing, 

barefoot skiing, skiing on skim boards, knee boards, or other contrivances, 

parasailing, ski kiting, or any activity where a person is towed behind or 

alongside a boat. 

1.2 "BOARD" means the Board of Directors of United. 

1.3 "VESSEL" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in Title 

14, California Code of Regulations (14 CCR) §6552(q) which states “Vessel” 

includes every description of water craft, including non-displacement craft and 

seaplanes, used or capable of being used a means of transportation on water 

1.4 "CAMP UNIT" means each vehicle, recreational vehicle, travel trailer, camper 

or vessel trailer entering the park for the purposes of camping or recreational 

use. 

1.5 “Citee” means a person who is being cited. 

1.6 “CLOSED AREA” means an area fenced, barricaded or signed as an area of the 

park that is closed to public access for any reason. 

1.7 "DEPARTMENT" means the Recreation Division of United and its Park and 

Recreation Manager and Park Rangers. These individuals are sometimes 

collectively hereafter referred to as “Department Personnel.” 

1.8 “EXOTIC ANIMAL” a rare or unusual animal pet, or an animal kept within 

human households which is generally thought of as a wild species not typically 

kept as a pet. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 2 

 

1.9 "FLOAT TUBE" means an inflatable tube specifically designed for fishing.  

1.10 "GENERAL MANAGER" means the General Manager of United. 

1.11 "HORSE" means any member of the equine family. 

1.12 "LAKE" means Lake Piru. 

1.13 "LAKE PIRU" means the lake created by Santa Felicia Dam. 

1.14 "LAKE PIRU RECREATION AREA" means the portion of United lands, 

including and adjacent to Lake Piru, used or planned for recreational use 

purposes and any other lands operated by United for recreational use, including 

the Blue Point Campground. 

1.15 “LIVESTCOK” means any farm animal regarded as an asset.   

1.16 “NOTICE TO APPEAR” A formal documented noticed approved by the Judicial 

Council and issued by law enforcement personnel to persons arrested for any 

violation declared to be an infraction or misdemeanor associated with violations 

of state law or regulations, or for any violation of local, state, city or county 

ordinance. When a person is not immediately taken before a magistrate, the 

arresting officer must prepare and issue a notice to appear.    

1.17 "PARK" means Lake Piru Recreation Area. 

1.18 "PARK AND RECREATION MANAGER" means the Park and Recreation 

Manager or the person acting in that capacity who is in charge of the Recreation 

Department of the District. The Park and Recreation Manager shall report to the 

General Manager or his or her designeeDistrict’s Chief Operations Officer. For 

purposes of this Ordinance, the District’s Chief Park Ranger shall act as the Park 

and Recreation Manager. 

1.19 “PARK RANGER” a Department employee of United at the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area as designated by the General Manager whom has been 

delegated limited peace officer authority pursuant to Penal Code Section 

830.31(b) by the Board of Directors and whom under oath has been sworn into 

the position of Park Ranger. 

1.20 “PERSONAL WATER CRAFT” For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the 

Definition noted in California Harbors and Navigation code HNC §651(s) which 

states “Personal watercraft” means a vessel 13 feet in length or less, propelled 

by machinery, that is designed to be operated by a person sitting, standing, or 

kneeling on the vessel, rather than in the conventional manner of sitting or 

standing inside the vessel. 

1.21 "SKI FLAG" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the Definition noted in 

Title 14, California Code of Regulations (14 CCR) §7009 which states  



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 3 

 

(a) A red or orange flag measuring no less than 12 inches on each side, in 

the shape of a square or rectangle, mounted or displayed in such a manner 

as to be visible from every direction shall be known as a ski flag. 

(b) The use of this flag will not be construed as conferring any rights or 

privileges on its users, and its display will not be construed in itself as 

restricting the use of the water in the vicinity of the vessel displaying the 

flag. 

(c) Operators of vessels will, however, exercise precaution commensurate 

with conditions indicated. 

(d) The ski flag shall be displayed when one or more of the following 

conditions exists. 

(1) A downed skier. 

(2) A skier in the water preparing to ski. 

(3) A ski line extended from the vessel. 

(4) A ski in the water in the vicinity of the vessel. The ski flag shall 

not be displayed at any other time. 

 

1.22 “SKIER” means any person engaged in recreational watersports in which one or 

more persons are towed behind or alongside a vessel or caused to be propelled 

or planed across the water via a tow line. 

1.23 “SPECIAL EVENT” means any activity outside of the day to day activities 

offered by the facility to include filming, races, music festivals, wine and beer 

festivals, car shows fishing tournaments, fishing derby, weddings, family 

reunions and any other recreational activity hosted by a private entity. 

1.24 “SPECIAL USE AREA” means the boundary beginning at the 5 mph buoys in 

the main marina, extending north to the Narrows at the north end of the lake and 

extending east from the western shoreline approximately 150 feet off shore. At 

the discretion of the Park and Recreation Manager, the boundary of the special 

use area may be extended from time to time to include an area south from the 

marina, within 150 feet of the shore to the Santa Felicia Dam and within 150 feet 

of the base of the dam moving east to the designated whitewater vessel take-out 

point at the east end of the dam for those whitewater vessels having been granted 

advance permission from the District to enter this area for the purpose of 

whitewater vessel portage over Santa Felicia Dam. 

1.25 “BATHER OR BATHING”  For the purpose of the this ordinance refer to the 

definition noted in California Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §651.1 which 

states “bather” or “bathing” means a person floating, swimming wading, or 

bodysurfing, with or without the use of a flotation device, including, but not 

limited to, floating upon or with the aid of a surfboard, paddle board, surf mat, 

inner tube, life preserver, or air mattress, except a flotation device which is 

designed to be propelled by sail, mechanical means, power, oars, or paddle. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 4 

 

1.26 "UNITED" or “DISTRICT” or “UWCD" means the United Water Conservation 

District. 

2. GENERAL  

2.1 Powers granted to the Department or its personnel pursuant to this 

Ordinance shall be construed as powers delegated by the Board to the General 

Manager, thereafter redelegated by the General Manager to the Chief Park 

Ranger Chief Operations Officer, thereafter redelegated to the or the position 

serving as the Park and Recreation Manager, and thereafter redelegated by the 

Park and Recreation Manager to the Park Rangers, as deemed appropriate. 

 

 2.1.1 Public Safety within the on District’s Lake Piru boundaries properties shall 

be enforced and maintained by the Park Ranger’s and their support staff.   

 

 2.1.2 On District Within the District’s Lake Piru boundaries properties and only 

when on duty, Park Rangers shall have peace officer status in accordance 

with State of California Penal Code Section 830.31 (b) and California 

Water Code 74652. 

 
 

2.2 Park  R a n g e r s   are  authorized  to  enforce  within on  D i s t r i c t  

b o u nd ar i e s  p r o p er t i e s the  Park:  (a)  the provisions of this Ordinance 

and any amendment(s) thereto; (b) all recreation and park rules and policies 

adopted and approved by the Board; and (c) the laws of the State of California  

including but not limited state laws and regulations pertaining to Fish and Game 

Code,  (d) California State boating Law, (e) The California Administrative Code 

Title 14 and the California Water Code. Park Rangers are authorized to issue 

administrative penalty citations for violations of this Ordinance and any 

amendments(s) thereto, in accordance with Government Code section 53069.4. 

Park Rangers are not authorized to enforce this Ordinance or state laws and 

regulations outside of District boundaries the Park. and or on properties not 

belonging to the District. 

 

 2.2.1 Any person who resists, delays, obstructs, threatens, harms or attempts to 

intimidate a Park Ranger in the discharge of his/her duties shall be subject 

to criminal prosecution pursuant to the California Penal Code.   

 

2.3 Pursuant to Water Code Section 74652, violations of the provisions of this 

ordinance relating to vehicle or vessel speed limits, defacement of park property, 

the use, possession or discharge of firearms as provided in Section 5.6(h) of this 

Ordinance, the possession or use of weapons or fireworks, the creation of fire 

hazards, being under the influence or possession of intoxicating beverages or 

dangerous drugs, or remaining on, or reentering the park without fully 

complying with all District rules and regulations or after a Park Ranger has 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 5 

 

specifically withdrawn consent to utilize park facilities shall be misdemeanors. 

Violations of any other provisions of this ordinance are infractions.   

2.3.1.  A violation of this Ordinance which is an infraction shall be punishable by 

a fine not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation, two 

hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation of the same ordinance within 

one year; and five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional violation of 

the same ordinance within one year.  In accordance with Water Code section 

74652, a violation of this Ordinance which is a misdemeanor shall be 

punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500), or 

imprisonment in the county jail not to exceed 30 days, or by both that fine 

and imprisonment.  Any violation or threatened violation of this Ordinance 

may also be enjoined by civil action.  Fines may be imposed and collected 

pursuant to Section 6 of this Ordinance.  

2.3.2 When any person is issued a Notice of Violation, the person issuing the 

Notice of Violation shall prepare, in triplicate, a written Notice of Violation, 

containing the name and address of the person violating the Ordinance, the 

offense charged, and the fine as approved by the Board of Directors for such 

offence. The fine specified in the Notice of Violation must be paid to the 

District within thirty (30) days of issuance pursuant to Section 6 of this 

Ordinance.   

2.3.3 All other violations of state laws and regulations shall be punishable by a 

fine approved by the state of California and as administered and processed 

by the Ventura County Superior Court judicial system. Such violations shall 

be processed as “Notices to Appear” and will be directly filed with the 

County Superior Court.  In accordance with California Penal Code Section 

853.7, all persons failing to appear before a magistrate in court as promised 

when a “Notice to Appear” is issued by an arresting officer, are subject to 

arrest and punishment by up to six (6) months in jail and or a $1,000 fine 

regardless of the disposition of the original charge.  

2.4 Department personnel are authorized to revoke any park permit and to expel any 

person from the Park for violation of any applicable law, ordinance, rule or 

regulation. This includes refusal to present, upon request, a valid identification 

document with proof of age. Park permit fees will not be reimbursed if any park 

permit is revoked.  

2.5 The Park and Recreation Manager is authorized to direct the visiting public in 

its use of the Park according to statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations 

applicable to the Park. In the event of fire or other emergency, and 

notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance, Department Personnel 

may direct the public as conditions may require to expedite vehicle or vesseling 

traffic, or the launching or removal of vessels, or to insure safety of the persons 

in the Park, to insure against pollution of the Lake, or to protect property and 

facilities in the Park. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 6 

 

2.6 It is unlawful to willfully fail to refuse to comply with any lawful order, signal 

or direction of any Department Personnel or to refuse to submit to any lawful 

inspection under this Ordinance. 

2.7 It is unlawful to create a breach of the peace at any time by violent, obscene, 

abusive, loud, boisterous, vulgar, lewd, wanton or otherwise disorderly conduct. 

2.8 It is unlawful to create unreasonable noise at any time by the operation of any 

sound amplifying equipment and power generation devices in a manner that 

disturbs others. 

2.9 It is unlawful for any person to solicit, sell, hawk or peddle any goods, wares, 

merchandise, liquids or edibles or distribute circulars in the Lake Piru Recreation 

Area without written authorization of the General Manager. 

2.10 It is unlawful to land any aircraft on Lake Piru without written authorization of 

the General Manager. 

2.11     With the exception of any activities authorized by the District’s swimming 

policy, it is unlawful to dive or engage in any underwater activity in Lake Piru 

without first obtaining the written approval of the Park and Recreation Manager. 

2.12     Department Personnel shall have the authority to cause to be towed, removed 

or disposed of any property in the Park at the owner’s expense when it has been 

left without written authorization of Department Personnel, becomes a 

navigational or safety hazard, has or may potentially introduce pollution in the 

Lake (this includes, but is not limited to, submerged vessels), or when the permit 

of the person(s) leaving the property has expired or has been revoked for 

violation of any applicable law. Submerged and sunken vessels must be removed 

from the Lake at the owner’s expense within 24 hours of sinking. 

2.13     The General Manager may make variances to this Ordinance as approved by 

the Board of Directors. The variances will apply only for the time specified. The 

variances will be on file in the Lake Piru Recreation Area while they are in effect. 

2.14     Camping and vesseling permits will only be issued to individuals eighteen 

(18) years of age and older with proper identification. Minors may be issued 

permits with appropriate written consent from a parent or legal guardian at the 

sole discretion of General Manager. 

2.15     It shall be unlawful for any person or persons to engage in any commercial 

activity within the Park, including commercial film production, and/or to host 

any special event except as authorized in writing by the General Manager and 

the Chief Park Ranger. 

2.16     It is unlawful for any person within the Park to appear, bathe, sunbathe, walk, 

change clothes, disrobe or be on a beach or waters adjacent thereto in such 

manner that the genitals, vulva, pubis, pubic symphysis, pubic hair, buttocks, 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 7 

 

natal cleft, perineum, anus, anal region or pubic hair region of any person, or any 

portion of the breast at or below the upper edge of the areola thereof of any 

female person, is exposed to public view or is not covered by an opaque 

covering, except in those portions of a comfort station, if any, expressly set aside 

for such purpose. This section shall not apply to: (a) children under the age of 

ten (10) years, (b) any live theatrical performance in a theater, auditorium, hall 

or similar building devoted to theatrical performances located on public land, or 

a film production where a special event permit is approved by the General 

Manager; and (c) any act prohibited, or the prohibition of which is preempted, 

by any provision of state law. 

3. PUBLIC USE FEES  

3.1 Public use fees for entering into and use of various Park facilities shall be 

established by resolution of the Board. 

3.2 It shall be unlawful for any person to enter, use or occupy any portion of the Park 

for which a public use fee has been established by the Board without paying such 

fee, except for persons authorized by the General Manager or the Park and 

Recreation Manager for administrative reasons. Any such violation may be 

enforced by administrative citation pursuant to this ordinance and/or pursuant to 

California Penal Code Section 602.   

3.3 Annual vessel and vehicle permits shall be issued to specific vessels and vehicles 

and may be transferred only in the event of transfer or sale of the vessel or 

vehicle to a new owner upon application to the Department and upon receipt of 

the payment of a transfer fee. Annual vessel permits are not transferable between 

vessels in the event the owner has more than one vessel.  

3.4 Payment of fees shall be made in cash, money order, credit cards, traveler’s 

checks or such other methods of payment approved by the Board. 

3.5 At the discretion of the General Manager, United or its authorized agent(s) may 

proceed to sue for delinquent fees in any court of competent jurisdiction or take 

any other legal proper steps to effect collection.  

3.6 Annual permits shall be valid for the remainder of the calendar year in which 

issued, terminating December 31 of the year in question unless revoked for 

cause. If an annual permit is revoked for cause, permit fees paid will not be 

reimbursed.  

3.7 Concession vessels shall not be required to obtain vessel permits but shall be 

subject to all other rules and regulations herein, including all applicable state 

laws and regulations.  

3.8 The Department may take possession of any certificate, card, permit or decal 

issued hereunder which may have been issued unlawfully or erroneously or 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 8 

 

which have been revoked, cancelled or suspended. Any associated fees paid will 

not be reimbursed.  

3.9 Camping and vehicle permits shall be affixed by the customer to the inside 

windshield of the vehicle viewable from the front side of the campsite.  

4. SCHEDULE OF OPERATION  

4.1 The schedule of operation for the Park shall be established by the Board. 

4.2 The General Manager is authorized to restrict the public use of the Park by 

closing the Park or any Park areas, including, but not limited to, Lake Piru, or 

any of the Park's facilities by restricting the hours of operation for good and 

sufficient reason, including, but not limited to, the following: 

4.2(a) Sanitary protection of the watershed. 

4.2(b) Fire suppression or prevention. 

4.2(c) Construction or maintenance. 

4.2(d) Dangerous or unsafe conditions. 

4.2(e) To prevent damage to the Park or its facilities. 

4.2(f) Conservation of fish and game. 

4.2(g) Special events and activities. 

5. RULES AND REGULATIONS  

5.1 Sanitary Regulations - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.1(a) To allow any animal or pet under that person's supervision to be in the Park 

unless controlled by a leash not exceeding eight feet in length, or to allow 

any animal to molest or inconvenience any occupant of the Park or to 

abandon any animal in the Park. 

 5.1(a)(1) To have or to permit any animal under that person's supervision to 

have bodily contact with waters of the Lake. 

 5.1(a)(2) To permit an animal under the person’s supervision to remain 

outside any camp unit, or tent between the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

 5.1(a)(3) To leave a pet enclosed in any camp unit at any time without the 

direct supervision of the pet owner or care giver. 

 5.1(a)(4) To bring into the Park more than two animals or to have more than 

two animals per campsite.  



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 9 

 

5.1(b) To clean fish in the Park except at places designated by the Park and 

Recreation Manager. 

5.1(c)  To allow waste from a vessel to discharge into the Lake. 

5.1(d) To urinate or defecate in public outside of facilities provided for that purpose.  

5.1(e)  To dispose of litter, trash, waste, garbage, debris, construction waste or any 

unwanted materials within the boundaries of Lake Piru Recreation Area that 

was not generated within the boundaries as a result of normal camping and 

day use activities.  

5.2 Vessel Permits  

5.2(a) It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park to have, use or operate 

any vessel which does not have a current Park vessel permit, does not have 

a current valid registration and license or is not insured.  

5.2(b) Each vessel, prior to obtaining a Park vessel permit, shall meet the following 

standards: 

 5.2(b)1 It shall not be used on the lake except with the express permission 

of United. 

 5.2(b)2 Its physical condition and equipment shall comply with all federal 

and California state laws, regulations, and requirements. 

 5.2(b)3 It shall be in a seaworthy, clean, dry and in a sanitary condition, 

capable of staying afloat fully loaded.  

 5.2(b)4 It shall not possess a holding tank or toilet unless such is sealed or 

otherwise rendered inoperable or designed so that no waste can be 

discharged into the Lake. 

 5.2(b)5 Each vessel issued a permit hereunder shall be subject to re-

inspection and reevaluation at any time the vessel is in or enters the park to 

ascertain whether such vessel is properly rated and complies with the rules 

and regulations for granting a vessel permit. Upon such inspection and 

evaluation, if any vessel is found not to meet the requirements of this 

ordinance, the Park and Recreation Manager may, in his or her discretion 

(1) reasonably refuse to issue a Park vessel permit and exclude such vessel 

from the lake, or (2) revoke the Park vessel permit for such vessel and order 

its immediate removal from the lake until the deficiency is corrected. 

5.2(c) As a condition of granting a Park vessel permit, the Park and Recreation 

Manager may, in his or her discretion, specify the reasonable time; place 

and manner of usage of any vessel on the lake. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 10 

 

5.2(d) As a condition of granting a Park vessel permit, the Park and Recreation 

Manager, in his or her discretion, may require the owner, legal owner or 

registered owner (as those terms are defined in Harbors and Navigation 

Code section 651 or its successor) of any vessel to produce evidence of 

liability, collision or other insurance. 

5.2(e) The Board finds that the provision of 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4 herein relate to 

sanitation and pollution control and other matters which the District is 

authorized to regulate pursuant to state law.  

5.3 Vessel Regulations  

Any person having, using or operating a vessel in the Lake Piru Recreational Area 

shall abide by the applicable section of the California State Boating Law, Title 14 

of the California Code of Regulations, and the provisions of this Ordinance.  

The Board may establish special use areas and prescribe rules and regulations for the 

use of such areas pursuant to California Harbors and Navigation Code section 660. It 
shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any person within the Park: 

5.3(a) To operate a vessel within a prohibited area designated by marker on 

the lake or posted at the entrance to the Recreation Area or launch ramp. 

5.3(b) To tie a vessel to, or mutilate, damage or move from position, any buoy or 

connecting line, chain or cable placed or installed on the lake. 

5.3(c) To operate or navigate any commercial motor vessel while carrying 

passengers for hire without written authorization of the General Manager. 

5.3(d) To launch any vessel except at an approved launching area designated by 

the General Manager. 

5.3(e) To keep any vessel on shore overnight except in areas designated by United 

for that purpose. 

5.3(f) To operate or occupy any vessel on the lake prior to or after the posted and 

designated hours of operation for the park, unless a special permit is issued 

by the Parks and Recreation Manager.  

5.3(g) To water ski, aquaplane, tube, knee board, wake board or any similar 

activity within 100 feet of any navigation marker or shoreline. 

5.3(h) To pull a kite or parachute without the written authorization of United.  

5.3(i) To pull a water ski or aquaplane with a rope greater than 100 feet in length. 

5.3(j) To pull more than two skiers at one time. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 11 

 

5.3(k) To operate any inflatable vessel unless it: 

(1) Possesses rigid floor and transom. 

(2) Possesses three or more air chambers. 

 

5.3(l) To operate a float tube unless it: 

(1) Is specifically designed and being used exclusively for fishing and 

(2) Is in sound condition and 

(3) Is used when waders (or hip boots) are worn that are in sound 

condition and completely cover the immersed portion of an angler's 

body so that sustained, direct body contact with the water is 

prevented and 

(4) Is used only within 150 feet or less from the shoreline in areas 

designated as special use areas by the Park and Recreation Manager 

and 

(5) Is used while a U.S. Coast Guard approved PFD (Personal Flotation 

Device) is worn and 

(6) Is equipped with 

(a) A readily available horn or whistle to warn approaching craft 

and 

 

(b) At least 12 square inches of international orange material 

displayed at least 12 inches above the water line at all times.    

 

5.3(m) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.3(a): A person shall not operate a 

motorboat, sailboat, or vessel, unless every person who is on board and who 

is under 13 years of age is wearing a United States Coast Guard-approved 

wearable personal flotation device that is used in accordance with approval 

labels and manufacturer’s instructions while that motorboat, sailboat, or 

vessel is underway. 

 

5.3(n) For a vessel owner or any person having a vessel in his/her charge or control 

to authorize or knowingly permit the same to be operated by any person 

who is incapable of operating such vessel under the prevailing 

circumstances for any reason, including, but not limited to inexperience or 

physical or mental disability.  

5.3(o) To operate any vessel beyond the safe carrying capacity of such vessel.  

5.3(p)  To operate a vessel outside of the special use area that is less than 12 feet in 

length, does not possess a sail or a motor with a minimum of 3 horsepower 

or greater and does not have a minimum width of 42 inches, excepting 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 12 

 

whitewater vesselers vessels who receive advance approval from the 

General Manager to portage over Santa Felicia Dam.  

5.3(q) To operate a personal watercraft anywhere on the lake. Exceptions may be 

granted for rescue, patrol or filming purposes.  

5.3(r) To operate a vessel without current and proper registration, and without 

proper display of registration including certificate of numbers or CF 

numbers. 

5.3(s) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.5(a) Except as provided in 

subdivision (b), no person under 16 years of age shall operate a vessel 

powered by a motor of greater than 15 horsepower, except for a vessel that 

does not exceed 30 feet in length and is designed to use wind as its principal 

source of propulsion, or a dinghy used directly between a moored vessel 

and the shoreline or between a moored vessel and another moored vessel. 

 

5.3(t) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.7(a): Failure of the operator of a 

vessel involved in towing a skier to display or cause to be displayed a ski 

flag, as described in subdivision (a) of Section 7009 of Title 14 of the 

California Code of Regulations, to indicate any of the following conditions, 

is an infraction punishable by a fine not exceeding fifteen dollars ($15): 

(1) A downed skier. 

(2) A skier in the water preparing to ski. 

(3) A ski line extended from the vessel. 

(4) A ski in the water in the vicinity of the vessel. 

 

5.3(u) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658(a): (a) No person shall operate a 

vessel on any waters for towing a person or persons on water skis, an 

aquaplane, or a similar device unless there is in the vessel a person at least 

12 years of age, in addition to the operator, in a position to observe the 

progress of the persons being towed. 

5.4 Vessel Speed Regulations 

5.4(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, or posted at the lake, the maximum 

permissible speeds at which a vessel may be operated on the lake shall be 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 13 

 

35 mph. Vessels in the main body of the lake must travel in a counter 

clockwise direction on the water.  

5.4(b) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §660: (a) Any ordinance, law, 

regulation, or rule relating to vessels, which is adopted pursuant to 

provisions of law other than this chapter by any entity other than the 

department, including, but not limited to, any county, city, port authority, 

district, or any state agency other than the department, shall, 

notwithstanding any other provision of law, pertain only to time-of-day 

restrictions, speed zones, special-use areas, and sanitation and pollution 

control, and the measure shall not conflict with this chapter or the 

regulations adopted by the department. Except as provided in subdivision 

(c), any measure relating to boats or vessels adopted by any governmental 

entity other than the department shall be submitted to the  

5.4(c) It shall be unlawful to operate a vessel in an area of the lake where the speed 

limit is over 10 miles per hour except in a counterclockwise pattern. 

5.4(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in a vessel regatta, race, 

tournament (fishing or racing) or exhibition in the lake without approval of 

United. 

5.4(e) The Department is authorized to close the lake or portions thereof to boating 

for good and sufficient reasons including, but not limited to, the following: 

A) Dangerous water or weather conditions. 

B) Unsatisfactory ramp, parking or road conditions. 

C) Construction or movement of ramp facilities. 

D) Special events or activities. 

 

5.5 Vehicle Regulations – Any person having, using or operating a motor vehicle, 

recreation vehicle or trailer in the Park shall abide by all applicable sections of 

the California Vehicle Code. It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.5(a) To operate a motor vehicle except on designated roads and parking areas, 

unless otherwise directed by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.5(b) To operate a motor vehicle at a speed in excess of 15 miles per hour or to 

exceed 5 miles per hour in a picnic area, campground or parking lot, or to 

exceed the speed limit posted by United within the Park. 

5.5(c) To throw or otherwise dispose of any burning material, trash, waste or other 

debris from a vehicle. 

5.5(d) To park a vehicle in other than a designated parking area or to park or leave 

parked a vehicle in a parking lot prior to or after the posted hours of 

operation for the Park, except with written authorization of United. Vehicles 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 14 

 

parked in unauthorized areas will be towed away at the owner's expense and 

are subject to citation.  

5.5(e) To drive a vehicle in a careless or reckless fashion so as to endanger the 

vehicle, its occupants or any person, equipment, facilities or property. 

5.5(f) To operate a motor vehicle in the Park without a valid driver's license. 

5.5(g) The Park and Recreation Manager is authorized to close any Park road or 

reduce the speed limit on any such road for good and sufficient reasons 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A) Construction or maintenance of facilities. 

B) Dangerous road conditions. 

C) Special events and activities. 

 

5.5(h) To drive a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable or prudent having 

due regard for weather, visibility, traffic, the surface and width of the 

roadway, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety of persons 

or property. 

5.5(i) In the absence of written consent from the Park and Recreation Manager, to 

abandon or leave unattended, for a period of more than 7 days, a vehicle, 

camp unit or vessel within the Park. Such vehicle, camp unit or vessel shall 

thereafter be towed at the owner’s expense. Owner shall pay District all 

applicable towing and storage expenses prior to release of the property.  

5.5(j) To operate a motor vehicle within the boundaries of the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area without evidence of financial responsibility (insurance). 

5.5(k) To operate any gas or electrical powered device including but not limited to 

pocket bikes, scooters, mopeds, engine powered bicycle, off-road 

motorcycle, UTV, Side by Side, golf cart or other device which cannot be 

licensed for use on California public roadways and or that is not designed 

for use by a person with disability.   

5.6 Conservation - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.6(a) To cut, pick, mutilate or destroy any vegetation, except when authorized in 

writing by the Department. 

5.6(b) To pick up, collect, or utilize downed or dead wood within the Park as 

firewood. 

5.6(c) To remove soil or rock(s), except when authorized in writing by the 

Department. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 15 

 

5.6(d) To throw, place or otherwise dispose of any burning material except into 

authorized fire pits. 

5.6(e) To possess or set off any fireworks or other explosives. 

5.6(f) To build, ignite or utilize fires except in fire pits, stoves or other facilities 

designed to contain said fires, or as otherwise authorized in Section 5.11(c).  

5.6(g) To leave any fire unattended or to fail to put out a fire prior to departure. 

5.6(h) To molest, injure or kill any animal or bird, or to allow any child or animal 

under the person's supervision to molest, injure or kill any animal or bird, 

except that controlled hunting may be authorized by resolution of the Board. 

5.6(i) To use or possess any firearm or other weapon, including air guns and pellet 

type guns, paintball guns, slingshots, and air-soft weapons, with exceptions 

made for law enforcement personnel, land owners crossing District property 

on designated roadways to access personal property, or hunters crossing 

District property during hunting season, so long as all laws applicable to 

firearms are adhered to, or except as may otherwise be authorized in writing 

by the General Manager. 

5.6(j) To fish prior to or after the posted hours of operation for the Park except as 

may be authorized in writing by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.6(k) To operate a motorized remote controlled model airplane, rocket, drone, 

helicopter, car, vessel or similar device.  

5.6(l) To receive, bring or cause to be brought into the Recreation Area any fish, 

crustacean, amphibian or aquatic plant from any place for the purpose of 

propagation or use as fish bait.  

5.6(m) To use a loudspeaker, public address system, or amplifier without written 

authorization from the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.6(n) To hunt on District property. Such acts shall be considered trespassing.  

5.6(o) To launch any vessel on the water of Lake Piru that has not successfully 

passed an invasive species vessel inspection at the Park’s entry area. 

5.7(p)  To leave Recreation Area with any vessel, personal water craft, aquaplane, 

or float tube that has not been cleaned, drained and dried in a manner 

specified by the District, and successfully passed an invasive species 

(including but not limited to quagga mussels) vessel inspection, at the 

Park’s entry area 

5.6(q) For any person 16 years of age or older to take any kind of fish, mollusk, 

invertebrate, amphibian or crustacean without a valid fishing license issued 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 16 

 

by the State of California, or to violate the terms of such license in any 

manner. 

5.7 Closed Areas  

It shall be unlawful for any person to enter any area of the Park which is posted by 

the Park and Recreation Manager against entry or is designated as closed. 

5.7.1 The District’s General Manger may elect to close and or authorize the Chief 

Park Ranger to close areas of the park for the purpose hosting special events, 

for public safety concerns and or for maintenance activities.  

5.8 Equestrians, Livestock & Exotic Animals  

It shall be unlawful for any person to bring a horse, livestock or exotic animal into 

the Park without the written authorization of the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.9 Camping - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.9(a) To occupy a campground or campsite without first obtaining a camping 

permit.  

5.9(b) To cause any noise which extends beyond individual campsites during 

"quiet time" which is from 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

5.9(c) To visit or allow visitors in the campground except from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 

p.m. if such visitors have not paid the appropriate camping fees. Such 

visitors shall not cause the number of individuals at a single campsite to 

exceed eight (8) persons. 

5.9(d) To operate power generation equipment between 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

5.9(e) To use electrical power or connect to any water faucet or sewage disposal 

facility in the Park except in areas authorized by the Department with 

payment of appropriate fees for such use.  

5.9(f) To occupy a campsite for other than recreational camping purposes, unless 

the occupant has entered into a long term stay agreement or work camper 

agreement reviewed and approved by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.9(g) Unless otherwise subject to an agreement pursuant to Section 5.9(f), to 

occupy a campsite for more than: 

1. 14 consecutive days from April 1 to September 30 of any calendar year,  

2. 30 consecutive days from October 1 to November 30, and from March 

1 to March 30 of any calendar year, and  

3. 90 consecutive days during the time period from December 1 to 

February 28. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 17 

 

4. Notwithstanding these limits, the General Manager may, under 

extenuating circumstances, authorize longer periods of occupation if 

sufficient campsites are available. 

 

5.9(h) To occupy any campsite within 48 hours after vacating any campsite. 

5.9(i) To bring a vehicle into the campgrounds without first paying the appropriate 

use fee unless the driver of the vehicle has obtained a day use pass and is 

visiting another person legally occupying a campsite within the 

campgrounds, except that members of an immediate family may join a 

camping unit if they occupy the same camping unit and first pay the extra 

vehicle camping fee. 

5.9(j) To allow more than two camp units in any one campsite.  At the Parks and 

Recreation Manager’s sole discretion, a campsite may be restricted to only 

one camp unit if it is determined that a second vehicle impedes campground 

access of park visitors and public safety vehicles and may create unsafe 

conditions.   

5.9(k) To occupy a campsite with more than eight (8) people unless authorized to 

do so by United.  

5.9(1) To occupy a campsite without first paying all required fees.  

5.9(m) To erect ropes, hammocks or other barriers outside a campsite. 

5.9(n) To remain in any campsite after 2:00 p.m. on the day scheduled to be 

vacated. 

5.9(o) To occupy any campsite without first obtaining and posting on the camp 

post the required camping permit. 

5.9(q) To occupy more than one campsite without first paying the appropriate 

permit fees regardless of whether there are vacant campsites available. 

5.9(r) To fail to have at least one person occupying a campsite during the first 

night camping equipment has been set up without first obtaining permission 

of the Recreation Department. 

5.9(s) To camp in any area other than those campgrounds or campsites designated 

as such by the District, 

5.10 Alcoholic Beverage Free Areas - It shall be unlawful for any person within the 

park to possess or consume any alcoholic beverage in alcoholic beverage free 

areas without an alcohol permit in accordance with the District’s Alcohol Policy 

for the Park. 

5.11 Swimming And Wading - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 18 

 

5.11(a) To possess glass containers in any designated beach and swimming area. 

5.11(b) To bring or allow a pet to be brought into any designated beach and 

swimming area. 

5.11(c) To light a fire in any designated beach and swimming area with the 

exception of a fire within an affixed barbeque grill provided by United for 

the purpose of cooking. 

5.11(d) To leave any child under ten (10) years of age unattended by a responsible 

adult at least 18 (eighteen) years old in any designated beach and swimming 

area. 

5.11(e) To camp overnight at any designated beach and swimming area. 

5.11(f) To wade or swim in the waters of the Lake except within a designated 

swimming area, when engaged in waterskiing or aquaplaning, or walking 

to or from an appropriately beached vessel, in accordance with the District’s 

swim policy. 

5.11(g) To dispose of or leave behind any trash, litter, debris or unwanted material 

at any designated swim area. 

5.11(h) To operate or park a motor vehicle at or within any designated swim area.   



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 19 

 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY PROCEDURES 

6.1 This section establishes the administrative procedures for the imposition, 

enforcement, collection, and review of civil penalties by the District pursuant to 

Government Code Section 53069.4.  

The issuance of a civil or administrative penalty under this section is solely at the 

District’s discretion and is one option the District possesses to address violations 

of this ordinance. By adopting these provisions, the District does not intend to limit 

its discretion to utilize any other remedy, civil or criminal, for any violation of the 

Ordinance.  

A Citee may request a preliminary review of a citation within 14 days of the date 

the citation is issued. The Citee must present to the Park and Recreation Manager a 

preliminary review request form, a copy of the citation and any additional 

information demonstrating the reason(s) why there was no violation or why the 

Citee is not a responsible person for the violation. The purpose of the review is to 

identify any improper citations due to errors that are readily verifiable and not to 

resolve factual disputes concerning the citation.  

The preliminary review shall be conducted by the Park and Recreation Manager or 

designee. The reviewer shall not be the Park Ranger who issued the citation.  

If the determination of the preliminary review is that the citation is improper, the 

citation shall be dismissed. The Citee shall be notified of the results of the review 

in writing within 15 working days of receipt of the request.  

A request for preliminary review does not extend any time periods for compliance, 

the penalty due date or the time to request an administrative hearing.  

Any Citee may contest a civil penalty citation by filing a signed written request for 

an administrative hearing stating the grounds for contesting the citation. The 

request must be received by the District within 35 days of the date the citation was 

served and be accompanied by a deposit of the full amount of the penalty.   

Within ten (10) days following the receipt of a request for an administrative hearing 

and deposit of the full amount of the fine, the District shall schedule an 

administrative hearing. The date of the hearing shall be no more than 90 days later 

than the date the request for the hearing was filed. The District shall notify the Citee 

of the date of the hearing.  

A Hearing Officer will be appointed by the District to conduct, consider and decide 

administrative hearing.  Prior to being appointed, a hearing officer must be first 

designated by the General Manager as qualified to provide a fair and impartial 

hearing based on appropriate education, training and experience. 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 20 

 

The Hearing Officer may grant a one-time continuance of a hearing for no more 

than 45 days if a request is made showing good cause by the Citee or the District 

designated representative. All continuance requests shall be made by a written 

request received by the District at least 72 hours before the hearing date. If the 

request for continuance is denied, the hearing shall proceed as noticed. A Citee who 

requests a continuance waives their opportunity for a hearing within 90 days of the 

date the citation is issued. 

A Hearing Officer shall conduct the hearing on the date set by the District. The 

Citee shall have the opportunity to appear, testify and to present evidence relevant 

to the ordinance violation alleged in the citation. The Citee may file a written 

declaration with the District at least 48 hours prior to the hearing in lieu of 

personally attending the hearing. The citation shall be accepted by the Hearing 

Officer as prima facie evidence of the ordinance violation and the facts stated in the 

citation. Neither the Park Ranger nor any other District representative shall be 

compelled to attend the hearing.  Any such appearance or submission may be made 

at the discretion of the Park Ranger.  

The hearing shall be conducted informally and formal rules of evidence need not 

be utilized. The Hearing Officer does not have the authority to issue a subpoena.  

The failure of the Citee to appear at the hearing or to file written testimony prior to 

the hearing shall constitute an abandonment of the request for an administrative 

hearing and a failure to exhaust administrative remedies concerning the violation 

set forth in the citation. Any penalty deposit shall be forfeited to the District.  

After considering all evidence and testimony submitted at the administrative 

hearing, the Hearing Officer shall issue a written decision to uphold or dismiss the 

citation within 20 working days after conclusion of the hearing. The Hearing 

Officer has no discretion or authority to reduce or modify the amount of any fine. 

The decision shall state the reasons and evidence considered for the decision. If the 

decision is to uphold the citation, the deposited penalty shall be forfeited to the 

District. If the decision is to dismiss the citation, the District shall refund the penalty 

deposit within 30 days of the decision. The Hearing Officer’s continued 

employment, performance evaluation, compensation, and benefits shall not directly 

or indirectly be linked to the number of citations upheld or cancelled by the officer.   

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance or otherwise, the 

administrative hearing decision is final and not subject to appeal or further review 

by the District or any person. The Citee may seek judicial review of the 

administrative hearing decision by filing an appeal with the Ventura County 

Superior Court in accordance with the provision of state law. 

 

 

6.2 Administrative Penalty Citations 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 21 

 

Upon determining that a provision of this Ordinance has been violated, a Park 

Ranger has the authority to issue a civil penalty citation.  A citation may be issued 

for violation of one or more ordinance sections and for one or more days on which 

a violation exists. Each ordinance violation shall constitute a separate violation and 

be subject to a separate penalty. Civil penalty citations shall contain following 

information:  

1. Name of the Citee;  

2. Address or other description of the location where the ordinance violation 

occurred;  

3. Date on which the ordinance violation(s) occurred;  

4. Issuing department/division;  

5. The ordinance section(s) violated;  

6. Brief description of the violation;  

7. Amount of the penalty;  

8. Procedure to pay the penalty;  

9. Description of the procedure for requesting a Preliminary Review, and an 

Administrative Hearing to contest a citation.  

10. Printed name and signature of the issuing Park Ranger;  

11. Date the citation is served;  

12. A distinct citation number.  

A Park Ranger may personally deliver the citation to the Citee, or may mail the 

citation by first class mail to the Citee’s last known address.  

6.3 Payment of Administrative Penalties 

The Board of Directors shall approve by resolution a penalty fee schedule to 

establish the amount of the civil penalties for violating provisions of District 

ordinances. Penalties are due on the day the citation is issued.  

Penalties shall be paid to the District within 35 days of the due date. Penalties not 

paid in accordance with the provision of this Ordinance are civil obligations of the 

responsible party and may be collected by the District through any legal means. 

Payment of a penalty shall not excuse the Citee from correcting the ordinance 

violation. The issuance of a citation or payment of a penalty does not bar the District 

from taking any further enforcement action regarding an ordinance violation that 

continues to exist or when a person continues to violate an ordinance, including but 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 22 

 

not limited to issuing additional civil penalty citations or filing a criminal 

complaint.   

7. NOTICE TO APPEAR CITATIONS 

Upon determining any violation declared to be an infraction or misdemeanor associated 

with violations of state law or regulations, or for any violation of local, state, city or county 

ordinance not included within this ordinance but deemed to be a violation of state law or 

regulation, Park Rangers have the authority to issue a “Notice to Appear” pursuant to the 

authority granted to them under California Penal Code Section 830.31(b). All Such 

violations shall be directly filed with the Ventura County Superior court and processed by 

the judicial authority of the Ventura County Superior court.  

 

A “Notice to Appear” citation may be issued for violation of one or more laws or 

regulations. Each violation shall constitute a separate violation and be subject to a separate 

penalty. Any such citations issued by an arrested officer, or in the case of the ordinance a 

Park Ranger employed by the District, shall be completed in accordance with the California 

Judicial Council’s TR-INST Notice to Appear and related forms and guidelines and as 

required under the California Penal Code.   

 

Violations processed as “Notices to Appear” and directly filed with the County Superior 

Court may result in a person’s privileges to the Lake Piru Recreation Area being revoked 

for a period of up to three (3) years. In accordance with California Penal Code Section 

853.7, all persons failing to appear before a magistrate in court as promised when a “Notice 

to Appear” is issued by an arresting officer, may be arrested and punished by up to six (6) 

months in jail and or a $1,000 fine regardless of the disposition of the original charge. 

 

8. CONSTITUTIONALITY 

If any competent court shall find any portion of this ordinance unconstitutional, such 

decision shall not affect the validity of any other portion thereof. 

 

9. REPEAL OF PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED RULES AND REGULATIONS 

This ordinance supersedes and repeals all previous Board adopted Rules and Regulations 

for the Lake Piru Recreation Area, including but not limited to any prior versions of United 

Water Conservation District Ordinance No. 15. 

 

10. EFFECTIVE DATE  

In accordance with Water Code Section 74651 and Harbors and Navigation Code Section 

660, this ordinance shall become effective on December 10, 2020April 10, 2019. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 910th DAY OF DECEMBERApril 20192020. 

 

      _____________________________________ 



4.476- Attachment A - Redlined 

09/09/2020 23 

 

      President 

       UNITED WATER CONSERVATION 

      DISTRICT  

  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Secretary 

      UNITED WATER CONSERVATION   

      DISTRICT 

 

 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 1 

 

 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

AMENDED AND RESTATED ORDINANCE NO. 15, ESTABLISHING RULES 

AND REGULATIONS FOR  

PUBLIC USE OF THE LAKE PIRU RECREATION AREA 
  

 

The Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District hereby adopts Amended and 

Restated Ordinance No. 15 establishing the Rules and Regulations for Public Use of the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area, and therefore ordains as follows: 

 

The following rules and regulations shall govern the public use of the Lake Piru Recreation 

Area: 

 

1. DEFINITIONS - As used in this document: 

1.1 "AQUAPLANE" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted 

in California Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §651(ab) which states “Water 

skis, an aquaplane, or a similar device” includes all forms of water skiing, 

barefoot skiing, skiing on skim boards, knee boards, or other contrivances, 

parasailing, ski kiting, or any activity where a person is towed behind or 

alongside a boat. 

1.2 "BOARD" means the Board of Directors of United. 

1.3 "VESSEL" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in Title 

14, California Code of Regulations (14 CCR) §6552(q) which states “Vessel” 

includes every description of water craft, including non-displacement craft and 

seaplanes, used or capable of being used a means of transportation on water 

1.4 "CAMP UNIT" means each vehicle, recreational vehicle, travel trailer, camper 

or vessel trailer entering the park for the purposes of camping or recreational 

use. 

1.5 “Citee” means a person who is being cited. 

1.6 “CLOSED AREA” means an area fenced, barricaded or signed as an area of the 

park that is closed to public access for any reason. 

1.7 "DEPARTMENT" means the Recreation Division of United and its Park and 

Recreation Manager and Park Rangers. These individuals are sometimes 

collectively hereafter referred to as “Department Personnel.” 

1.8 “EXOTIC ANIMAL” a rare or unusual animal pet, or an animal kept within 

human households which is generally thought of as a wild species not typically 

kept as a pet. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 2 

 

1.9 "FLOAT TUBE" means an inflatable tube specifically designed for fishing.  

1.10 "GENERAL MANAGER" means the General Manager of United. 

1.11 "HORSE" means any member of the equine family. 

1.12 "LAKE" means Lake Piru. 

1.13 "LAKE PIRU" means the lake created by Santa Felicia Dam. 

1.14 "LAKE PIRU RECREATION AREA" means the portion of United lands, 

including and adjacent to Lake Piru, used or planned for recreational use 

purposes and any other lands operated by United for recreational use, including 

the Blue Point Campground. 

1.15 “LIVESTCOK” means any farm animal regarded as an asset.   

1.16 “NOTICE TO APPEAR” A formal documented noticed approved by the Judicial 

Council and issued by law enforcement personnel to persons arrested for any 

violation declared to be an infraction or misdemeanor associated with violations 

of state law or regulations, or for any violation of local, state, city or county 

ordinance. When a person is not immediately taken before a magistrate, the 

arresting officer must prepare and issue a notice to appear.    

1.17 "PARK" means Lake Piru Recreation Area. 

1.18 "PARK AND RECREATION MANAGER" means the Park and Recreation 

Manager or the person acting in that capacity who is in charge of the Recreation 

Department of the District. The Park and Recreation Manager shall report to the 

General Manager or his or her designeeDistrict’s Chief Operations Officer. For 

purposes of this Ordinance, the District’s Chief Park Ranger shall act as the Park 

and Recreation Manager. 

1.19 “PARK RANGER” a Department employee of United at the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area as designated by the General Manager whom has been 

delegated limited peace officer authority pursuant to Penal Code Section 

830.31(b) by the Board of Directors and whom under oath has been sworn into 

the position of Park Ranger. 

1.20 “PERSONAL WATER CRAFT” For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the 

Definition noted in California Harbors and Navigation code HNC §651(s) which 

states “Personal watercraft” means a vessel 13 feet in length or less, propelled 

by machinery, that is designed to be operated by a person sitting, standing, or 

kneeling on the vessel, rather than in the conventional manner of sitting or 

standing inside the vessel. 

1.21 "SKI FLAG" For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the Definition noted in 

Title 14, California Code of Regulations (14 CCR) §7009 which states  



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 3 

 

(a) A red or orange flag measuring no less than 12 inches on each side, in 

the shape of a square or rectangle, mounted or displayed in such a manner 

as to be visible from every direction shall be known as a ski flag. 

(b) The use of this flag will not be construed as conferring any rights or 

privileges on its users, and its display will not be construed in itself as 

restricting the use of the water in the vicinity of the vessel displaying the 

flag. 

(c) Operators of vessels will, however, exercise precaution commensurate 

with conditions indicated. 

(d) The ski flag shall be displayed when one or more of the following 

conditions exists. 

(1) A downed skier. 

(2) A skier in the water preparing to ski. 

(3) A ski line extended from the vessel. 

(4) A ski in the water in the vicinity of the vessel. The ski flag shall 

not be displayed at any other time. 

 

1.22 “SKIER” means any person engaged in recreational watersports in which one or 

more persons are towed behind or alongside a vessel or caused to be propelled 

or planed across the water via a tow line. 

1.23 “SPECIAL EVENT” means any activity outside of the day to day activities 

offered by the facility to include filming, races, music festivals, wine and beer 

festivals, car shows fishing tournaments, fishing derby, weddings, family 

reunions and any other recreational activity hosted by a private entity. 

1.24 “SPECIAL USE AREA” means the boundary beginning at the 5 mph buoys in 

the main marina, extending north to the Narrows at the north end of the lake and 

extending east from the western shoreline approximately 150 feet offshore. At 

the discretion of the Park and Recreation Manager, the boundary of the special 

use area may be extended from time to time to include an area south from the 

marina, within 150 feet of the shore to the Santa Felicia Dam and within 150 feet 

of the base of the dam moving east to the designated whitewater vessel take-out 

point at the east end of the dam for those whitewater vessels having been granted 

advance permission from the District to enter this area for the purpose of 

whitewater vessel portage over Santa Felicia Dam. 

1.25 “BATHER OR BATHING”  For the purpose of the this ordinance refer to the 

definition noted in California Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §651.1 which 

states “bather” or “bathing” means a person floating, swimming wading, or 

bodysurfing, with or without the use of a flotation device, including, but not 

limited to, floating upon or with the aid of a surfboard, paddle board, surf mat, 

inner tube, life preserver, or air mattress, except a flotation device which is 

designed to be propelled by sail, mechanical means, power, oars, or paddle. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 4 

 

1.26 "UNITED" or “DISTRICT” or “UWCD" means the United Water Conservation 

District. 

2. GENERAL  

2.1 Powers granted to the Department or its personnel pursuant to this 

Ordinance shall be construed as powers delegated by the Board to the General 

Manager, thereafter redelegated by the General Manager to the Chief Park 

Ranger Chief Operations Officer, thereafter redelegated to the or the position 

serving as the Park and Recreation Manager, and thereafter redelegated by the 

Park and Recreation Manager to the Park Rangers, as deemed appropriate. 

 

 2.1.1 Public Safety on District’s Lake Piru properties shall be enforced and 

maintained by the Park Ranger’s and their support staff.   

 

 2.1.2 On District  Lake  properties only when on duty, Park Rangers shall have 

peace officer status in accordance with State of California Penal Code 

Section 830.31 (b) and California Water Code 74652. 

 
 

2.2 Park  R a n g e r s   are  authorized  to  enforce  on   Di s t r i c t  p r o pe r t i e s   

Park:  (a)  the provisions of this Ordinance and any amendment(s) thereto; (b) 

all recreation and park rules and policies adopted and approved by the Board; 

and (c) the laws of the State of California  including but not limited state laws 

and regulations pertaining to Fish and Game Code,  (d) California State boating 

Law, (e) The California Administrative Code Title 14 and the California Water 

Code. Park Rangers are authorized to issue administrative penalty citations for 

violations of this Ordinance and any amendments(s) thereto, in accordance with 

Government Code section 53069.4. Park Rangers are not authorized to enforce 

this Ordinance or state laws and regulations outside of District boundaries the 

Park and or on properties not belonging to the District 

 

 2.2.1 Any person who resists, delays, obstructs, threatens, harms or attempts to 

intimidate a Park Ranger in the discharge of his/her duties shall be subject 

to criminal prosecution pursuant to the California Penal Code.   

 

2.3 Pursuant to Water Code Section 74652, violations of the provisions of this 

ordinance relating to vehicle or vessel speed limits, defacement of park property, 

the use, possession or discharge of firearms as provided in Section 5.6(h) of this 

Ordinance, the possession or use of weapons or fireworks, the creation of fire 

hazards, being under the influence or possession of intoxicating beverages or 

dangerous drugs, or remaining on, or reentering the park without fully 

complying with all District rules and regulations or after a Park Ranger has 

specifically withdrawn consent to utilize park facilities shall be misdemeanors. 

Violations of any other provisions of this ordinance are infractions.   



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 5 

 

2.3.1.  A violation of this Ordinance which is an infraction shall be punishable by 

a fine not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation, two 

hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation of the same ordinance within 

one year; and five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional violation of 

the same ordinance within one year.  In accordance with Water Code section 

74652, a violation of this Ordinance which is a misdemeanor shall be 

punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500), or 

imprisonment in the county jail not to exceed 30 days, or by both that fine 

and imprisonment.  Any violation or threatened violation of this Ordinance 

may also be enjoined by civil action.  Fines may be imposed and collected 

pursuant to Section 6 of this Ordinance.  

2.3.2 When any person is issued a Notice of Violation, the person issuing the 

Notice of Violation shall prepare, in triplicate, a written Notice of Violation, 

containing the name and address of the person violating the Ordinance, the 

offense charged, and the fine as approved by the Board of Directors for such 

offence. The fine specified in the Notice of Violation must be paid to the 

District within thirty (30) days of issuance pursuant to Section 6 of this 

Ordinance.   

2.3.3 All other violations of state laws and regulations shall be punishable by a 

fine approved by the state of California and as administered and processed 

by the Ventura County Superior Court judicial system. Such violations shall 

be processed as “Notices to Appear” and will be directly filed with the 

County Superior Court.  In accordance with California Penal Code Section 

853.7, all persons failing to appear before a magistrate in court as promised 

when a “Notice to Appear” is issued by an arresting officer, are subject to 

arrest and punishment by up to six (6) months in jail and or a $1,000 fine 

regardless of the disposition of the original charge.  

2.4 Department personnel are authorized to revoke any park permit and to expel any 

person from the Park for violation of any applicable law, ordinance, rule or 

regulation. This includes refusal to present, upon request, a valid identification 

document with proof of age. Park permit fees will not be reimbursed if any park 

permit is revoked.  

2.5 The Park and Recreation Manager is authorized to direct the visiting public in 

its use of the Park according to statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations 

applicable to the Park. In the event of fire or other emergency, and 

notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance, Department Personnel 

may direct the public as conditions may require to expedite vehicle or vessel 

traffic, or the launching or removal of vessels, or to insure safety of the persons 

in the Park, to insure against pollution of the Lake, or to protect property and 

facilities in the Park. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 6 

 

2.6 It is unlawful to willfully fail to refuse to comply with any lawful order, signal 

or direction of any Department Personnel or to refuse to submit to any lawful 

inspection under this Ordinance. 

2.7 It is unlawful to create a breach of the peace at any time by violent, obscene, 

abusive, loud, boisterous, vulgar, lewd, wanton or otherwise disorderly conduct. 

2.8 It is unlawful to create unreasonable noise at any time by the operation of any 

sound amplifying equipment and power generation devices in a manner that 

disturbs others. 

2.9 It is unlawful for any person to solicit, sell, hawk or peddle any goods, wares, 

merchandise, liquids or edibles or distribute circulars in the Lake Piru Recreation 

Area without written authorization of the General Manager. 

2.10 It is unlawful to land any aircraft on Lake Piru without written authorization of 

the General Manager. 

2.11     With the exception of any activities authorized by the District’s swimming 

policy, it is unlawful to dive or engage in any underwater activity in Lake Piru 

without first obtaining the written approval of the Park and Recreation Manager. 

2.12     Department Personnel shall have the authority to cause to be towed, removed 

or disposed of any property in the Park at the owner’s expense when it has been 

left without written authorization of Department Personnel, becomes a 

navigational or safety hazard, has or may potentially introduce pollution in the 

Lake (this includes, but is not limited to, submerged vessels), or when the permit 

of the person(s) leaving the property has expired or has been revoked for 

violation of any applicable law. Submerged and sunken vessels must be removed 

from the Lake at the owner’s expense within 24 hours of sinking. 

2.13     The General Manager may make variances to this Ordinance as approved by 

the Board of Directors. The variances will apply only for the time specified. The 

variances will be on file in the Lake Piru Recreation Area while they are in effect. 

2.14     Camping and vessel permits will only be issued to individuals eighteen (18) 

years of age and older with proper identification. Minors may be issued permits 

with appropriate written consent from a parent or legal guardian at the sole 

discretion of General Manager. 

2.15     It shall be unlawful for any person or persons to engage in any commercial 

activity within the Park, including commercial film production, and/or to host 

any special event except as authorized in writing by the General Manager and 

the Chief Park Ranger. 

2.16     It is unlawful for any person within the Park to appear, bathe, sunbathe, walk, 

change clothes, disrobe or be on a beach or waters adjacent thereto in such 

manner that the genitals, vulva, pubis, pubic symphysis, pubic hair, buttocks, 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 7 

 

natal cleft, perineum, anus, anal region or pubic hair region of any person, or any 

portion of the breast at or below the upper edge of the areola thereof of any 

female person, is exposed to public view or is not covered by an opaque 

covering, except in those portions of a comfort station, if any, expressly set aside 

for such purpose. This section shall not apply to: (a) children under the age of 

ten (10) years, (b) any live theatrical performance in a theater, auditorium, hall 

or similar building devoted to theatrical performances located on public land, or 

a film production where a special event permit is approved by the General 

Manager; and (c) any act prohibited, or the prohibition of which is preempted, 

by any provision of state law. 

3. PUBLIC USE FEES  

3.1 Public use fees for entering and use of various Park facilities shall be established 

by resolution of the Board. 

3.2 It shall be unlawful for any person to enter, use or occupy any portion of the Park 

for which a public use fee has been established by the Board without paying such 

fee, except for persons authorized by the General Manager or the Park and 

Recreation Manager for administrative reasons. Any such violation may be 

enforced by administrative citation pursuant to this ordinance and/or pursuant to 

California Penal Code Section 602.   

3.3 Annual vessel and vehicle permits shall be issued to specific vessels and vehicles 

and may be transferred only in the event of transfer or sale of the vessel or 

vehicle to a new owner upon application to the Department and upon receipt of 

the payment of a transfer fee. Annual vessel permits are not transferable between 

vessels in the event the owner has more than one vessel.  

3.4 Payment of fees shall be made in cash, money order, credit cards, traveler’s 

checks or such other methods of payment approved by the Board. 

3.5 At the discretion of the General Manager, United or its authorized agent(s) may 

proceed to sue for delinquent fees in any court of competent jurisdiction or take 

any other legal proper steps to effect collection.  

3.6 Annual permits shall be valid for the remainder of the calendar year in which 

issued, terminating December 31 of the year in question unless revoked for 

cause. If an annual permit is revoked for cause, permit fees paid will not be 

reimbursed.  

3.7 Concession vessels shall not be required to obtain vessel permits but shall be 

subject to all other rules and regulations herein, including all applicable state 

laws and regulations.  

3.8 The Department may take possession of any certificate, card, permit or decal 

issued hereunder which may have been issued unlawfully or erroneously or 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 8 

 

which have been revoked, cancelled or suspended. Any associated fees paid will 

not be reimbursed.  

3.9 Camping and vehicle permits shall be affixed by the customer to the inside 

windshield of the vehicle viewable from the front side of the campsite.  

4. SCHEDULE OF OPERATION  

4.1 The schedule of operation for the Park shall be established by the Board. 

4.2 The General Manager is authorized to restrict the public use of the Park by 

closing the Park or any Park areas, including, but not limited to, Lake Piru, or 

any of the Park's facilities by restricting the hours of operation for good and 

sufficient reason, including, but not limited to, the following: 

4.2(a) Sanitary protection of the watershed. 

4.2(b) Fire suppression or prevention. 

4.2(c) Construction or maintenance. 

4.2(d) Dangerous or unsafe conditions. 

4.2(e) To prevent damage to the Park or its facilities. 

4.2(f) Conservation of fish and game. 

4.2(g) Special events and activities. 

5. RULES AND REGULATIONS  

5.1 Sanitary Regulations - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.1(a) To allow any animal or pet under that person's supervision to be in the Park 

unless controlled by a leash not exceeding eight feet in length, or to allow 

any animal to molest or inconvenience any occupant of the Park or to 

abandon any animal in the Park. 

 5.1(a)(1) To have or to permit any animal under that person's supervision to 

have bodily contact with waters of the Lake. 

 5.1(a)(2) To permit an animal under the person’s supervision to remain 

outside any camp unit, or tent between the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

 5.1(a)(3) To leave a pet enclosed in any camp unit at any time without the 

direct supervision of the pet owner or care giver. 

 5.1(a)(4) To bring into the Park more than two animals or to have more than 

two animals per campsite.  



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 9 

 

5.1(b) To clean fish in the Park except at places designated by the Park and 

Recreation Manager. 

5.1(c) To allow waste from a vessel to discharge into the Lake. 

5.1(d) To urinate or defecate in public outside of facilities provided for that purpose.  

5.1(e)  To dispose of litter, trash, waste, garbage, debris, construction waste or any 

unwanted materials within the boundaries of Lake Piru Recreation Area that 

was not generated within the boundaries as a result of normal camping and 

day use activities.  

5.2 Vessel Permits  

5.2(a) It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park to have, use or operate 

any vessel which does not have a current Park vessel permit, does not have 

a current valid registration and license or is not insured.  

5.2(b) Each vessel, prior to obtaining a Park vessel permit, shall meet the following 

standards: 

 5.2(b)1 It shall not be used on the lake except with the express permission 

of United. 

 5.2(b)2 Its physical condition and equipment shall comply with all federal 

and California state laws, regulations, and requirements. 

 5.2(b)3 It shall be in a seaworthy, clean, dry and in a sanitary condition, 

capable of staying afloat fully loaded.  

 5.2(b)4 It shall not possess a holding tank or toilet unless such is sealed or 

otherwise rendered inoperable or designed so that no waste can be 

discharged into the Lake. 

 5.2(b)5 Each vessel issued a permit hereunder shall be subject to re-

inspection and reevaluation at any time the vessel is in or enters the park to 

ascertain whether such vessel is properly rated and complies with the rules 

and regulations for granting a vessel permit. Upon such inspection and 

evaluation, if any vessel is found not to meet the requirements of this 

ordinance, the Park and Recreation Manager may, in his or her discretion 

(1) reasonably refuse to issue a Park vessel permit and exclude such vessel 

from the lake, or (2) revoke the Park vessel permit for such vessel and order 

its immediate removal from the lake until the deficiency is corrected. 

5.2(c) As a condition of granting a Park vessel permit, the Park and Recreation 

Manager may, in his or her discretion, specify the reasonable time, place 

and manner of usage of any vessel on the lake. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 10 

 

5.2(d) As a condition of granting a Park vessel permit, the Park and Recreation 

Manager, in his or her discretion, may require the owner, legal owner or 

registered owner (as those terms are defined in Harbors and Navigation 

Code section 651 or its successor) of any vessel to produce evidence of 

liability, collision or other insurance. 

5.2(e) The Board finds that the provision of 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4 herein relate to 

sanitation and pollution control and other matters which the District is 

authorized to regulate pursuant to state law.  

5.3 Vessel Regulations  

Any person having, using or operating a vessel in the Lake Piru Recreational Area 

shall abide by the applicable section of the California State Boating Law, Title 14 

of the California Code of Regulations, and the provisions of this Ordinance.  

The Board may establish special use areas and prescribe rules and regulations for the 

use of such areas pursuant to California Harbors and Navigation Code section 660. It 
shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any person within the Park: 

5.3(a) To operate a vessel within a prohibited area designated by marker on 

the lake or posted at the entrance to the Recreation Area or launch ramp. 

5.3(b) To tie a vessel to, or mutilate, damage or move from position, any buoy or 

connecting line, chain or cable placed or installed on the lake. 

5.3(c) To operate or navigate any commercial motor vessel while carrying 

passengers for hire without written authorization of the General Manager. 

5.3(d) To launch any vessel except at an approved launching area designated by 

the General Manager. 

5.3(e) To keep any vessel on shore overnight except in areas designated by United 

for that purpose. 

5.3(f) To operate or occupy any vessel on the lake prior to or after the posted and 

designated hours of operation for the park unless a special permit is issued 

by the Parks and Recreation Manager.  

5.3(g) To water ski, aquaplane, tube, knee board, wake board or any similar 

activity within 100 feet of any navigation marker or shoreline. 

5.3(h) To pull a kite or parachute without the written authorization of United.  

5.3(i) To pull a water ski or aquaplane with a rope greater than 100 feet in length. 

5.3(j) To pull more than two skiers at one time. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 11 

 

5.3(k) To operate any inflatable vessel unless it: 

(1) Possesses rigid floor and transom. 

(2) Possesses three or more air chambers. 

 

5.3(l) To operate a float tube unless it: 

(1) Is specifically designed and being used exclusively for fishing and 

(2) Is in sound condition and 

(3) Is used when waders (or hip boots) are worn that are in sound 

condition and completely cover the immersed portion of an angler's 

body so that sustained, direct body contact with the water is 

prevented and 

(4) Is used only within 150 feet or less from the shoreline in areas 

designated as special use areas by the Park and Recreation Manager 

and 

(5) Is used while a U.S. Coast Guard approved PFD (Personal Flotation 

Device) is worn and 

(6) Is equipped with 

(a) A readily available horn or whistle to warn approaching craft 

and 

 

(b) At least 12 square inches of international orange material 

displayed at least 12 inches above the water line at all times.    

 

5.3(m) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.3(a): A person shall not operate a 

motorboat, sailboat, or vessel, unless every person who is on board and who 

is under 13 years of age is wearing a United States Coast Guard-approved 

wearable personal flotation device that is used in accordance with approval 

labels and manufacturer’s instructions while that motorboat, sailboat, or 

vessel is underway. 

 

5.3(n) For a vessel owner or any person having a vessel in his/her charge or control 

to authorize or knowingly permit the same to be operated by any person 

who is incapable of operating such vessel under the prevailing 

circumstances for any reason, including, but not limited to inexperience or 

physical or mental disability.  

5.3(o) To operate any vessel beyond the safe carrying capacity of such vessel.  

5.3(p)  To operate a vessel outside of the special use area that is less than 12 feet in 

length, does not possess a sail or a motor with a minimum of 3 horsepower 

or greater and does not have a minimum width of 42 inches, excepting 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 12 

 

whitewater vessels who receive advance approval from the General 

Manager to portage over Santa Felicia Dam.  

5.3(q) To operate a personal watercraft anywhere on the lake. Exceptions may be 

granted for rescue, patrol or filming purposes.  

5.3(r) To operate a vessel without current and proper registration, and without 

proper display of registration including certificate of numbers or CF 

numbers. 

5.3(s) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.5(a) Except as provided in 

subdivision (b), no person under 16 years of age shall operate a vessel 

powered by a motor of greater than 15 horsepower, except for a vessel that 

does not exceed 30 feet in length and is designed to use wind as its principal 

source of propulsion, or a dinghy used directly between a moored vessel 

and the shoreline or between a moored vessel and another moored vessel. 

 

5.3(t) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658.7(a): Failure of the operator of a 

vessel involved in towing a skier to display or cause to be displayed a ski 

flag, as described in subdivision (a) of Section 7009 of Title 14 of the 

California Code of Regulations, to indicate any of the following conditions, 

is an infraction punishable by a fine not exceeding fifteen dollars ($15): 

(1) A downed skier. 

(2) A skier in the water preparing to ski. 

(3) A ski line extended from the vessel. 

(4) A ski in the water in the vicinity of the vessel. 

 

5.3(u) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §658(a): (a) No person shall operate a 

vessel on any waters for towing a person or persons on water skis, an 

aquaplane, or a similar device unless there is in the vessel a person at least 

12 years of age, in addition to the operator, in a position to observe the 

progress of the persons being towed. 

5.4 Vessel Speed Regulations 

5.4(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, or posted at the lake, the maximum 

permissible speeds at which a vessel may be operated on the lake shall be 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 13 

 

35 mph. Vessels in the main body of the lake must travel in a counter 

clockwise direction on the water.  

5.4(b) For the purpose of this ordinance refer to the definition noted in California 

Harbors and Navigation Code HNC §660: (a) Any ordinance, law, 

regulation, or rule relating to vessels, which is adopted pursuant to 

provisions of law other than this chapter by any entity other than the 

department, including, but not limited to, any county, city, port authority, 

district, or any state agency other than the department, shall, 

notwithstanding any other provision of law, pertain only to time-of-day 

restrictions, speed zones, special-use areas, and sanitation and pollution 

control, and the measure shall not conflict with this chapter or the 

regulations adopted by the department. Except as provided in subdivision 

(c), any measure relating to boats or vessels adopted by any governmental 

entity other than the department shall be submitted to the  

5.4(c) It shall be unlawful to operate a vessel in an area of the lake where the speed 

limit is over 10 miles per hour except in a counterclockwise pattern. 

5.4(d) It shall be unlawful for any person to engage in a vessel regatta, race, 

tournament (fishing or racing) or exhibition in the lake without approval of 

United. 

5.4(e) The Department is authorized to close the lake or portions thereof to boating 

for good and sufficient reasons including, but not limited to, the following: 

A) Dangerous water or weather conditions. 

B) Unsatisfactory ramp, parking or road conditions. 

C) Construction or movement of ramp facilities. 

D) Special events or activities. 

 

5.5 Vehicle Regulations – Any person having, using or operating a motor vehicle, 

recreation vehicle or trailer in the Park shall abide by all applicable sections of 

the California Vehicle Code. It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.5(a) To operate a motor vehicle except on designated roads and parking areas, 

unless otherwise directed by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.5(b) To operate a motor vehicle at a speed in excess of 15 miles per hour or to 

exceed 5 miles per hour in a picnic area, campground or parking lot, or to 

exceed the speed limit posted by United within the Park. 

5.5(c) To throw or otherwise dispose of any burning material, trash, waste or other 

debris from a vehicle. 

5.5(d) To park a vehicle in other than a designated parking area or to park or leave 

parked a vehicle in a parking lot prior to or after the posted hours of 

operation for the Park, except with written authorization of United. Vehicles 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 14 

 

parked in unauthorized areas will be towed away at the owner's expense and 

are subject to citation.  

5.5(e) To drive a vehicle in a careless or reckless fashion so as to endanger the 

vehicle, its occupants or any person, equipment, facilities or property. 

5.5(f) To operate a motor vehicle in the Park without a valid driver's license. 

5.5(g) The Park and Recreation Manager is authorized to close any Park road or 

reduce the speed limit on any such road for good and sufficient reasons 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

A) Construction or maintenance of facilities. 

B) Dangerous road conditions. 

C) Special events and activities. 

 

5.5(h) To drive a vehicle at a speed greater than is reasonable or prudent having 

due regard for weather, visibility, traffic, the surface and width of the 

roadway, and in no event at a speed which endangers the safety of persons 

or property. 

5.5(i) In the absence of written consent from the Park and Recreation Manager, to 

abandon or leave unattended, for a period of more than 7 days, a vehicle, 

camp unit or vessel within the Park. Such vehicle, camp unit or vessel shall 

thereafter be towed at the owner’s expense. Owner shall pay District all 

applicable towing and storage expenses prior to release of the property.  

5.5(j) To operate a motor vehicle within the boundaries of the Lake Piru 

Recreation Area without evidence of financial responsibility (insurance). 

5.5(k) To operate any gas or electrical powered device including but not limited to 

pocket bikes, scooters, mopeds, engine powered bicycle, off-road 

motorcycle, UTV, Side by Side, golf cart or other device which cannot be 

licensed for use on California public roadways and or that is not designed 

for use by a person with disability.   

5.6 Conservation - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.6(a) To cut, pick, mutilate or destroy any vegetation, except when authorized in 

writing by the Department. 

5.6(b) To pick up, collect, or utilize downed or dead wood within the Park as 

firewood. 

5.6(c) To remove soil or rock(s), except when authorized in writing by the 

Department. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 15 

 

5.6(d) To throw, place or otherwise dispose of any burning material except into 

authorized fire pits. 

5.6(e) To possess or set off any fireworks or other explosives. 

5.6(f) To build, ignite or utilize fires except in fire pits, stoves or other facilities 

designed to contain said fires, or as otherwise authorized in Section 5.11(c).  

5.6(g) To leave any fire unattended or to fail to put out a fire prior to departure. 

5.6(h) To molest, injure or kill any animal or bird, or to allow any child or animal 

under the person's supervision to molest, injure or kill any animal or bird, 

except that controlled hunting may be authorized by resolution of the Board. 

5.6(i) To use or possess any firearm or other weapon, including air guns and pellet 

type guns, paintball guns, slingshots, and air-soft weapons, with exceptions 

made for law enforcement personnel, land owners crossing District property 

on designated roadways to access personal property, or hunters crossing 

District property during hunting season, so long as all laws applicable to 

firearms are adhered to, or except as may otherwise be authorized in writing 

by the General Manager. 

5.6(j) To fish prior to or after the posted hours of operation for the Park except as 

may be authorized in writing by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.6(k) To operate a motorized remote-controlled model airplane, rocket, drone, 

helicopter, car, vessel or similar device.  

5.6(l) To receive, bring or cause to be brought into the Recreation Area any fish, 

crustacean, amphibian or aquatic plant from any place for the purpose of 

propagation or use as fish bait.  

5.6(m) To use a loudspeaker, public address system, or amplifier without written 

authorization from the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.6(n) To hunt on District property. Such acts shall be considered trespassing.  

5.6(o) To launch any vessel on the water of Lake Piru that has not successfully 

passed an invasive species vessel inspection at the Park’s entry area. 

5.7(p)  To leave Recreation Area with any vessel, personal water craft, aquaplane, 

or float tube that has not been cleaned, drained and dried in a manner 

specified by the District, and successfully passed an invasive species 

(including but not limited to quagga mussels) vessel inspection, at the 

Park’s entry area 

5.6(q) For any person 16 years of age or older to take any kind of fish, mollusk, 

invertebrate, amphibian or crustacean without a valid fishing license issued 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 16 

 

by the State of California, or to violate the terms of such license in any 

manner. 

5.7 Closed Areas  

It shall be unlawful for any person to enter any area of the Park which is posted by 

the Park and Recreation Manager against entry or is designated as closed. 

5.7.1 The District’s General Manger may elect to close and or authorize the Chief 

Park Ranger to close areas of the park for the purpose hosting special events, 

for public safety concerns and or for maintenance activities.  

5.8 Equestrians, Livestock & Exotic Animals  

It shall be unlawful for any person to bring a horse, livestock or exotic animal into 

the Park without the written authorization of the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.9 Camping - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 

5.9(a) To occupy a campground or campsite without first obtaining a camping 

permit.  

5.9(b) To cause any noise which extends beyond individual campsites during 

"quiet time" which is from 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

5.9(c) To visit or allow visitors in the campground except from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 

p.m. if such visitors have not paid the appropriate camping fees. Such 

visitors shall not cause the number of individuals at a single campsite to 

exceed eight (8) persons. 

5.9(d) To operate power generation equipment between 10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 

5.9(e) To use electrical power or connect to any water faucet or sewage disposal 

facility in the Park except in areas authorized by the Department with 

payment of appropriate fees for such use.  

5.9(f) To occupy a campsite for other than recreational camping purposes, unless 

the occupant has entered into a long term stay agreement or work camper 

agreement reviewed and approved by the Park and Recreation Manager. 

5.9(g) Unless otherwise subject to an agreement pursuant to Section 5.9(f), to 

occupy a campsite for more than: 

1. 14 consecutive days from April 1 to September 30 of any calendar year,  

2. 30 consecutive days from October 1 to November 30, and from March 

1 to March 30 of any calendar year, and  

3. 90 consecutive days during the time period from December 1 to 

February 28. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 17 

 

4. Notwithstanding these limits, the General Manager may, under 

extenuating circumstances, authorize longer periods of occupation if 

sufficient campsites are available. 

 

5.9(h) To occupy any campsite within 48 hours after vacating any campsite. 

5.9(i) To bring a vehicle into the campgrounds without first paying the appropriate 

use fee unless the driver of the vehicle has obtained a day use pass and is 

visiting another person legally occupying a campsite within the 

campgrounds, except that members of an immediate family may join a 

camping unit if they occupy the same camping unit and first pay the extra 

vehicle camping fee. 

5.9(j) To allow more than two camp units in any one campsite.  At the Parks and 

Recreation Manager’s sole discretion, a campsite may be restricted to only 

one camp unit if it is determined that a second vehicle impedes campground 

access of park visitors and public safety vehicles and may create unsafe 

conditions.   

5.9(k) To occupy a campsite with more than eight (8) people unless authorized to 

do so by United.  

5.9(1) To occupy a campsite without first paying all required fees.  

5.9(m) To erect ropes, hammocks or other barriers outside a campsite. 

5.9(n) To remain in any campsite after 2:00 p.m. on the day scheduled to be 

vacated. 

5.9(o) To occupy any campsite without first obtaining and posting on the camp 

post the required camping permit. 

5.9(q) To occupy more than one campsite without first paying the appropriate 

permit fees regardless of whether there are vacant campsites available. 

5.9(r) To fail to have at least one person occupying a campsite during the first 

night camping equipment has been set up without first obtaining permission 

of the Recreation Department. 

5.9(s) To camp in any area other than those campgrounds or campsites designated 

as such by the District, 

5.10 Alcoholic Beverage Free Areas - It shall be unlawful for any person within the 

park to possess or consume any alcoholic beverage in alcoholic beverage free 

areas without an alcohol permit in accordance with the District’s Alcohol Policy 

for the Park. 

5.11 Swimming and Wading - It shall be unlawful for any person within the Park: 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 18 

 

5.11(a) To possess glass containers in any designated beach and swimming area. 

5.11(b) To bring or allow a pet to be brought into any designated beach and 

swimming area. 

5.11(c) To light a fire in any designated beach and swimming area with the 

exception of a fire within an affixed barbeque grill provided by United for 

the purpose of cooking. 

5.11(d) To leave any child under ten (10) years of age unattended by a responsible 

adult at least 18 (eighteen) years old in any designated beach and swimming 

area. 

5.11(e) To camp overnight at any designated beach and swimming area. 

5.11(f) To wade or swim in the waters of the Lake except within a designated 

swimming area, when engaged in waterskiing or aquaplaning, or walking 

to or from an appropriately beached vessel, in accordance with the District’s 

swim policy. 

5.11(g) To dispose of or leave behind any trash, litter, debris or unwanted material 

at any designated swim area. 

5.11(h) To operate or park a motor vehicle at or within any designated swim area.   



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 19 

 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY PROCEDURES 

6.1 This section establishes the administrative procedures for the imposition, 

enforcement, collection, and review of civil penalties by the District pursuant to 

Government Code Section 53069.4.  

The issuance of a civil or administrative penalty under this section is solely at the 

District’s discretion and is one option the District possesses to address violations 

of this ordinance. By adopting these provisions, the District does not intend to limit 

its discretion to utilize any other remedy, civil or criminal, for any violation of the 

Ordinance.  

A Citee may request a preliminary review of a citation within 14 days of the date 

the citation is issued. The Citee must present to the Park and Recreation Manager a 

preliminary review request form, a copy of the citation and any additional 

information demonstrating the reason(s) why there was no violation or why the 

Citee is not a responsible person for the violation. The purpose of the review is to 

identify any improper citations due to errors that are readily verifiable and not to 

resolve factual disputes concerning the citation.  

The preliminary review shall be conducted by the Park and Recreation Manager or 

designee. The reviewer shall not be the Park Ranger who issued the citation.  

If the determination of the preliminary review is that the citation is improper, the 

citation shall be dismissed. The Citee shall be notified of the results of the review 

in writing within 15 working days of receipt of the request.  

A request for preliminary review does not extend any time periods for compliance, 

the penalty due date or the time to request an administrative hearing.  

Any Citee may contest a civil penalty citation by filing a signed written request for 

an administrative hearing stating the grounds for contesting the citation. The 

request must be received by the District within 35 days of the date the citation was 

served and be accompanied by a deposit of the full amount of the penalty.   

Within ten (10) days following the receipt of a request for an administrative hearing 

and deposit of the full amount of the fine, the District shall schedule an 

administrative hearing. The date of the hearing shall be no more than 90 days later 

than the date the request for the hearing was filed. The District shall notify the Citee 

of the date of the hearing.  

A Hearing Officer will be appointed by the District to conduct, consider and decide 

administrative hearing.  Prior to being appointed, a hearing officer must be first 

designated by the General Manager as qualified to provide a fair and impartial 

hearing based on appropriate education, training and experience. 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 20 

 

The Hearing Officer may grant a one-time continuance of a hearing for no more 

than 45 days if a request is made showing good cause by the Citee or the District 

designated representative. All continuance requests shall be made by a written 

request received by the District at least 72 hours before the hearing date. If the 

request for continuance is denied, the hearing shall proceed as noticed. A Citee who 

requests a continuance waives their opportunity for a hearing within 90 days of the 

date the citation is issued. 

A Hearing Officer shall conduct the hearing on the date set by the District. The 

Citee shall have the opportunity to appear, testify and to present evidence relevant 

to the ordinance violation alleged in the citation. The Citee may file a written 

declaration with the District at least 48 hours prior to the hearing in lieu of 

personally attending the hearing. The citation shall be accepted by the Hearing 

Officer as prima facie evidence of the ordinance violation and the facts stated in the 

citation. Neither the Park Ranger nor any other District representative shall be 

compelled to attend the hearing.  Any such appearance or submission may be made 

at the discretion of the Park Ranger.  

The hearing shall be conducted informally and formal rules of evidence need not 

be utilized. The Hearing Officer does not have the authority to issue a subpoena.  

The failure of the Citee to appear at the hearing or to file written testimony prior to 

the hearing shall constitute an abandonment of the request for an administrative 

hearing and a failure to exhaust administrative remedies concerning the violation 

set forth in the citation. Any penalty deposit shall be forfeited to the District.  

After considering all evidence and testimony submitted at the administrative 

hearing, the Hearing Officer shall issue a written decision to uphold or dismiss the 

citation within 20 working days after conclusion of the hearing. The Hearing 

Officer has no discretion or authority to reduce or modify the amount of any fine. 

The decision shall state the reasons and evidence considered for the decision. If the 

decision is to uphold the citation, the deposited penalty shall be forfeited to the 

District. If the decision is to dismiss the citation, the District shall refund the penalty 

deposit within 30 days of the decision. The Hearing Officer’s continued 

employment, performance evaluation, compensation, and benefits shall not directly 

or indirectly be linked to the number of citations upheld or cancelled by the officer.   

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Ordinance or otherwise, the 

administrative hearing decision is final and not subject to appeal or further review 

by the District or any person. The Citee may seek judicial review of the 

administrative hearing decision by filing an appeal with the Ventura County 

Superior Court in accordance with the provision of state law. 

 

 

6.2 Administrative Penalty Citations 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 21 

 

Upon determining that a provision of this Ordinance has been violated, a Park 

Ranger has the authority to issue a civil penalty citation.  A citation may be issued 

for violation of one or more ordinance sections and for one or more days on which 

a violation exists. Each ordinance violation shall constitute a separate violation and 

be subject to a separate penalty. Civil penalty citations shall contain following 

information:  

1. Name of the Citee;  

2. Address or other description of the location where the ordinance violation 

occurred;  

3. Date on which the ordinance violation(s) occurred;  

4. Issuing department/division;  

5. The ordinance section(s) violated;  

6. Brief description of the violation;  

7. Amount of the penalty;  

8. Procedure to pay the penalty;  

9. Description of the procedure for requesting a Preliminary Review, and an 

Administrative Hearing to contest a citation.  

10. Printed name and signature of the issuing Park Ranger;  

11. Date the citation is served;  

12. A distinct citation number.  

A Park Ranger may personally deliver the citation to the Citee, or may mail the 

citation by first class mail to the Citee’s last known address.  

6.3 Payment of Administrative Penalties 

The Board of Directors shall approve by resolution a penalty fee schedule to 

establish the amount of the civil penalties for violating provisions of District 

ordinances. Penalties are due on the day the citation is issued.  

Penalties shall be paid to the District within 35 days of the due date. Penalties not 

paid in accordance with the provision of this Ordinance are civil obligations of the 

responsible party and may be collected by the District through any legal means. 

Payment of a penalty shall not excuse the Citee from correcting the ordinance 

violation. The issuance of a citation or payment of a penalty does not bar the District 

from taking any further enforcement action regarding an ordinance violation that 

continues to exist or when a person continues to violate an ordinance, including but 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 22 

 

not limited to issuing additional civil penalty citations or filing a criminal 

complaint.   

7. NOTICE TO APPEAR CITATIONS 

Upon determining any violation declared to be an infraction or misdemeanor associated 

with violations of state law or regulations, or for any violation of local, state, city or county 

ordinance not included within this ordinance but deemed to be a violation of state law or 

regulation, Park Rangers have the authority to issue a “Notice to Appear” pursuant to the 

authority granted to them under California Penal Code Section 830.31(b). All Such 

violations shall be directly filed with the Ventura County Superior court and processed by 

the judicial authority of the Ventura County Superior court.  

 

A “Notice to Appear” citation may be issued for violation of one or more laws or 

regulations. Each violation shall constitute a separate violation and be subject to a separate 

penalty. Any such citations issued by an arrested officer, or in the case of the ordinance a 

Park Ranger employed by the District, shall be completed in accordance with the California 

Judicial Council’s TR-INST Notice to Appear and related forms and guidelines and as 

required under the California Penal Code.   

 

Violations processed as “Notices to Appear” and directly filed with the County Superior 

Court may result in a person’s privileges to the Lake Piru Recreation Area being revoked 

for a period of up to three (3) years. In accordance with California Penal Code Section 

853.7, all persons failing to appear before a magistrate in court as promised when a “Notice 

to Appear” is issued by an arresting officer, may be arrested and punished by up to six (6) 

months in jail and or a $1,000 fine regardless of the disposition of the original charge. 

 

8. CONSTITUTIONALITY 

If any competent court shall find any portion of this ordinance unconstitutional, such 

decision shall not affect the validity of any other portion thereof. 

 

9. REPEAL OF PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED RULES AND REGULATIONS 

This ordinance supersedes and repeals all previous Board adopted Rules and Regulations 

for the Lake Piru Recreation Area, including but not limited to any prior versions of United 

Water Conservation District Ordinance No. 15. 

 

10. EFFECTIVE DATE  

In accordance with Water Code Section 74651 and Harbors and Navigation Code Section 

660, this ordinance shall become effective on December 10, 2020. 

 

 

 

 



4.4 Attachment B – clean copy  

09/09/2020 23 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF DECEMBER 2020. 

 

 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      President 

       UNITED WATER CONSERVATION 

      DISTRICT  

  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Secretary 

      UNITED WATER CONSERVATION   

      DISTRICT 

 

 



4.4 Attachment C

RESOLUTION 2020-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

ADOPTING AN AMENDED AND RESTATED ORDINANCE NO. 15 & 

PENALTY FEE SCHEDULE PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 6.3 

OF ORDINANCE NO. 15 

WHEREAS, on December 9, 2020, the Board of Directors (“Board”) enacted and 

approved an Amended and Restated Ordinance No. 15 (“Ordinance”), establishing rules and 

regulations for public use of properties owned by United Water Conservation District 

including the Lake Piru Recreation Area.  

WHEREAS, the Board, in adoption of the Amended and Restated Ordinance 15, hereby 

recognizes that Park Rangers are “limited” peace officers pursuant to the laws of the State 

of California Penal Code Section 830.31(b) and Section 2 of Ordinance 15 and. 

WHEREAS, the Board in adoption of the Amended and Restated Ordinance 15, hereby 

extends the authority of Park Rangers from the boundaries of the Lake Piru Recreation area 

to the Properties of the District.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the United 

Water Conservation District hereby approves the Amended and Restated Ordinance No. 15 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” which is incorporated by reference herein.  Upon adoption 

of this Resolution, staff is directed to publish the Amended and Restated Ordinance 15 in a 

newspaper of general circulation within 10 days of its passage. (Wat. Code, §§ 74650-

74652). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9th DAY OF DECEMBER 2020 

ATTEST  
Michael W. Mobley, President 

ATTEST  
Sheldon G. Berger, Secretary/Treasurer 



Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 J:
\EN

GI
NE

ER
\Er

ik\
Ma

p P
roj

ec
ts\

UW
CD

\La
ke

 P
iru

 U
WC

D 
Pa

rce
ls.

mx
d

Da
te:

 9/
23

/20
20

Tim
e: 

4:0
1:1

9 P
M

Us
er 

Na
me

: e
rik

z

Lake Piru

0 1 20.5 Mi

UWCD Owned Parcels

United Water Conservation District Boundary

I

Piru

4.4 Attachment D



Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 J:
\EN

GI
NE

ER
\Er

ik\
Ma

p P
roj

ec
ts\

UW
CD

\11
x1

7_
Dis

tric
t O

ve
rvi

ew
.m

xd
Da

te:
 9/

23
/20

20
Tim

e: 
3:3

9:2
1 P

M
Us

er 
Na

me
: e

rik
z

Freeman Diversion

0 1 20.5 Mi

UWCD Owned Parcels

United Water Conservation District Boundary

I

Saticoy

El Rio

Saticoy Groundwater 
Recharge Basins

El RIo Groundwater 
Recharge Basins and

Treatment Plant

4.4 Attachment D



Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 J:
\EN

GI
NE

ER
\Er

ik\
Ma

p P
roj

ec
ts\

UW
CD

\11
x1

7_
Dis

tric
t O

ve
rvi

ew
.m

xd
Da

te:
 9/

23
/20

20
Tim

e: 
2:2

5:4
7 P

M
Us

er
Na

me
:e

rik
z

Lake Piru

Port Hueneme

0 2.5 51.25 Mi

UWCD Owned Parcels

United Water Conservation District BoundaryI
1 inch = 2 miles

Piru

Ventura

Oxnard

Santa Paula
Santa Clara River

Santa Clara River

Pacific Ocean

4.4 Attachment D



Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 J:
\EN

GI
NE

ER
\Er

ik\
Ma

p P
roj

ec
ts\

UW
CD

\11
x1

7_
Dis

tric
t O

ve
rvi

ew
.m

xd
Da

te:
 9/

23
/20

20
Tim

e: 
3:3

9:2
1 P

M
Us

er 
Na

me
: e

rik
z

Freeman Diversion

0 1 20.5 Mi

UWCD Owned Parcels
United Water Conservation District Boundary

I

Saticoy

El Rio

Saticoy Groundwater 
Recharge Basins

El RIo Groundwater 
Recharge Basins and

Treatment Plant

4.4 Attachment E



Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 J:
\EN

GI
NE

ER
\Er

ik\
Ma

p P
roj

ec
ts\

UW
CD

\11
x1

7_
Dis

tric
t O

ve
rvi

ew
.m

xd
Da

te:
 9/

23
/20

20
Tim

e: 
2:2

5:4
7 P

M
Us

er
Na

me
:e

rik
z

Lake Piru

Port Hueneme

0 2.5 51.25 Mi

UWCD Owned Parcels
United Water Conservation District BoundaryI

1 inch = 2 miles

Piru

Ventura

Oxnard

Santa Paula
Santa Clara River

Santa Clara River

Pacific Ocean

4.4 Attachment F



 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members 
 
From: Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: November 19, 2020 (December 8, 2020 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item: 5 – Monthly (October 31, 2020) Investment and Pipeline Delivery  
 Reports  
  
 
 
Recommendation 
Review and discuss the most current investment and pipeline delivery reports for October 
31, 2020 that are enclosed.  Based on the information provided, and the ensuing discussion, 
provide any necessary direction to staff. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
As shown.  
 
Discussion 
Based on the information included in the attached reports, staff will present a summary and 
discuss key information as an overview.  
 
 
 
Attachment:  Combined Investment Report 



Weighted Avg Diversification

Days to Percentage

Investment Recap G/L Balance Maturity of Total

Bank of the Sierra 1,285,974                           1                                               4.56%

Petty Cash 400                                     1                                               0.00%

County Treasury 1,444                                  1                                               0.01%

LAIF Investments 26,268,872                         1                                               93.10%

Union Bank - 2001 revenue bond balance 40                                       1                                               0.00%

Union Bank - 2005 revenue bond balance 116                                     1                                               0.00%

Union Bank - 2009 COP Bond Reserve Account 654,525                              6,811                                        2.32%

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Securities 28,211,372                         100.00%

Investment Portfolio w/o Trustee Held Funds 27,556,691                         

Trustee Held Funds 654,681                              

Total Funds 28,211,372                         

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Beginning Balance Deposits (Disbursements) Ending Balance

26,209,535                         59,337                                      26,268,872         

Interest Interest

Earned YTD Received YTD Qtrly Yield

59,337                                160,212                                   0.84%

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager Date Certified

Anthony Emmert, Assistant General Manager Date Certified

Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer Date Certified

United Water Conservation District

Monthly Investment Report

October 31, 2020

All District investments are shown above and conform to the District's Investment Policy.  All investment transactions during this period are included in this report.

Based on budgeted cash flows the District appears to have the ability to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months.

C:\Users\stevet\Desktop\WORK FROM HOME\10-31 INVEST.xlsx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AEC9C4B-869F-47AF-88E0-48FAFA9805DD

11/18/2020

11/18/2020

11/19/2020



United Water Conservation District

Cash Position

October 31, 2020

Fund Total Composition Restrictions/Designations

General/Water Conservation Fund: Revenue collected for district operations

General/Water Conservation 9,464,978              (172,578)                       Includes General,  Rec & Ranger, Water Conservation

654,525                        Reserved for future debt repayment 2009 COP

1,725,000                     Reserved for legal expenditures

5,435,000                     Designated for replacement, capital improvements, and environmental projects

1,823,031                     Supplemental Water Purchase Fund

General CIP Funds 5,294,603              5,294,603                     Appropriated for capital projects

Special Revenue Funds: Revenue collected for a special purpose

State Water Project Funds 2,924,422              2,924,422                     Procurement of water/rights from state water project

Enterprise Funds: Restricted to fund usage

Freeman Fund (416,045)                (416,045)                       Operations, Debt Service and Capital Projects

-                                Designated for replacement and capital improvements

-                                Reserved for legal expenditures

Freeman CIP Fund 4,561,343              4,561,343                     Appropriated for capital projects

OH Pipeline Fund 1,536,570              1,536,570                     Delivery of water to OH customers

OH CIP Fund 1,841,119              1,841,119                     Appropriated for capital projects

OH Pipeline Well Replacement Fund 951,129                 951,129                        Well replacement fund

PV Pipeline Fund 350,616                 350,616                        Delivery of water to PV customers

PV CIP Fund 279,278                 279,278                        Appropriated for capital projects

PT Pipeline Fund 717,460                 717,460                        Delivery of water to PTP customers

PT CIP Fund 705,900                 705,900                        Appropriated for capital projects

Total District Cash & Investments 28,211,372            28,211,372                   

-                         -                                

C:\Users\stevet\Desktop\WORK FROM HOME\10-31 CASH POSITION.xlsx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AEC9C4B-869F-47AF-88E0-48FAFA9805DD



Projection Actual Difference

Jul 975           1,484        509           

Aug 945           1,252        307           

Sep 855           1,328        473           

Oct 835           1,467        632           

Nov 695           

Dec 605           

Jan 705           

Feb 735           

Mar 785           

Apr 925           

May 1,035        

Jun 895           

Totals 9,990        5,531        

YTD 3,610        5,531        1,921        

YTD Actual to Budget: 53.2%

Projection Actual Difference

Jul 360           385           25             

Aug 520           683           163           

Sep 440           480           40             

Oct 770           841           71             

Nov 440           

Dec 290           

Jan 210           

Feb 250           

Mar 290           

Apr 470           

May 480           

Jun 470           

Totals 4,990        2,389        

YTD 2,090        2,389        299           

YTD Actual to Budget: 14.3%

Projection Actual Difference

Jul -            41             41             

Aug -            138           138           

Sep -            1,163        1,163        

Oct -            752           752           

Nov -            -            

Dec -            -            

Jan -            -            

Feb -            -            

Mar -            -            

Apr -            -            

May -            -            

Jun -            -            

Totals -            2,094        

YTD -            2,094        2,094        

United Water Conservation District

Pipeline Water Deliveries (Acre-feet)

FY 2020-21 data thru  October 31, 2020

OH Pipeline 20-21

PT Pipeline 2020-21

PV Pipeline 2020-21

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

Jul Aug Sep Oct
A

cr
e-

fe
et

OXNARD HUENEME PIPELINE

Budgeted Actual FY 2019-20

 -

 100

 200

 300

 400

 500

 600

 700

 800

 900

 1,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct

A
cr

e-
fe

et

PUMPING TROUGH PIPELINE

Budgeted Actual FY 2019-20

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

Jul Aug Sep Oct

A
cr

e-
fe

et

PLEASANT VALLEY PIPELINE

Budgeted Actual FY 2019-20

C:\Users\stevet\Desktop\WORK FROM HOME\10-31 PIPE.xlsx

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AEC9C4B-869F-47AF-88E0-48FAFA9805DD



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members 

Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 

November 19, 2020 (December 8, 2020 meeting)

6 – Board Requested Cost Tracking Items 

Recommendation 

Review and discuss the cost to date reports for: 

1) FERC licensing

2) The Probable Maximum Precipitation/Flood Study

3) General/Water Conservation Fund Environmental

4) Freeman Fund Environmental

5) Quagga Mussels

6) City of Ventura Litigation

7) Wishtoyo Litigation

8) All legal fees

9) All professional fees (excluding legal fees)

Based on the information provided and the ensuing discussion, provide any necessary 

direction to staff. 

Fiscal Impact 

As shown.  

Discussion 

The Finance and Audit Committee requested a monthly update of the accounting being 

maintained by the District for costs being incurred for various items. The attached report 

provides data through October 2020.  

Attachment:  Consolidated Cost Summary 



United Water Conservation District

Consolidated Cost Summary Report

Through October 2020

Gen/Water Other Total

FERC PMF Conservation Freeman Quagga City of Ventura Wishtoyo Legal Professional Professional

Fiscal Year License Study Environmental Environmental Mussels Lawsuit * Complaint Fees Fees Fees

2001-02 27,083                     -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2002-03 137,116                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2003-04 395,575                   -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2004-05 527,191                   53,364                    -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2005-06 169,655                   16,486                    3,170                       148,847                  -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2006-07 74,929                     10,554                    71,678                    170,323                  -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2007-08 105,950                   -                               304,745                  170,995                  -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

2008-09 364,883                   -                               1,483,036               458,887                  -                               -                               -                               1,267,547               822,498                  2,090,045               

2009-10 258,473                   68,839                    524,532                  548,673                  -                               -                               -                               324,553                  860,496                  1,185,049               

2010-11 407,597                   123,915                  306,071                  374,490                  -                               -                               -                               255,183                  992,758                  1,247,941               

2011-12 789,792                   87,059                    479,648                  138,686                  -                               353,598                  -                               533,216                  902,051                  1,435,267               

2012-13 531,196                   6,942                       568,207                  291,674                  -                               52,222                    -                               261,810                  1,316,817               1,578,627               

2013-14 771,128                   97,340                    499,114                  434,354                  186,505                  365,903                  169,167                  770,488                  1,244,116               2,014,604               

2014-15 968,028                   120,094                  116,393                  725,345                  232,259                  227,522                  85,654                    505,973                  1,811,454               2,317,427               

2015-16 469,632                   53,062                    137,400                  605,003                  311,047                  161,858                  230,513                  690,261                  1,463,670               2,153,931               

2016-17 435,599                   257,750                  139,791                  666,810                  613,210                  23,373                    1,029,773               1,030,758               1,535,352               2,566,110               

2017-18 363,051                   617,564                  119,971                  546,179                  413,501                  272,526                  2,410,909               2,931,575               2,153,367               5,084,942               

2018-19 735,757                   436,136                  137,761                  659,368                  431,494                  193,240                  1,174,589               2,104,842               2,526,710               4,631,553               

2019-20 682,306                   818,753                  57,942                    1,184,780               290,047                  411,440                  2,620,660               3,647,211               2,898,804               6,546,015               

2020-21 94,113                     357,528                  4,614                       163,702                  100,606                  180,798                  651,392                  993,599                  350,784                  1,344,383               

Report Total 8,309,056            3,125,386            4,954,072            7,288,116            2,578,669            2,242,481            8,372,657            15,317,016          18,878,878          34,195,894          

Previous Report Total 8,259,941            3,015,470            4,951,957            7,241,895            2,534,865            2,242,481            8,338,174            15,202,034          18,690,860          33,892,894          

Current Activity 49,115                109,916              2,116                  46,221                43,804                -                          34,483                114,983              188,018              303,000              

Current Activity Narrative:

FERC - The activity for October ($49K) was primarily spent on staff time ($7K), professional fees ($39K) and legal fees ($3K) for the fish passage and FERC.

PMF - The activity for October ($110K) was spent primarily on staff time ($8K), geotechnical subservice exploration ($79K), design ($22K),  and CEQA/permitting ($1K).

Gen/Wtr Cons - The activity for October ($2K) was spent primarily on staff time ($2K).

Freeman - The activity for October ($46K) was spent primarily on staff time ($44K) and legal fees ($2K) related to HCP support. 

Quagga - The activity for October ($44K) was spent  on staff time ($10K) and professional fees ($34K) for quagga mussel eradication and the scientific dive agreement.

Ventura - There were no legal costs paid in October associated with the City of Ventura Lawsuit.

Wishtoyo - The activity for October ($34K) was spent primarily on legal fees related to the Wishtoyo complaint.   Current legal fees included both July and August billing.

Legal Fees - Includes all legal fees for the District.  These fees were dominated by the Wishtoyo and Fifth Amendment Regulatory Takings Claims.

Other Prof Fees - Includes all contracted professional fees except legal fees.  These fees were dominated by the HCP, fish passage, auditing contract, lobbying and consulting expenses.

J:\FINANCE\Reporting\Monthly Board Reports\Consolidated Cost Summary Report           FY 20-21.xlsx



Staff Report 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date:  

Agenda Item: 

 UWCD Finance and Audit Committee Members

 Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

 Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Joseph Jereb, Chief Financial Officer 

Josh Perez, Human Resources Manager 

Zachary Plummer, Information Technology Administrator 

Kris Sofley, Executive Administrative Coordinator/Clerk of the Board 

November 30, 2020 (December 8, 2020 meeting) 

7. (Board Agenda Item 5.5) Monthly Administrative Services Department 

Report 
Informational Item 

Staff Recommendation:  

The Committee will receive and review this summary report from the Administrative Services 

Department regarding activities for the month of November.    

Discussion: 

Activities that took place during the month of November 2020 include: 

Finance: 

• Closed issue of 2020 COPs which had been priced in October

• Continued work on FY 19-20 CAFR which will be completed by December 4.

• Held kick-off meeting with NBS Public Finance who will be evaluating options for

alternative revenue streams and CIP projects for which the options would be most

appropriate

• New Temporary Accountant continued training on Accounts Receivables and cross-

training among Finance staff.

Administration: 

• Organizing the District’s Virtual Holiday Staff Lunch (December 16)

• Coordinating General Manager check-in meetings with all staff

• Continuation of updating documents to new website (Committee agendas, minutes,

presentations, reports, filings, et cetera)

Human Resources & Risk Management: 

• Completed extraordinary number of verifications of employment requests for current

staff members due to refinancing and home purchase requests



Agenda Item 7: (Board Agenda Item 5.5) Monthly Administrative Services 

Department Report 

Information Item Page 2 

2 

• Processed several requests for Certificates of Insurance through SDRMA (equipment

rentals)

• Processed employee evaluations and step increases that were scheduled for October.

• Finalizing enrollment forms for flexible spending plan for Calendar Year 2021

• Processed employee payroll changes into Incode (address change, tax changes, changes

in deductions, base pay, cash out requests)

• Updated Incode system with 2021 Health Care Plan Rates for all plan tiers

• Completed authorization forms for employee respirator/audiogram and other FIT testing

for their respective positions

• Completed salary survey information request by Calleguas Municipal Water District

➢ Safety and Security Items

• Coordinated replenishment of First Aid cabinets and Vehicle kits

• Provided training on bloodborne pathogens safety, briefed staff on COVID-19

developments, and awareness on safe driving (as part of Distracted Driving Awareness

month)

• Assigned safety trainings for new staff

• Evaluated and engaged with vendors and key internal stakeholders on Safety Data Sheet

(SDS) management system

• Collaborated with AWA VC Emergency Management subcommittee on testing emergency

notification system

• Together with Chief Water Treatment Operator, coordinated regional training with local

FD HazMat units

• Attended OSHA Confined Space training course, which will aid District in reducing

insurance costs for its annual insurance renewal in July 2021

• Reviewed and assigned monthly Daily Training Bulletins for Park Rangers

• Reviewed CPR/First Aid/AED training options for current pandemic

• Published communication/awareness to staff on Flu Vaccine encouragement and Cyber

Security tips as part of National Cyber Security Awareness month

• Reviewed existing earthquake preparedness kit and compiled items needed for kits at HQ,

El Rio, and Saticoy

Information Technology: 

• Provided IT Support for the following virtual meetings:

o UWCD Special Board Meeting (Oct 27)

o Water Resources Meeting (Nov 3)

o FPBGSA Special Board Meeting (Nov 4)

o FERC Security Program Update Webinar (Nov 4)

o Engineering and Operations Committee (Nov 5)

o UWCD Finance and Audit Committee (Nov 9)

o Special Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting (Nov 9)

o UWCD Board of Directors Monthly Meeting (Nov 10)



Agenda Item 7:   (Board Agenda Item 5.5) Monthly Administrative Services 
Department Report 
Information Item Page 3 

3 

o FBI Cyber Watch (Nov 10)

o FPBGSA Board Meeting (Nov 19)

o Monthly Modeling and Simulation Information Analysis Center (MSIAC) Meeting

(Nov 24)

• Completed new PC deployments to employees:

o Maryam Bral

o Brian Collins

o Chris Hendricks

o Joseph Jereb

o SFD new employee equipment - James Smallwood

o SFD operations field laptop - Piezometer Logger

o Saticoy new employee equipment - Timothy Lewsadder

• Ordered specialized IT equipment for specific deployment

o Two standing desk conversion units

o Additional webcam/speakers for MS Teams use by staff

o Laptop docking equipment for executive home offices

o Bluetooth wireless headset (PC and mobile phone)

• General IT/Cyber

• Handled creation of new IT accounts, e-mail, and computer profile setup for appropriate

personnel

• Ordered additional hard disk and repaired (via software fix) a hard disk for the Freeman

Diversion fish ladder digital video recorder

• Worked on Microsoft Exchange (e-mail server) cleanup

• Generated new list of inactive employee accounts to catalog their accounts

• Archived inactive employees to offline storage

• De-activated SMTP address or moved to dept head

• Addressed e-mail and Teams accounts for the environmental part time staff

• Prepared estimates for replacing Engineering large format plotter printer with a modern

device

• Prepared estimates for Ranger Station AIO Xerox printer

• Renewed\Registered website domain "Unitedwater.org" for another 5 years which

included updating billing and technical contact information

• Upgrade licensing level to LanSweeper for 1000 IP assets (will allow for monitoring of

SCADA IT/OT)

• Multi-Factor rollout

• FirstNet Beta rollout with Lake personnel

• Board Room Technology Plan

• Active Directory Replacement from 2008 to 2016 Operating System

• Decom old systems

• Review of Enforced Password Policy

• Re-organized Server Room and IT Administrators office space

• Recycled cardboard



Agenda Item 7:  (Board Agenda Item 5.5) Monthly Administrative Services 
Department Report 
Information Item Page 4 

4 

• Sorted IT equipment and stored

• Labeled cabinets with loaner laptops, projectors, computer peripherals, blank media

o Sorted e-waste for disposal

RSA 

• Re-wrote documentation and deployment practice for distributing the SCADA Second

Factor Tokens to staff - Tokens require annual replacement.

• Replacing expiring Tokens for O&M - Water Treatment Operators

o Operations Tech/Scada

• Modified HMI Server Resources to address performance issues reported by Rockwell

Consultant.

• Cutover Website Hosting from SOHO to CV Strategy with the launch of a new website

design.

• Continued to work with CV Strategy several additional pages for new website

o Creating Monitoring Pages for the State Water Board - Telemetry Requirements

• Additional review of end-of-life computers that are continuing to run on Windows 7

o Developing a replacement plan for replacement/phase out

o Three remaining systems under Win7, all at Saticoy or El Rio

o Six IT desktops inside SCADA Subnet

• Performed e-Mail discovery for Water Resources Dept - inquired about collaboration

partnership with CA Fish & Wildlife

• Cyber Response Plan development (internal staff call)

Lake Piru

• Field trip to Lake Piru on 11/18 to deliver phone equipment and port numbers to net2phone

• Number port failed - government numbers - contacted Verizon to enable open port and

resubmitted the port request

• Overview of the Helpdesk portal

• Overview of the planned Wi-Fi at the Lake Piru area

• Met with Peter to discuss IT collaboration efforts

• Overview and meeting with Lake personnel of specific IT support capabilities


	1 - 2020-12-08 Finance and Audit Committee Meeting AGENDA
	2 - 2020-11-09 Finance and Audit Committee Mtg MINUTES Draft
	3 - 3.D. Comprehensive Annual Financial Review FY 2019-20
	3 - 3.D. Attachment A 2020-12-03 UWCD FY 2020-21 CAFR Cover letter
	3 - 3.D. Attachment B 2020-12-03 UWCD CAFR FS 2020 FINAL
	4 - 4.1 Budget Transfer Freeman Sediment Mgmt Project
	4 - 4.4 Resolution 2020-19 Ordinance 15 staff report
	4 - 4.4 Attachment A - Ordinance 15 - redlined
	4 - 4.4 Attachment B - Ordinance 15 - clean copy
	4 - 4.4 Attachment C - Resolution 2020-19
	4 - 4.4 Attachment D - Ordinance 15 - UWCD Lake Piru Parcels
	4 - 4.4 Attachment E - Ordinance 15 - UWCD El Rio & Saticoy Parcels
	4 - 4.4 Attachment F - Ordinance 15 - UWCD District Properties Overview
	5 - Monthly Investment and Pipeline Delivery Reports Cover
	5 - Attachment A - Combined Investment Reports
	6 - Cost Tracking Items Cover
	6 - Attachment A - Consolidated Cost Summary
	7 - 5.5 Monthly Administrative Services Update



